
 

City Hall Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

AGENDA 

 

CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION & 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

 OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT, 

COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION, 

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

October 09, 2019 

5:00 PM Closed Session 

6:00 PM Regular Meeting 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER: - 5:00 P.M. 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

“At this time the Council/ Board/Corporation/Authority may announce any items being pulled from the Agenda 

or continued to another date or request the moving of an item on the agenda” 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (CLOSED SESSION ITEMS): 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)  

Ramona Rita Morales v. City of Coachella, et al.  

Superior Ct. of California, County of Riverside, Case No. RIC 1803060 

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING: - 6:00 P.M. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

2. Special Meeting Minutes of a Coachella City Council Study Session held on September 25, 2019. 

  

- Page 1 -

http://www.coachella.org/


Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA October 09, 2019 

Page 2 

 

3. Regular Meeting Minutes of September 25, 2019, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection District, 

Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental 

Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella 

Redevelopment Agency. 

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS: 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

(It is recommended that Consent Items be acted upon simultaneously unless separate discussion and/or action is 

requested by a Council Member or member of the audience.) 

4. Voucher Listing — FY2019/20 Expenditures as of October 9, 2019, $1,213,182.09. 

5. Resolution No. 2019-51 to Establishing New Selection Criteria to be used during the review of 

Conditional Use Permits for Cannabis Retail and Retail Microbusinesses (Round #2) within various 

Subzone #1 (Pueblo Viejo), #3 (Dillon Road), #4 (Wrecking Yard), or #5 (Industrial Park) of the City.  

6. Amendment No. 2 to Professional Service Agreement with Southern California Soils and Testing (SCST) 

to provide Materials testing and Inspection Service for Various City Capital Projects. 

7. Sponsorship Request for Date Harvest Festival Ferris Wheel 

8. Authorize City Manager to execute a Library Facilities Use Agreement and Amendment with Desert 

Community College District. 

9. Authorize award of a Professional Services Agreement to GM Business Interiors for furnishing the Senior 

Center facility in the amount not to exceed $50,000.00; allowing for non-substantive changes by the City 

Attorney.   

10. Authorize the award of a construction contract to Valley Pipeline Services Inc., for Dillon Bridge Pipeline 

Repair City Project W-40 in the amount of $133,298.00 including 10% contingency.    

11. Approve a Community Based Grant to Angel View in the Amount of $1,000.00 to Support its Outreach 

Program for Children 

12. Resolution No. 2019-53, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella, California, Approving 

Final Parcel Map No. 37670 

13. Gas Tax Account Budget Adjustment  

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE): 

14. Resolution No. 2019-52 Approving the Ratification of a Two Year Memorandum of Understanding 

Agreement between the City of Coachella and Teamsters Local 1932, representing the Sanitary and 

Miscellaneous Employees Bargaining Unit. 

- Page 2 -



Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA October 09, 2019 

Page 3 

 

15. Professional Services Agreement with KOA Corporations, Inc. for an amount of $545,360 to provide 

PS&E and Right of Way Services for the Improvements of Avenue 50 from Calhoun Street to Cesar 

Chavez Street - City Project ST-93.  

16. Construction Contract with Onyx Paving Company Inc. for the construction of speed humps for Traffic 

Calming Phase III, City Project ST-124. 

17. Construction Contract with Bunker Engineering for the construction of the Avenue 50 Storm Drain, City 

Project SD-02. 

18. Construction Contract with Matich Corporation in the amount of $2,390,000.00 and an amount of 

$239,000.00 for contingency for the construction of The Active Transportation Program (ATP) Cycle 2, 

City Project No. ST-100. 

19. Provide staff direction on request from Eventscape International, Inc.for a $25,000.00 sponsorship of the 

2019 Run With Los Muertos Event. 

20. Professional Service Agreement with NV5 to develop final plans, specifications & estimates for the 

Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity Project No. ST-123 

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

21. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-50 Authorizing the City Manager  to  Submit and  Execute a 2020-2021 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Funding Application in the Amount of 

$395,000.00 and Hold a Public Hearing for the Proposed Activity: Bagdouma Park Basketball Courts 

Rehabilitation Project 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

The public may address the City Council/Board/Corporation/ Authority on any item of interest to the public that 

is not on the agenda but is in the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) 

minutes. 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees. 

City Manager’s Comments. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
i Any writing or documents pertaining to an open session item provided to a majority of the City Council less than 

72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be made available for public inspection at the first counter of 

City Hall located at 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, CA during normal business hours. 

 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

- Page 3 -



- Page 4 -

Item 2.



Minutes 

Page 2 

Study Session September 25, 2019 

 

 
[Note:  Study Sessions are special meetings of the City Council that are conducted informally. No action is 

contemplated other than familiarization of the Council on specific topics and potential referral to a future agenda.] 

 

- Page 5 -

Item 2.



Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA October 09, 2019 

Page 6 

 

  

- Page 6 -



 

 

  

City Hall Council Chambers 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3502     www.coachella.org 

 

MINUTES 

OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA, 

THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT, 

COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION,  

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

September 25, 2019 

6:00 p.m. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 

 

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Coachella was called to order at 6:03 p.m. in the 

Council Chamber at City Hall by Mayor Hernandez. 

 

 

2. ROLL CALL: 

 

Present:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez, 

and Mayor Hernandez.  

 

Absent:  Councilmember Bautista. 

 

It was noted for the record that Councilmember Bautista is ill and his absence excused. 

 

 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

 

City Manager Pattison stated there were modifications to staff reports Items 9.c. and 9.d. There were no 

further modifications to the agenda. 

 

Motion:  To approve the agenda as presented with modifications to the staff reports. 

 

Made by:   Councilmember  Gonzalez 

Seconded by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Approved:   4-0, by a unanimous voice vote. 

 

- Page 7 -

Item 3.



Minutes 

Page 2 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA September 25, 2019 

 

 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by City Attorney Carlos Campos 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

 

a. Special Meeting Minutes of a Coachella City Council Study Session held on September 11, 

2019. 

 

b. Regular Meeting Minutes of September 11, 2019, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection 

District, Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and 

Governmental Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to 

the Coachella Redevelopment Agency. 

 

Motion:  To approve the minutes as presented.   

 

Made by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

 

6. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS: 

 

a. Code Enforcement Officer Appreciation Week 

 

b. Proclaiming October 6-12, 2018, as Fire Prevention Week™, "Not Every Hero Wears a Cape. 

Plan and Practice Your Escape!™" 

 

c. Legislative Update by Ollin Strategies 

 

 

7. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

 

None. 

 

 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 

a. Voucher Listings — Manual Checks/Permit Refunds/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2019-20 

Expenditures as of September 25, 2019, $1,077,506.62. 

 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-48 Authorizing the City Manager to Submit an Application for, and 

Receipt of, Senate Bill 2 Planning Grants Program Funds 

 

c. Contribution of $5,000 to HARC's 2019 Coachella Valley Community Health Survey. 

 

 

 - Page 8 -

Item 3.



Minutes 

Page 3 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA September 25, 2019 

 

d. Authorization of a fee waiver for Coachella Valley Community Tax Services submittal for the 

facility use rental permit for use of the Coachella Library. 

 

e. Authorization of award of Amendment No. 5 to the Professional Services Agreement with 

Powers Security Group Inc. for Security Guard Services for City Facilities, in the amount not to 

exceed $140,000.00. 

 

f. Approval of a Community Based Grant to the American Outreach Foundation in the Amount of 

$1,000.00 to Help Pay for Electric Wheelchairs and Scooters for Disabled Veterans and other 

Low-Income Persons 

 

g. Approval of a Community Based Grant to the Coachella Valley Volunteers in Medicine in the 

Amount of $1,000.00 to Support the Provision of Healthcare Services 

 

h. Approval of a Community Based Grant to the Assistance League of Palm Springs Desert Area in 

the Amount of $1,000.00 to Support Operation School Bell 

 

i. Reimbursement Agreement with Tower Energy Group for Traffic Signal Improvements at the 

intersection of Avenue 48 and Dillon Road, in an Amount not to exceed 70,000.00. 

 

j. Notice of Completion for City Project Number F32, Electric Vehicle Charging Stations. 

 

k. Award of professional services agreement to Valley Lock & Safe for locksmith services, in an 

amount not to exceed $25,000.00 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation, Consent Calendar Items 8.a. through 8.k.  

 

Made by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem 

Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   Councilmember Bautista. 

 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE): 

 

a. Resolution No. 2019-49, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella, California, 

Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of Gas Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2019 to 

Refinance Outstanding Bonds, Authorizing Execution of Indenture of Trust, and Authorizing 

Execution of and Approving Related Agreements and Official Actions 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation.  

 

Made by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0, by the following roll call vote: - Page 9 -

Item 3.



Minutes 

Page 4 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA September 25, 2019 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro 

Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   Councilmember Bautista. 

 

 

b. Request adoption of the 2018 Coachella Valley Integrated Regional Water Management & 

Stormwater Resource Plan Update 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation.  

 

Made by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro 

Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   Councilmember Bautista. 

 

 

c. Approve lease agreement between City of Coachella and the Greater Coachella Valley Chamber 

of Commerce, for property located at 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella. 

 

Motion:  To continue item.  

 

Made by:   Mayor Hernandez 

Seconded by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Approved:   4-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro 

Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   Councilmember Bautista. 

 

 

d. Approve 3-year lease agreement between City of Coachella and Alianza Coachella Valley, for 

2835 square feet of property located at 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella; authorizing minor non-

substantive changes by the City Attorney. 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation.  

 

Made by:   Mayor Hernandez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

 

 

 - Page 10 -

Item 3.



Minutes 

Page 5 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA September 25, 2019 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro 

Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   Councilmember Bautista. 

 

 

10. PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-50 Authorizing the City Manager to Submit and Execute a 2020-

2021 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Funding Application in the 

Amount of $395,000.00 and Hold a Public Hearing for the Proposed Activity: Bagdouma Park 

Basketball Courts Rehabilitation Project 

 

Mayor Hernandez opened the Public Hearing for Item 14.a. at 7:16 p.m. 

 

Public Comment:  None. 

 

Mayor Hernandez closed the Public Hearing for Item 14.a. at 7:16 p.m. 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation.  

 

Made by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro 

Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   Councilmember Bautista. 

 

 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

 

a. Araceli Real 

b. Juan Felix 

c. Mireya Felix 

d. Clara Ramirez 

 

 

12. REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

 

a. Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees. 

 

b. City Manager's Comments. 

 

1. Discussion Regarding Amending Sphere of Influence 

 

 

 - Page 11 -

Item 3.



- Page 12 -

Item 3.



- Page 13 -

Item 4.



- Page 14 -

Item 4.



- Page 15 -

Item 4.



- Page 16 -

Item 4.



- Page 17 -

Item 4.



- Page 18 -

Item 4.



- Page 19 -

Item 4.



- Page 20 -

Item 4.



- Page 21 -

Item 4.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2019-51 to Establishing New Selection Criteria to be used 

during the review of Conditional Use Permits for Cannabis Retail and Retail 

Microbusinesses (Round #2) within various Subzone #1 (Pueblo Viejo), #3 

(Dillon Road), #4 (Wrecking Yard), or #5 (Industrial Park) of the City.  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2019-51 approving new selection 

criteria for prioritization of new retail cannabis businesses and microbusinesses in various 

commercial and industrial sectors of the City of Coachella.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

On September 11, 2019 and on September 25, 2019 the City Council conducted study sessions 

and provided staff with direction to create new criteria for the prioritization of new retail 

cannabis businesses in the City of Coachella.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Attached to this staff report is Resolution No. 2019-51 including “Exhibit A” with establishes the 

new selection criteria to be used during the review of conditional use permits (Round #2) for 

cannabis retail and retail micro-businesses.  Based on City Council’s direction, the new 

application window period will run from April 6, 2020 through May 21, 2020.  Additionally, the 

following selection criteria were modified.  

 

1)   Pueblo Viejo (Sub Zone #1) applicants that were prioritized in the “Top 5” scores will be 

able to proceed to a public hearing for conditional use permit without competing in this 

round.  

 

2)   Pueblo Viejo (Sub Zone #1) applicants may choose to relocate to a new qualifying location 

provided they forfeit their approved (Round #1) location.   

 

3)  The new qualifying location in Glenroy Resort Area (Sub Zone #2) will not compete in 

Round #2 but will be subject to a Development Agreement negotiation.  

- Page 22 -

Item 5.



4)    All the Round #2 applicants will compete against each other “at large” and will be 

prioritized accordingly.  

 

5)   Up to 30 points will be awarded in the category for “Proof of Local Ownership” criteria.  

This was expanded to include both 36-month Coachella residents and merchants that 

employ 36-month Coachella residents.   

 

6)    The Ad-Hoc Committee will be made up of the following members:  

 a) Disinterested member of the Chamber of Commerce 

 b)  Disinterested member of the Parks Commission  

 c)  Disinterested Community Resident 

 d)  Development Services Director to serve merely as non-deliberating Coordinator 

 

Finally, the final rankings of the Ad-Hoc Committee will be subject to an appeal hearing by a 3-

Member Appellate Board made up of two City mid-management staff and one City executive 

staff member.  

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-51 

2. Take No Action 

3. Continue this matter and give staff direction. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

No fiscal impacts would result from the adoption of Resolution No. 2019-51 because they 

consist of new regulatory policies only.  

 

RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE(S): 
 

Staff recommends Alternative #1 above.  

 

 

 
Attachment:  Resolution No. 2019-51 w/ “Exhibit A” 

- Page 23 -

Item 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-51 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING NEW 

SELECTION CRITERIA TO BE USED DURING THE 

REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS FOR 

CANNABIS RETAILERS AND RETAIL 

MICROBUSINESSES (ROUND #2) WITHIN SUBZONE #1 

(PUEBLO VIEJO), #3 (DILLON ROAD), #4 (WRECKING 

YARD), OR #5 (INDUSTRIAL PARK) OF THE CITY. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted to the City of Coachella (“City”) by 

Article XI, Section 7 of the California Constitution, the City has the police power to regulate the 

use of land and property within the City in a manner designed to promote public convenience 

and general prosperity, as well as public health, welfare, and safety; and, 

WHEREAS, adoption and enforcement of comprehensive zoning regulation and other 

land use regulations lies within the City’s police powers; and, 

WHEREAS, in November 2016, voters approved Proposition 64, otherwise known as 

the Control, Regulate, Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act (“AUMA”) which legalized the adult use 

of cannabis and created a statutory framework for the state to regulate adult use of cannabis. 

Senate Bill 94, adopted on June 27, 2017, reconciled standards for medical cannabis with the 

standards for adult use cannabis activity under a single law, entitled Medicinal and Adult-Use 

Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (“MAUCRSA”); and, 

WHEREAS, MAUCRSA retains the provisions in the MCRSA and the AUMA that 

granted local jurisdictions control over whether non-commercial and commercial cannabis 

activities could occur in a particular jurisdiction. Specifically, California Business and 

Professions Code section 26200 provides that MAUCRSA shall not be interpreted to supersede 

or limit the authority of a local jurisdiction to adopt and enforce local ordinances that completely 

prohibit the establishment or operation of one or more businesses licensed under the state 

licensing authority and shall not approve an application for a state license for a business to 

engage in commercial cannabis activity if approval by the state license will violate the provisions 

of any local ordinance or regulation. State licensing authorities began issuing licenses to 

cannabis businesses beginning January 1, 2018; and,  

WHEREAS, MAUCRSA establishes a regulatory structure for cultivation, processing, 

manufacturing, tracking, quality control, testing, inspection, distribution, and retail sale of 

commercial cannabis, including medicinal and adult-use cannabis. The Act designates applicable 

responsibilities for oversight of cannabis commerce to several State agencies; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Coachella, California (“City Council”), did 

on the 8th day of May, 2019 and on the 26th day of June, 2019, held duly noticed public hearings 

- Page 24 -

Item 5.



Resolution No. 2019-51 

Page 2 

 

 

to consider changes to the City of Coachella Municipal Code (“Code”), and adopted Ordinance 

Nos. 1140 establishing retail and personal cannabis regulations and a conditional use permit 

review process; and,  

WHEREAS, Ordinance 1140 amends Title 17 (Zoning), Chapters 17.34, 17.46, 17.47, 

17.84, and 17.85 to (i) comply with current City policies and State law; (ii) to allow additional 

cannabis retail businesses in the City; (iii) to designate additional areas in the City where 

cannabis retail businesses may operate; and,  

WHEREAS, the City has established five new subzones where cannabis will be allowed.  

These subzones are identified geographically as part of Ordinance No. 1140 as follows:  Subzone 

#1 (Modified Downtown/Pueblo Viejo Area); Subzone #2 (Expanded Glenroy Resort Area); 

Subzone #3 (Dillion Road Area); Subzone #4 M-W (Wrecking Yard Area); and Subzone #5 MS-

IP (Industrial Park Area); and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council directed staff to establish a selection criteria that allowed 

for Sub-Zone #1 (Downtown/Pueblo Viejo) applicants in Round #1 to participate without a 

competitive process including an allowance to relocate the business from its approved Round #1 

location, and to establish new criteria for applicants within Sub-Zones #2 (Glenroy Resort), #3 

(Dillion Road), #4 (M-W, Wrecking Yard Area), and #5 (MS-IP, Industrial Park) to be used for 

retailers and retail microbusinesses during the conditional use permit process in Round #2 to 

ensure that only qualified operators are permitted in the City and to provide a basis for 

prioritizing applicants should the number of applicants exceed the number or locations of 

available conditional use permits; and,  

WHEREAS, the City Council directed staff to establish selection criteria for review of 

retailers and retail microbusinesses during the conditional use permit process to ensure that only 

qualified operators are permitted in the City and to provide a basis for prioritizing applicants 

should the number of applicants exceed the number or locations of available conditional use 

permits.   

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA 

DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Adoption of Recitals. The City Council hereby adopts the foregoing 

recitals as its findings in support of the following regulations and further finds that the following 

regulations to establish selection and prioritization criteria for retailers and retail microbusinesses 

are beneficial and appropriate to protect the health, safety and welfare of the residents and 

businesses of the City of Coachella. 

SECTION 2. Adoption of Selection Criteria. The City Council hereby adopts the 

selection criteria set forth in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto, to review retailer applicants through 

the conditional use permit process. 

- Page 25 -

Item 5.



Resolution No. 2019-51 

Page 3 

 

 

SECTION 3. Severability. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, 

clause, or phrase in this ordinance or any part thereof is for any reason held to be 

unconstitutional or invalid or ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 

shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this ordinance or any 

part thereof. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed each section, 

subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact 

that any one (1) or more subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be 

declared unconstitutional, or invalid, or ineffective. 

SECTION 4. Immediate Effect. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 

adoption by the City Council, and the Clerk of the Council shall attest to and certify the vote 

adopting this Resolution.  

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 25th day of September, 2019. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney 

  

- Page 26 -

Item 5.



Resolution No. 2019-51 

Page 4 

 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-51 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 10th day of 

October, 2019, by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES:    

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:  

 

ABSTAIN:   

  

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC  

Deputy City Clerk 
 

- Page 27 -

Item 5.



EXHIBIT “A”  

 
The City of Coachella is located at the eastern end of the Coachella Valley and enjoys a rich 

cultural heritage known for its entrepreneurial families and engaged youth population.  It is the 

City Council’s desire to promote potential cannabis businesses that will further the economic 

development goals of the community in order to create jobs, provide a stronger tax base, and 

enhance the public health and wellness of the community. 

 

Subzone 1 Policy – Round #1 Applicants Prioritized: 

The applicants which submitted a complete application for Change of Zone and Conditional Use 

Permit for Retail Cannabis Businesses as part of Round #1 and were prioritized by the Cannabis 

Ratings Committee in the Pueblo Viejo (Sub-Zone #1) will be allowed to proceed with 

Conditional Use Permit public hearings without competing with new applicants in Round #2. If 

a previously-ranked applicant chooses a new location, they will not have to compete in Round 

#2 but will forfeit their prior-approved location.  

 

Subzone 2 Policy – Reserved through a Development Agreement: 

The City reserves the right to allocate two (2) retail cannabis businesses within the Glenroy 

Resort Sub-Area #2, subject to a negotiated Development Agreement, and these two businesses 

will not be required to compete in Round #2.  

 

Subzones 1, 3, 4, & 5 Selection Criteria–Round #2 Applicants: 

With the adoption of Ordinance No. 1140 setting the zoning and regulatory framework for new 

retailers, the City anticipates that there may be more applications for cannabis business 

conditional use permits than allowed under the City regulations.  Only four (4) new businesses 

will be moving forward, after the Round #1 awardees have been given an additional six (6) 

months to establish their businesses.   

 

The City has enacted, through Resolution, the following process for prioritizing applications.  

 

 
I. Completeness Review 

 
All retailers are required to submit a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application, with fee, 
to the City’s Development Services Department. All retailers must meet with the 
Planning Department at which time their applications will be reviewed for 
“completeness” to ensure that applicants have submitted all the required information 
necessary for review of the application. Only applications received between April 6, 2020 
and May 21, 2020 (“initial review and prioritization period”) and deemed complete will 
move on for review under the City’s selection criteria, unless exempted through a 
Development Agreement.  Persons and/or entities that are currently involved or were 
involved in the 6 months prior to the initial review and prioritization period with an 
active court proceeding adverse to the City are ineligible to apply for a CUP. 
 
 
 
 

- Page 28 -

Item 5.



 
 

II. Selection Criteria 
 
The following selection criteria will be used by the Development Services Department to 
evaluate and prioritize CUPs for retailers and retail microbusinesses. Selection criteria are 
each worth a maximum of 5-10 points, with a grand total of 85 points possible. To obtain 
the points, the applicant must demonstrate compliance with each criterion listed in the 
section below. 
 

1. Proof of Applicant’s Ability to Open in Short Period of Time (Up to 25 Points) 
a. Has the landowner provided written authorization for a retailer and provided the 

applicant with a lease agreement? (Worth 5 points) 

b. Is the proposed retailer property capable of opening the business within 180-360 days 

after approval? (Worth 5 points) 

c. Is the proposed retailer property not the subject of any outstanding code enforcement 

activity? (Worth 5 points) 

d. Has the applicant provided a detailed description of how the premises and exterior 

building areas will be managed so as to avoid nuisance, loitering, and other negative 

impacts on surrounding properties? (Worth 5 points) 

e. Does the applicant provide a detailed tenant improvement plan that identifies 

compliance with California Building and Fire Codes? (Worth 5 points) 

 
2. Proof of Local Ownership (Up to 30 Points) 

a. Is there evidence showing that: 1) the Local Stakeholder Owner of the retail cannabis 
business has a primary residence in the City of Coachella where he/she has been 
residing for the past 36 months; or, 2) the Local Stakeholder Owner is a Coachella 
business owner which has 5 or more City of Coachella residents employed which 
have been employed during the past 36 months? (Worth 10 points) 

b. Does the applicant commit to hiring City of Coachella residents for 85% of all hires 
of the retail cannabis and secondary businesses? (Worth 10 points) 

c. Does the applicant have proof (through financial documents and/or capital 
investments) that there is a 20% Local Stakeholder Ownership Interest by either the 
applicant, partner or shareholder to apply for all aspects of retailer or retail 
microbusiness? (Worth 10 points) 
 

3. Proof of Ability to Open a Secondary Business (Up to 20 Points) 
a. Does the applicant propose to operate a new secondary business (such as a restaurant, 

retail sales, hotel, bed & breakfast, bakery, art gallery, bar/tavern, coffee shop, 
bookstore or personal service business, etc.) on separate premises within 12 months 
of the application date in addition to the proposed retailer business? (Worth 5 points) 

b. Does the applicant describe credible benefits to the overall community, local 

economy, and any community or non-profit contributions or affiliations?  (Worth 5 

points) 
c. Does the applicant commit to hiring City of Coachella residents for 85% of all hires? 

(Worth 5 points) 
d. Does the secondary business have a minimum of 1,000 square feet and is it located 

within on a separate commercial suite from the retail cannabis business?  (Worth 5 
points) 

 

- Page 29 -

Item 5.



 
 

4. Proposed Retail Location/Community Benefits  (Up to 10 Points) 
a. Does the applicant provide a detailed architectural plan for building façade 

improvements (Worth 5 points) 
b. Is the applicant committing to exterior façade improvements that will enhance the 

surrounding areas? (Worth 5 points) 

 

III. Ranking and Appeals 

 

Applications will be ranked by a 3-Member Ad-Hoc Committee made up of one 

disinterested member of the Chamber of Commerce, one disinterested member of the 

City Parks Commission, one disinterested Community Resident, and one disinterested 3rd 

Party Consultant, with the Director of Development Services serving as the Committee 

coordinator.  The final rankings of the Ad-Hoc Committee will be subject to an appeal 

hearing by a 3-Member Appellate Board made up of two City mid-management staff and 

one City executive staff member. 

 

 

- Page 30 -

Item 5.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jonathan Hoy, P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer  

SUBJECT: Amendment No. 2 to Professional Service Agreement with Southern California 

Soils and Testing (SCST) to provide Materials testing and Inspection Service 

for Various City Capital Projects. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Service Agreement 

with Southern California Soils and Testing (SCST) to provide Materials testing and Inspection 

Service for Various City Capital Projects. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

On February 14, 2018 the City executed a professional service agreement with SCST to provide 

material testing and inspection services. SCST has provided those services on numerous capital 

projects throughout the City. Staff is recommending that the City amend this professional 

agreement, increasing their fee an additional $30,000 and extending the term an additional year. 

 

Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, 

services, and incidental and customary work necessary to fully and adequately supply the 

professional consulting services necessary. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Funding will be provided by each individual projects as Geotechnical Services (Materials 

Testing and Inspection) are needed to the project. 

 

 

- Page 31 -

Item 6.



AMENDMENT #2 TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

AND SCST, LLC. 
 
 

THIS AMENDMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered into  this day of October, 

2019    by    and    between    the    City    of    Coachella     ("City")    and  SCST, LLC., a 
corporation with its principal place of business at 6280 Riverdale Street, San Diego, CA 92120 

("Consultant").      In  consideration   of  the mutual covenants  and conditions s e t  forth 

h e r e i n , t he parties agree as follows: 

 
1.   Recitals.  This Amendment #2 i s made with the respect to the following facts and purposes: 

 

 
a.  On  or  about   F e b r u a r y    1 4 ,    2 0 1 8    the   City  and  Consultant  entered  into  a 

Professional Services Agreement with SCST, LLC. to provide Services for Capital 

Improvement  Projects  (CIP)  in  an  amount  not  to  exceed  $34,845.00  for  as  needed 

Inspection Services. 
 

 
b . On or a bout J une 26, 2019 t he Ci t y a nd Co ns ul t a nt Ame nde d t he  P r of e s s i onal 

S e r vi c e   A gr e e me nt   w i t h   Ame nd me nt   #1   t o   p r o vi d e   S er vi ces   f o r   Cap i t al 

Impr o ve me nt  P r oj e c t s  ( C IP )  i n  a n  a mount  n ot  t o  e xc e e d  $30,000. 00  f or  a s 

n eed ed  In sp ect i o n  S er v i ces.  

 
c . T he parties now desire to amend the Agreement as set forth in this Amendment  #2. 

 

 
2.  Amendment #2.    Section 3 .3. 1 , Compensation, of the  Agreement i s  hereby amended i n 

it’s entirely to read as follows: 

 
"3.3.1      Compensation.   Consultant shall receive compensation, including authorized 

reimbursements,  for  all Services rendered  under  this Agreement  as set  forth in attached 

Proposal dated February 14, 2018 hereto   and   incorporated   herein   by reference. The total 

compensation shall not exceed Ninety Four Thousand Eight Hundred Forty Five Dollars 

($94,845.00) without written approval of the City’s representative. Extra Work may be 

authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner 

set forth in this Agreement." 
 

 
“3.1.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from February 1, 2019 to June 30, 2021, 

unless earlier terminated as provided herein. Consultant shall complete the Services within the 

term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and deadlines. The 

Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if necessary to 

complete the Services 
 

 
3.  Continuing  E f fec t   of   Agreement.       Except  as  amended  by  this   Amendment,  all 

provisions of  the  Agreement shall  remain  unchanged  and in full force and effect.    From 

and  after the date  of this  Amendment,  whenever  the  term "Agreement" appears in  the 

- Page 32 -

Item 6.



Agreement, it shall mean the Agreement as amended by this Amendment. 

 
4.  Adequate C ons i der a t i on. The   parties  hereto   irrevocably   stipulate   and  agree   that 

they have each  received  adequate   and  independent   consideration   for the  performance 

of  the obligations they have undertaken  pursuant to this Amendment. 
 

5.   Counterparts.   This Amendment ma y  be executed in duplicate originals, each of which is 

deemed to be an original, b u t  when taken  together shall  constitute b ut one and the same 

instrument. 

 
 
 
 

 
IN WITNESS  THEREOF,  the parties  have executed  this Amendment  as of the day and 

year first set  forth above,  which date shall  be considered  by the parties to be the effective  date 

of this Amendment. 

 
 
 

CITY OF COACHELLA  SCST, LLC. 
 

 
 
 
 

By:  
Bill Pattison, City Manager 

By: 

 

 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 

 
By:  

Carlos Campos, City Attorney 
 
 
 

 
Andrea Carranza, Deputy City Clerk 

- Page 33 -

Item 6.



AMENDMENT #1 TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF COACHELLA 

AND SCST, Inc.  
 
 
 

THIS AMENDMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered into this ____day of June, 
2019   by   and   between   the   City   of   Coachella    ("City")   and  SCST, Inc., a 
corporation with its principal place of business at 6280 Riverdale Street, San Diego, CA 92120  
("Consultant").   In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions s e t  forth 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 

 

 
1.   Recitals.  This Amendment #1 i s  made with the respect to the following facts and purposes: 

 
 

a.   On  or  about  F e b r u a r y  1 4 ,  2 0 1 8  the  City  and  Consultant into a   Professional 
Services Agreement with SCST, Inc. to provide Services for Capital Improvement Projects 
(CIP) in an amount not to exceed $34,845.00 for as Inspection Services.  

 
b. The parties now desire to amend the Agreement as set forth in this Amendment 
#1. 

 
 

2.   Amendment #1.    Section 3.3.1, Compensation, of the Agreement i s  hereby amended i n  
it’s entirely to read as follows: 

 
"3.3.1   Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including authorized 
reimbursements,  for  all Services rendered  under  this Agreement  as set  forth in attached  
Proposal dated February 14, 2018 hereto  and  incorporated  herein  by reference. The total 
compensation shall not exceed Sixty-four Thousand Eight Hundred Forty-Five Dollars 
($64,845.00) without written approval of the City’s representative. Extra Work may be 
authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner 
set forth in this Agreement." 
 
“3.1.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from February 1, 2019 to June 30, 2021, 
unless earlier terminated as provided herein. Consultant shall complete the Services within the 
term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and deadlines. The 
Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if necessary to 
complete the Services 

 
 

3.   Continuing Ef fec t  of Agreement.   Except as amended by this Amendment, all 
provisions of the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.   From 
and after the date of this Amendment, whenever the term "Agreement" appears in the 
Agreement, it shall mean the Agreement as amended by this Amendment. 

 
4.   Adequate Cons ide ra t i on .   The  parties  hereto  irrevocably  stipulate  and  agree  that  

they have each  received  adequate  and  independent  consideration for the performance 

- Page 34 -

Item 6.



of  the obligations they have undertaken  pursuant to this Amendment. 
 

5.   Counterparts. This Amendment m a y  be executed in duplicate originals, each of which is 
deemed to be an original, b u t  when taken together shall constitute but  one and the same 
instrument. 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS  THEREOF, the parties have executed  this Amendment  as of the day and 

year first set  forth above,  which date shall be considered by the parties to be the effective date 
of this Amendment. 

 
 
 

CITY OF COACHELLA  SCST., Inc. 
 
 

 
 
By:____________________________           By:________________________________ 
         Bill Pattison, City Manager                                  
         
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________                          
        Carlos Campos, City Attorney                                                          
 
       
 
___________________________ 
      Andrea Carranza, Deputy City Clerk      
 

 

- Page 35 -

Item 6.



- Page 36 -

Item 6.



- Page 37 -

Item 6.



- Page 38 -

Item 6.



- Page 39 -

Item 6.



- Page 40 -

Item 6.



- Page 41 -

Item 6.



- Page 42 -

Item 6.



- Page 43 -

Item 6.



- Page 44 -

Item 6.



- Page 45 -

Item 6.



- Page 46 -

Item 6.



- Page 47 -

Item 6.



- Page 48 -

Item 6.



- Page 49 -

Item 6.



- Page 50 -

Item 6.



- Page 51 -

Item 6.



- Page 52 -

Item 6.



- Page 53 -

Item 6.



- Page 54 -

Item 6.



- Page 55 -

Item 6.



- Page 56 -

Item 6.



- Page 57 -

Item 6.



- Page 58 -

Item 6.



- Page 59 -

Item 6.



- Page 60 -

Item 6.



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jacob I. Alvarez, Assistant to the City Manager 

SUBJECT: Sponsorship Request for Date Harvest Festival Ferris Wheel 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

That the City Council approve a $5,400 sponsorship for naming rights and free Ferris Wheel 

rides for attendees of the Date Harvest Festival that will take place on November 9, 2019. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

As you may recall, City Council on June 12, 2019 approved sponsoring the Date Harvest 

Festival in-kind for the use of Las Flores Park and the use of the Coachella Library meeting 

rooms and park for the preceding Harvest Dinner Event. 

 

The events budget is approximately $208,000 and since the City Council’s approval the event’s 

Producer has been working diligently to gain sponsorships to cover the events’ expenses.  To this 

end, the sponsorships that have been collected cover 75% of the total budget so far. 

 

The event’s Producer is currently working with local non-profits to presell tickets as a fundraiser 

where the non-profits get to keep 50% of the ticket proceeds.  Additionally, the Producer has 

reached out to the Twentynine Palms Military Base where the Date Harvest Festival will allow 

free admission for those who serve in the military or who are military veterans. 

 

MEDIA/ADVERTISING 

The Date Harvest Festival has appeared in the Desert Sun, NBC Palm Springs, and National 

Public Radio (NPR).  The Greater Palm Springs Convention Visitors Bureau has promised 25 

Electronic Billboards in Los Angeles and San Diego along with advertising in airports in 

Canada.  Both the CV Weekly and Palm Springs Life are intending to produce in-depth articles 

within in the next few weeks. Meanwhile, Spanish media outreach will begin with Entravision 

who will conduct an interview on October 4th followed by 30 second commercial for television 

radio and Facebook along with outreach to Date Industry Workers. 

 

TALENT- 

The music headliner is “Los Lonely Boys” while the opening acts will be “Jamie O’Neal” “Omar 

Offendum”, “AMP Kids”, and the “Urban Renewal Project”.  Also joining the event will be 

Aarti Sequeira. Season 6 Food Network Star winner who earned her own show called “Aarti 

Party” then “Taste in Translation” which aired on the Cooking Channel. 

- Page 61 -

Item 7.



 

 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

The Producer has approached staff about the City’s potential to provide a Ferris Wheel 

Sponsorship which would allow for Date Harvest Festival Attendees to ride for Free.  The City 

can be featured as a sponsor on the Ferris Wheel fencing (ex. Free rides brought to you by the 

City of Coachella) and should council want Ferris Wheel naming rights that is also available. 

 

The Ferris Wheel specs are as follows: 

Space – 25” X 55’ 

Restrictions – 48” tall minimum to ride alone 

Capacity – up to 36 at one time 

Trailer – 30,000 lbs / 45’ L, 8’ W, 13’6” T 

 

Ferris Wheel Example- 

 
 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There will be Fiscal Impact on General Fund Reserves in the amount of $5,400 since this item is 

not accounted for in the City’s FY19/20 Budget. 

 

EXHIBIT(S): 

1. Invoice 

2. Presentation package 

3. Window Poster 

- Page 62 -

Item 7.



Date Harvest Fest, LLC
85266 Avenue 54
Thermal, CA 92274
951-609-8734

Invoice
Submitted on 08/01/19

Invoice for Payable to Invoice #
City of Coachella Date Harvest Fest, LLC coa-01

1515 6th St

Project Due date

Coachella, CA 92236
Date Harvest Fest 
Sponsorship 10/4/2019

Description Qty Unit price Total price

$5,400 Ferris Wheel Sponsorship 1 $5,400.00 $5,400.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Notes: Subtotal $5,400.00

Adjustments $0.00

$5,400.00

- Page 63 -

Item 7.



- Page 64 -

Item 7.



THEN NOW 

Held between February 15 and 24, this was the festival’s 73rd 
year. Although dates are no longer the highlight, and the fair 
positions itself like any other county fair with carnival rides, 
livestock exhibits, and musical entertainment, the festival still 
incorporates curiously “Arabic” elements, which feel out of place 
in a region that is 71 percent Hispanic and 25 percent white, with 
a Muslim population in the mere hundreds.

Atlas Obscura - “Before the Music Festival...” April 16, 2019

One date vendor
Two date displays
Limited grower integration
Limited date usage and variety in food vendors

The Fair started as a festival to 
celebrate the end of the annual 
date harvest in the desert region, 
the major commercial date-
producing area in the Western 
Hemisphere. Dates were an 
unknown commodity in the 
desert until 1903 when date 
palms were transplanted there 
from Algeria. By the early 1920s 
dates became a major crop for 
the area. Date groves in the 
Coachella Valley also became 
tourist attractions.
With the popularity of the date 
gardens the idea was planted for 
the first Date Festival in 1921 to 
be held in Indio’s city park. A 

second festival was 
held the following 
year. Some 16 years 
later a third Date 
Festival was held, 
this time under the 
name of the Riverside 
County Fair and the 
Coachella Valley 
Date Festival. The 
Indio Civic Club, 
under contract from 
the County Board 
of Supervisors, 
sponsored the event.

- Page 65 -

Item 7.



WWW.DATEHARVESTFEST.COM

TIX ON SALE NOW

NOV 9, 2019
RANCHO LAS FLORES
EVENT VENUE 
COACHELLA, CA

local dates from local farms
ARTISAN FOOD TENT & Gourmet FOODTRUCKS
CRAFT BEER & ROSE CART
MAIN STAGE ENTERTAINMENT
Veteran’s resources by mission vet

spicy pie • dad’s bbq • spin-spun artisan cotton candy • bulgogi grill truck • sammy’s 
place • new leaf catering • mason’s den • los remedios • Delmys pupusas • la donut • 

la street kitchen • rose on tap

los lonely boys

aarti sequeria

#wearedateharvestfest

´

1 Ticket = 5 meals

los lonely boys

´

TIX ON SALE NOW

WWW.DATEHARVESTFEST.COM

NOV 9, 2019
#wearedateharvestfest#FOODFESTIVALS

Rancho las flores – coachella, ca

AARTI SEQUEIRA

LOS LONELY BOYS

- Page 66 -

Item 7.



• Culinary Tent with Food Vendors each 
highlighting a date dish 

• Beer, Wine and Spirits
• Food trucks
• Main Stage with music acts 
• Petting Zoo and Kids Zone
• Local craft vendors
• Chef ’s Tent with Live Culinary Demos

For the Community

- Page 67 -

Item 7.



The Entertainment

- Page 68 -

Item 7.



• Date Commission Corner
• Local and State Agriculture (USDA, 

FDA, CDFA, PACA)
• Industry Networking Groups (Women 

in Ag, Growing CV)
• Meet the packers
• Meet the growers

For the Industry

- Page 69 -

Item 7.



VIP Tents and Parking
Artisan Food Tent
Main Stage with Grass Seating
Date Tasting and Sales from Local Date farms
Coachella Valley History Museum Date Display

Site Plan

- Page 70 -

Item 7.



Veteran’s Services Area

Mission Veteran is  a non-profit created by Veterans who understand 
the barriers Veterans face when dealing with service related trauma, 
transitional obstacles and common stressors.  With over half a decade of 
experience working with Veterans in mental health the staff has gained 
an in depth understanding of services, benefits and care that can make 
all the difference.

• Mission Vet Music Program
• Veteran Services from the VA
• Disabled Vets of America
• Coachella Valley Horse Rescue

- Page 71 -

Item 7.



Sponsors and Partners

- Page 72 -

Item 7.



Booth Mockup

DATE VENDORS FOOD VENDORS

LO
UN

GE
 AR

EA
S

ME
RC

H A
ND

 OP
EN

- Page 73 -

Item 7.



Harvest Dinner
Coachella Library and Lawn
$150/ticket
$1000/table
250 seats only
All proceeds go to

You’re InvitedHarvest Dinner Under the Stars
November 8, 2019  • 7pm6 course meal and live entertainment

Date and Wine ParingsAll proceeds go to charity
Semi Formal Attire please

- Page 74 -

Item 7.



City of Coachella Partnership

• Progressive City partner with experience in large scale events
• Permit fast tracking
• “Coachella” is synonymous with festival branding and provides 

additional draw for out of Valley attendance
• Solid Social Media 7000+ person following and co-branded marketing 

support
• Ample parking
• The strength of a city partner to event growth 
• Permanent and Semi-permanent signage on site

- Page 75 -

Item 7.



Date Harvest Fest
Social Media

The goals of Date Harvest Festival’s social media:
promote the event

promote all vendors, partners and sponsors once 

committed

share interesting information on the date industry

#communityovercompetition is KEY to the social 

media strategy

Facebook Metrics

- Page 76 -

Item 7.



Join us in the next great Coachella Valley Festival 

- Page 77 -

Item 7.



WWW.DATEHARVESTFEST.COM

TIX ON SALE NOW

NOV 9, 2019
RANCHO LAS FLORES
EVENT VENUE 
COACHELLA, CA

ARTISAN FOOD TENT
Gourmet FOODTRUCKS
CRAFT BEER & ROSE CART
MAIN STAGE ENTERTAINMENT
Veteran’s resources by mission vet

spicy pie • dad’s bbq • spin-spun artisan cotton candy • bulgogi grill truck
sammy’s place • new leaf catering • mason’s den • los remedios
Delmys pupusas • la donut • la street kitchen • rose on tap

los lonely boys

aarti sequeria

#wearedateharvestfest

´

1 Ticket = 5 meals

los lonely boys

´

- Page 78 -

Item 7.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director  

SUBJECT: Authorize City Manager to execute a Library Facilities Use Agreement and 

Amendment with Desert Community College District. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize City Manager to execute a Library Facilities Use Agreement and Amendment with 

Desert Community College District. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The City of Coachella and Desert Community College District entered into a Library Facilities 

Use Agreement in January 2019.  The original agreement ended May 24, 2019.  Both agencies 

would like to continue the joint use arrangements offered by the original Library Facilities Use 

Agreement and the District has asked to also have the option to add additional security officer 

services using the City’s service provider identified in Amendment No. 1.  The attached 

Agreement and Amendment would allow for the continued joint use through June 30, 2020.  The 

Agreement establishes the District would pay the adopted hourly rates for each conference room 

($29.50 per hour, per room) and the Amendment establishes the District would pay for security 

officer services requested at the City’s contract rate with its current provider ($21.40 per hour).  

Staff recommends approval of the attached Library Facilities Use Agreement and Amendment 

No. 1. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The recommended action does not have a negative financial impact.  Estimated facility use fee 

revenue based on the estimated course schedule through June 30, 2020 is estimated at $25,000. 

 

Attachments: 

Proposed Agreement and Amendment 1 

 

- Page 79 -

Item 8.



- Page 80 -

Item 8.



- Page 81 -

Item 8.



- Page 82 -

Item 8.



- Page 83 -

Item 8.



- Page 84 -

Item 8.



- Page 85 -

Item 8.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director  

SUBJECT: Authorize award of a Professional Services Agreement to GM Business 

Interiors for furnishing the Senior Center facility in the amount not to exceed 

$50,000.00; allowing for non-substantive changes by the City Attorney.   
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize award of a Professional Services Agreement to GM Business Interiors for furnishing 

the Senior Center facility in the amount not to exceed $50,000.00; allowing for non-substantive 

changes by the City Attorney.    

 

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

  

As per the City’s Purchasing Procedures and Regulations all purchases in excess of $15,000 

require City Council approval and that the award include completion of a formal bid process.  

GM Business Interiors was awarded a formally bid contract by the County of Riverside (contract 

RIVCO-93145-001-07/20) for supplying and installing free-standing furnishings.  Staff requests 

authorization to piggy-back on the formal bid process completed by the County of Riverside and 

award a professional services agreement for purchase of office furnishings to GM Business 

Interiors, in an amount not to exceed $50,000.   The agreement will provide for tables, chairs, 

and display cases at the Eleanor Shadowen Senior Center.   

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The recommended action will not have a negative financial impact as it is funded and within the 

appropriated budgeted. 

 

Attachment: 

Professional Services Agreement  

 

 

- Page 86 -

Item 9.



 - 1 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

CITY OF COACHELLA 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this 9th day of October, 2019, by and between 
the City of Coachella, a municipal organization organized under the laws of the State of 
California with its principal place of business at 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 92236 
(“City”) and GM Business Interiors, a corporation, with its principal place of business at 1099 
W. La Cadena Drive, Riverside, CA 92501 (“Consultant”).  City and Consultant are sometimes 
individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.” 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 City.  City is a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
California, with power to contract for services necessary to achieve its purpose. 

2.2 Consultant.  Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the 
provision of certain professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement.  Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing free standing 
furnishings and installation services to public clients, is licensed in the State of California, and 
is familiar with the plans of City. 

2.3 Project.  City desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the Eleanor 
Shadowen Senior Center Furnishing and Equipment project (“Project”) as set forth in this 
Agreement. 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish 
to the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 
necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional furnishing installation consulting 
services necessary for the Project  (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject 
to, and performed in accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and 
regulations. 

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from October 1, 2019 to 
January 31, 2020, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  Consultant shall complete the 
Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and 
deadlines.   

- Page 87 -

Item 9.



 - 2 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 
Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine 
the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  
Consultant retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of 
this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on 
behalf of Consultant shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under 
Consultant’s exclusive direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other 
amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this 
Agreement and as required by law.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and 
obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security 
taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ 
compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Consultant shall perform the Services 
expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of 
Services set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  
Consultant represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the 
Services in conformance with such conditions.  In order to facilitate Consultant’s conformance 
with the Schedule, City shall respond to Consultant’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon 
request of City, Consultant shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to 
meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 
Consultant shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Consultant has represented to City that 
certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should 
one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of 
at least equal competence upon written approval of City.  In the event that City and Consultant 
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to terminate this 
Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the 
Services in a manner acceptable to the City, or who are determined by the City to be 
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a 
threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the 
Consultant at the request of the City.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are 
as follows: Ciana White. 

3.2.5 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates the City Manager, 
or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (“City’s 
Representative”).  City’s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the City for all 
purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall not accept direction or orders from any person 
other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

- Page 88 -

Item 9.



 - 3 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative.  Consultant hereby designates Ciana 
White, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(“Consultant’s Representative”).  Consultant’s Representative shall have full authority to 
represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement.  The 
Consultant’s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and 
attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures 
and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Consultant agrees to work closely with City 
staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, consultants and other 
staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Consultant shall 
perform all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with 
the standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in 
the State of California.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional 
calling necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all employees and 
subcontractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to 
them.  Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all licenses, 
permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the 
Services, including a City Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be 
maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification 
provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without 
reimbursement from the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are 
caused by the Consultant’s failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any 
employee of the Consultant or its sub-consultants who is determined by the City to be 
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat 
to the safety of persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services 
in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant 
and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of 
and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner 
affecting the performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, 
and shall give all notices required by law.  Consultant shall be liable for all violations of such 
laws and regulations in connection with Services.  If the Consultant performs any work knowing 
it to be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, 
Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, officers, employees and agents free and 
harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or 
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or 
regulations. 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence the 
Services under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has 

- Page 89 -

Item 9.



 - 4 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

secured all insurance required under this section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any 
subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory 
to the City that the subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall, at its expense, 
procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.  
Consultant shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance 
for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum 
levels of coverage: 

(A) Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at 
least as broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services 
Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile 
Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any 
auto); and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation 
insurance as required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall 
maintain limits no less than: (1) General Liability: Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per 
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General 
Liability Insurance or other form with general aggregate limit is used, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability: One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers’ 
Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation limits as required by the Labor 
Code of the State of California.  Employer’s Liability limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
per accident for bodily injury or disease.   

3.2.10.3 Professional Liability.  Consultant shall procure and maintain, 
and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years following 
completion of the Services, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their 
profession.  Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $2,000,000 per claim, and shall 
be endorsed to include contractual liability. 

3.2.10.4 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall contain 
the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or 
approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be 
endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the Services or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in 
connection with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 
the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or if excess, shall 
stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying 

- Page 90 -

Item 9.



 - 5 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall 
not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy 
shall be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents 
and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, 
maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 
Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s 
scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s 
insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability 
Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 
insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 
Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 
or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 
provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 
the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All insurance 
required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In addition, 
such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the 
City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 

3.2.10.6 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any deductibles or 
self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Consultant shall guarantee 
that, at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or 
self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 
investigation costs, claims and administrative and defense expenses. 

3.2.10.7 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with 
insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A-:VII, licensed to do business in 
California, and satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.10.8 Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish City with 
original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this 
Agreement on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for each 
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 

- Page 91 -

Item 9.



 - 6 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the City if requested.  All certificates and 
endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work commences.  The City 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any 
time. 

3.2.11 Safety.  Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid 
injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at 
all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, 
and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature 
of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as 
applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) adequate life protection and life saving 
equipment and procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and 
subcontractors, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, 
confined space procedures, trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, 
equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or 
injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety 
measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including 
authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth 
in Exhibit ”C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation 
shall not exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($50,000.00) without written approval 
of City’s City Council.  Extra Work may be authorized, as described below; and if authorized, 
said Extra Work will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Consultant shall submit to City a monthly 
itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by 
Consultant.  The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the 
initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, 
through the date of the statement.  City shall, within forty-five (45) days of receiving such 
statement, review the statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for 
any expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 
request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work 
which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which 
the Parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.  
Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization 
from City’s Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages.  Consultant is aware of the requirements of 
California Labor Code Sections 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of 
Regulations, Title 8, Section 16000, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the 

- Page 92 -

Item 9.



 - 7 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public 
works” and “maintenance” projects.  Since the Services are being performed as part of an 
applicable “public works” or “maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, 
and since the total compensation is One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) or more, Consultant agrees to 
fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the 
prevailing rates of per diem wages in effect at the commencement of this Agreement. Consultant 
shall make copies of the prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type 
of worker needed to execute the Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall 
post copies at the Consultant’s principal place of business and at the project site.  Consultant 
shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, employees, volunteers 
and agents free and harmless from any claims, liabilities, costs, penalties or interest arising out of 
any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Consultant shall maintain complete and 
accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 
records shall be clearly identifiable.  Consultant shall allow a representative of City during 
normal business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any 
other documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all 
work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three 
(3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice to 
Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by 
giving written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, 
at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, 
Consultant shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to 
City, and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Consultant may not terminate 
this Agreement except for cause. 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as 
provided herein, City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents 
and Data and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the 
performance of Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to provide such 
documents and other information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated 
in whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as 
it may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

- Page 93 -

Item 9.



 - 8 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this 
Agreement shall be given to the respective Parties at the following address, or at such other 
address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

City 
City of Coachella 
1515 Sixth Street 
Coachella, CA 92236 
Attn: Maritza Martinez 

Consultant 
GM Business Interiors 
1099 W. La Cadena Drive 
Riverside, CA 92501 
Attn: Ciana White 

 
Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 

(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at 
its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice 
occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property.  This 
Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, modify, reuse, or 
sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, 
specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in 
any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data 
magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be 
prepared by Consultant under this Agreement (“Documents & Data”).  Consultant shall require 
all subcontractors to agree in writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license 
for any Documents & Data the subcontractor prepares under this Agreement.  Consultant 
represents and warrants that Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & 
Data.  Consultant makes no such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data 
which were prepared by design professionals other than Consultant or provided to Consultant by 
the City.  City shall not be limited in any way in its use of the Documents & Data at any time, 
provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement shall be at City’s 
sole risk. 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, 
procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written 
information, and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant.  
Such materials shall not, without the prior written consent of City, be used by Consultant for any 
purposes other than the performance of the Services.  Nor shall such materials be disclosed to 
any person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or the Project.  Nothing 
furnished to Consultant which is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has 
become known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use 
City’s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or 
the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other 
similar medium without the prior written consent of City. 

- Page 94 -

Item 9.



 - 9 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorney’s Fees.  If either Party commences an action against the other 
Party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the 
losing party reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.6 Indemnification.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the 
City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless from any and all 
claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury, in law or 
equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of or incident 
to any negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, consultants and contractors arising out of or in connection with the 
performance of the Services, the Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the 
payment of all consequential damages and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. 
Consultant shall defend, at Consultant’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid 
suits, actions or other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against 
City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Consultant shall pay and 
satisfy any such judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal 
proceeding.  Consultant shall reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
agents and/or volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in 
connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Consultant’s obligation to 
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the City, its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers. 

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of 
the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by 
both Parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision 
of this Agreement. 

3.5.10 City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.  City reserves right to 
employ other consultants in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate, or 
transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 

- Page 95 -

Item 9.



 - 10 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 
hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 
assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents 
have participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall 
be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any 
term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not 
work days.  All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, and 
subcontractors of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to 
City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 
content, or intent of this Agreement. 

3.5.14 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification, or 
amendment of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both 
Parties. 

3.5.15 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any 
other default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 
contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise. 

3.5.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.17 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.18 Prohibited Interests.  Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not 
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 
for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not 
paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or 
violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  
For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of City, during the term of his 
or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or 
anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.19 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Consultant represents that it is an 
equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, 
sex or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff 

- Page 96 -

Item 9.



 - 11 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

or termination.  Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of any City’s Minority 
Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines 
currently in effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.20 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Consultant certifies 
that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.21 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Consultant has all requisite power and 
authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 
warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.22 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an original. 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion 
of the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written 
approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all 
provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE.] 

- Page 97 -

Item 9.



 - 12 - (BB&K:  February 2006) 

 
CITY OF COACHELLA 

By:   
 William B. Pattison, Jr.                        
 City Manager 

 

 GM BUSINESS INTERIORS 

By:   
 Mike Akin                                            
 Vice President & CPO    

Attest: 

By:   
 City Clerk 

  

Approved as to Form: 
 

 
 
****Approved Form**** 
Best Best & Krieger LLP 
City Attorney 

  

 

- Page 98 -

Item 9.



 

EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

- Page 99 -

Item 9.



 

EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

October 1, 2019 – January 31, 2020

- Page 100 -

Item 9.



 

EXHIBIT C 

EXHIBIT “C” 

COMPENSATION 

 

- Page 101 -

Item 9.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Cástulo R. Estrada, Utilities Manager 

SUBJECT: Authorize the award of a construction contract to Valley Pipeline Services Inc., 

for Dillon Bridge Pipeline Repair City Project W-40 in the amount of 

$133,298.00 including 10% contingency.    
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize the award of a construction contract to Valley Pipeline Services Inc., for Dillon Bridge 

Pipeline Repair City Project W-40 in the amount of $133,298.00 including 10% contingency.    

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The existing 12” domestic water line on the Dillon Road Bridge over the Coachella Valley Storm 

Water Channel (CVSWC) needs to be repaired. The bridge is located south of State Highway 86. 

The domestic water line is currently inoperable due to leaks. Staff has determined that the 

existing galvanized pipeline is in good condition and that the cause of the leaks are the worn out 

Victaulic couplings that hold the various segments of pipeline together. Staff worked with Olson 

Engineering to perform a site survey and collect data, pipe characteristics, and existing materials 

and develop a conceptual replacement layout; prepare a civil site plan; technical specifications; 

and engineer’s cost estimate.  

 

On September 26, 2019 bid proposals were received from four (4) contractors as follows:  

 

1. Valley Pipeline Services Inc.   $121,180.00  

2. Toltec Builders Inc.    $132,960.00   

3. Norstar Plumbing and Engineering Inc.  $199,300.00 

4. The Van Dyke Corporation   $209,950.00  

 

Staff has reviewed all four bids and has determined the lowest responsive bid was submitted by 

Valley Pipeline Services Inc.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Project funding allocation included in the Capital Improvement Program 2019/2020 under 

project W-40.   

- Page 102 -

Item 10.



- Page 103 -

Item 10.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve a Community Based Grant to Angel View in the Amount of $1,000.00 

to Support its Outreach Program for Children 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider awarding a Community Based Grant to Angel 

View in the amount of $1,000.00 to support its Outreach Program for Children. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Community Based Grant Program was established in 2010 and allows the City of Coachella 

to offer financial assistance to local nonprofit organizations, schools, youth-serving 

organizations, and other community-based organizations that provide essential services, 

programs and activities to residents in Coachella. Applicant organizations are only eligible to 

submit one application for consideration each fiscal year and must be legally established with 

non-profit or tax-exempt status, be based in the Coachella Valley, or provide direct service to 

Coachella residents. Approval of grant funds does not constitute a precedent for grant allocations 

in subsequent years. All CBG grants are reimbursement grants to ensure that applicants are 

meeting their stated goals.  The FY 19-20 budget includes an allocation of $15,000 for the 

Community Based Grant Program.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Angel View is a nonprofit organization with the mission of helping children and adults with 

disabilities reach their maximum potential.  Each year, Angel View helps hundreds of people 

make significant gains toward independence through three primary programs: Residential Care, 

Day Program and Angel View Outreach. Angel View accepts clients without regard to race, 

color or national origin and makes every effort to accommodate clients’ cultural and religious 

customs.  Through its Outreach program, Angel View provides much needed equipment like 

specialized car seats, orthopedic shoes, communication devices, adaptive equipment, and 

mobility devices.  Angel View also enables children with a wide range of disabilities to 

participate in programs like the American Youth Soccer Organization VIP Soccer League, 

SkillsBuilders, art classes, swim programs and more. 

 

 

- Page 104 -

Item 11.



ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Award a Community Based Grant to Angel View in the Amount of $1,000.00 to Support Its 

Outreach Program for Children 

 

2. Do Not Award a Community Based Grant to Angel View 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the City Council approves a grant award, the Community Based Grant account will be reduced 

by $1,000.00 leaving a balance of $9,000.00 for the remainder of this fiscal year. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Community Based Grant Application Packet 

  
 

 

 

- Page 105 -

Item 11.



- Page 106 -

Item 11.



- Page 107 -

Item 11.



- Page 108 -

Item 11.



- Page 109 -

Item 11.



- Page 110 -

Item 11.



- Page 111 -

Item 11.



Angel View Outreach, FY 2019-20 Program Budget 

Direct Program Expenses

Salaries (3 fulltime employees) $179,000
Benefits $57,640
Consultants $2,000
TRIP mileage reimbursement (clients) $125,000
Special needs assistance grants $36,000
Activity sponsorships ($100/child) $2,000
Printing and postage $2,000
Direct benefit to and for clients $403,640

Mileage reimbursement (staff) $18,000
Utilities (phone) $1,738
Insurance $832
Subscriptions $90
Office Supplies $1,050
Total direct $21,710

Indirect Program Expenses

Home Office Allocation $17,509
Total Indirect $17,509

Total Expenses $442,859

- Page 112 -

Item 11.



As many as 50% of the children with Down 
syndrome are also born with heart defects. Some 
are major and require surgery; others are minor 
and can be managed with medication. Alice, 9, 
from Palm Springs, is one of the lucky ones. Her 
condition is manageable, but she needs to be 
seen frequently by her specialist in Loma Linda.

The cost of the trips was a hardship, so her 
mom called Angel View Outreach. Now she gets 
mileage reimbursement and there’s no threat 
of Alice missing an important appointment.

All services offered by 
Angel View Outreach are 
free. For more information 
or to request Outreach 
services, call or email: 
agalindo@angelview.org, 
 (855) 8AV-KIDS.

Help for Children 
with Disabilities In 
the Coachella Valley 
and High Desert

A 501(c)(3) non-profit organization

67625 E. Palm Canyon Drive, Suite A 
Cathedral City, CA 92234 
Phone: (760) 329-6471 
Fax: (760) 329-9024 
Email: info@angelview.org 
www.angelview.org

Free services 
and supports for 
kids like Alice

Angel View is funded by Medi-Cal, 
donations, grants, fundraisers, bequests 
and proceeds from our Resale Stores. All 
contributions help enhance our clients’ 
quality of life. We couldn’t do what we do 
without our amazing supporters!

We are proud to keep our administrative 
costs low. Approximately 92¢ of every 
dollar donated goes directly to support 
our clients. Please see our GuideStar.org 
profile for full details.

For more information about Angel View 
services including our Residential Care 
or our Day Program, or to discuss a 
contribution to Angel View, give us a call 
at (760) 329-6471.

Outreach 

- Page 113 -

Item 11.



If you’re raising a child with a 
disability, you know how tough 
it can be. Resources change 
constantly. It’s expensive to drive 
to appointments with out of the 
area specialists. It’s hard to find 
activities your child can participate 
in and when you do – they’re 
expensive, too. And often, when 
one child’s needs are on everyone’s 
mind, other children feel ignored.

Angel View Outreach was created to help local 
families like yours who are struggling to raise 
children with a wide range of physical 
and developmental disabilities.

Resources  
and Referrals 
Our bilingual outreach specialists 
will meet with you to assess your 
situation, then make referrals 
to services that can provide 
ongoing assistance. We’ve 
helped hundreds of families 
sign up for benefits 
including Medi-Cal, 
Inland Regional Center, 
California Children’s 
Services, SNAP, 
and more. Just 
call (855) 8AV-
KIDS to make an 
appointment.

Helping 
Local 
Families

Mileage 
Reimbursement
We offer mileage reimbursement to 
low and moderate income families 
whose children have verified medical 
needs. The maximum number of 
miles per child is 1,000 per year 

(or a $400 benefit per year).

Special Needs 
Mini-Grants

Frequently, children with 
disabilities need medical 
equipment, supplies and services 
that aren’t covered by Medi-

Cal or other insurance. Angel 
View Outreach can help meet 

families’ needs through mini-
grants, up to $400 per year.

Activity 
Sponsorships
It’s important for kids with 
disabilities to feel included, 
so we sponsor activities 

up to $100 per child per year. We’ve helped 
children benefit from participating in AYSO 
VIP soccer, bowling, karate, Taekwondo, 
swimming, Little League, and more.

Parent Support 
Groups
These five-week sessions are held 
periodically throughout the year in various 
Coachella Valley communities. Designed 
to help parents build skills in coping 
with their children’s conditions, they also 
provide a wonderful opportunity for you 
to learn from others in similar situations.

Family Stabilization
To help ensure all members of a family are best 
equipped to support the child with a disability, 
on a limited basis, Angel View Outreach 
offers no-cost case management services. 

ABOUT ANGEL VIEW
Founded in 1954, Angel View offers three primary services: 
24-hour residential care for children and adults with 
disabilities, a therapeutic Day Program for adults with 
disabilities; and Angel View Outreach.

“we support families raising 
kids with disabilities”

- Page 114 -

Item 11.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jonathan Hoy, P.E. Assistant City Manager/City Engineer  

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2019-53, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of 

Coachella, California, Approving Final Parcel Map No. 37670 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve Resolution No. 2019-53, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella, 

California, Approving Final Parcel Map No. 37670 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Egan Civil, Inc. prepared Parcel Map No. 37670 in accordance with the approved Tentative 

Parcel Map. Parcel Map 37670 will subdivide an approximately 6.09 acre parcel into 157 air 

space condominium lots. Final Parcel Map No. 37670 is in compliance with the conditions of 

approval and is in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act of the State of California. 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council Approve the Final Parcel Map 37670.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The approval of this Parcel Map will have no fiscal impact to the City of Coachella. 

- Page 115 -

Item 12.



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-53 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, 

APPROVING FINAL PARCEL MAP NO. 37670 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Egan Civil, Inc., prepared Parcel Map No. 37670, subdividing a portion of 

those certain lands; and  

 

 WHEREAS, as a requirement of the Subdivision Map Act of the State of California, as it 

existed at the time of the approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 37670, that map complied with 

said requirements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Coachella deems it is in the best interest of 

the citizens of the City of Coachella, California, that this division of land is consistent with the 

goals and policies of the General Plan. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this City Council does hereby approve 

said Final Parcel Map No. 37670. 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 9th day of October, 2019. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

______________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney  

- Page 116 -

Item 12.



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-53 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 9th day of 

October 2019 by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES:    

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:   

 

ABSTAIN: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza  

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

- Page 117 -

Item 12.



PLAN CHECK NO. 2     NRO ENGINEERING
9/26/19                           J.N. 138.339- Page 118 -

Item 12.



- Page 119 -

Item 12.



- Page 120 -

Item 12.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jonathan Hoy, P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Gas Tax Account Budget Adjustment  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize an appropriation in fiscal year 18/19 in the amount of $669,000.00 to be established in 

the Street DIF and reduce the appropriation in the Gas Tax Fund for that same amount.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

In the 2018/19 fiscal year, the City completed two pavement rehabilitation projects, ST-70 and 

ST-77. These improvements included the resurfacing of local streets in twelve neighborhoods 

and three arterial streets. The total cost for these improvements was $2,582,950.00. This work 

was paid for by Gas Tax, Measure A, SB1 and Streets and Transportation Development Impact 

Fees(Street DIF).  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

During a recent review of the Gas Tax fund, staff discovered that the Gas Tax Fund had a 

negative fund balance of $669,000.00. The original budget should have come from the Streets 

DIF account. In the past with the Development Impact Fee funds the City has loaned funds to the 

affected accounts to complete projects. However Gas Tax is not a source that the General Fund 

would advance funds. Therefore, to correct this error, staff is recommending that a budget 

adjustment be made in the amount of $669,000.00 to the Street DIF and a reduction of the same 

amount from the Gas Tax Fund.  

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Establish an additional appropriation in fiscal year 18/19 of $669,000.00 in the Street DIF and 

reduce the appropriation in the Gas Tax Fund for the same amount. 

 

 

- Page 121 -

Item 13.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: 
 

William Pattison, City Manager 

Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director 

Sandy Krause, Human Resources Manager  

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2019-52 Approving the Ratification of a Two Year 

Memorandum  of Understanding Agreement between the City of Coachella and 

Teamsters Local 1932, representing the Sanitary and Miscellaneous Employees 

Bargaining Unit. 
 

 

 STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2019-52 approving the 

ratification of a two year Memorandum of Understanding Agreement between the City of 

Coachella and Teamsters Local 1932, representing the Sanitary and Miscellaneous Employees 

bargaining unit; authorize the City Manager to execute said MOU; authorize the City Attorney to 

make non-substantive changes. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

In August 2017, the City of Coachella and the Sanitary and Miscellaneous Employees bargaining 

unit entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) setting forth rates of pay, hours of 

work, and other specific terms and conditions of employment.  The term of the MOU was for 

two years commencing on July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2019. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Over the past three (3) months, the City and the Sanitary and Miscellaneous Employees unit held 

seven (7) meet and confer meetings to reach agreement on a successor MOU.  On September 25, 

2019, the City and the Sanitary and Miscellaneous Employees unit reached tentative agreement 

on terms and conditions for a new two year MOU ending June 30, 2021.  On October 1, 2019, 

the Sanitary and Miscellaneous Employees unit overwhelmingly ratified the tentative agreement.  

A summary of the new terms are outlined below and included in the attached proposed MOU: 

 

1. Recognition of Union (Article 1, Section 2) 

 Probationary employees will be included in the Unit.  

 

- Page 122 -

Item 14.



2. Management Rights (Article 2.3) 

 Removal of obsolete language. 

 

3. Regular Compensation (Article 4, Section 1) 

 Language updated to reflect new contract date.  Employees will receive a 3% COLA 

 effective 7/1/19 and a 3% COLA effective 7/1/20. 

 

4. Premium Pay (Article 4, Section 2) 

 Removal of obsolete language. 

 

5. Acting Pay (Article 4, 3) 

 Language updated to reflect existing policy. 

 

6. Voluntary Special Event Overtime (Article 5, Section 1) 

 New language.  Overtime is voluntary for special events.  If the required number of 

 employees needed is not met, City will use inverse seniority to ensure adequate staffing. 

 

7. Standby Pay (Article 5, Section 2) 

 Language updated to reflect correct workweek. 

 

8. Health and Medical Insurance (Article 6, Section 1) 

 Removal of obsolete language. 

 

9. Life Insurance (Article 6, Section 1.B) 

 Increased from $100,000 to $150,000. 

 

10. Retirement (Article 6, Section 2.A, B, and D) 

 Language updated to clarify CalPERS’ three benefit plans.  Obsolete language removed 

 regarding City’s contribution towards retiree medical premiums in 2017 and 2018. 

 

11. Sick Leave (Article 6, Section 3) 

 Maximum accrual increased from 192 days to 200 days. 

 

12. Holidays (Article 6, Section 4) 

 If City has holiday closure, employees who do not have enough hours for coverage of lost 

 time will be allowed to carry negative balance.  Accruals earned after January 1st will be 

 used to clear negative balance. 

 

13. Vacation (Article 6, Section 5.D.) 

 Language updated to clarify existing City policy–cash-ins are based upon a fiscal year. 

 

14. Safety Equipment (Article 6, Section 7) 

 Safety shoe allowance increased from $200.00 to $250.00, including sales tax. 

 

15. Hours of Work (Article 7, Section 1.A, D, and E) 

 Language updated to reflect Building Maintenance Worker position schedule. 

- Page 123 -

Item 14.



16. Rest Periods (Article 7, Section 2) 

 Employees may take breaks away from work, but must use own personal vehicle if 

 leaving work site. 

 

17. Annual Performance Review (Article 7, Section 8.B) 

 Stewards will receive a list of upcoming evaluations on a quarterly basis. 

 

18. Disciplinary Action (Article 7, Section 10) 

 Section deleted.  Language already in Personnel Rules and Regulations. 

 

19. Maintenance of Membership (Article 8, Section 1) 

 Language updated to reflect existing law under SB 866 (Janus v. AFSCME). 

 

20. NonDiscrimination and Equal Opportunity (Article 9, Section 2) 

 Cleanup language to reflect correct protected classes under existing law. 

 

21. Stewards (Article 10, Section 3) 

 Language updated – four (4) stewards will receive 50 hours per fiscal year to conduct 

 union business and will record their hours on the City’s online timekeeping system.  

 Language added to reflect existing law under SB 1085 – Union will reimburse City 

 for all compensation and benefits paid to stewards for additional release time that falls 

 outside normal steward duties.  Stewards will record additional release time hours 

 on the City’s online timekeeping system. 

 

22. Compensation Study (Article 10, Section 3) 

 Elimination of obsolete language. 

 

23. Bulletin Board (Article 11) 

 New language.  City will allow Union to post notices regarding Teamster meetings, 

 agendas, minutes, elections and results, social, recreational and related news bulletins, 

 and reports. 

 

24. Job Postings (Article 12) 

 New language.  City will send notification of Miscellaneous unit job openings for posting 

 at their training center. 

  

25. Temporary Employees (Article 14) 

 Duplicate language removed. 

 

26. Effective Dates (Article 15, Section 2) 

 Term of Agreement will be July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021. 

 

27. Reopener (Article 16) 

 New language.  In the case that the City’s cannabis revenue increases to one million 

 dollars ($1,000,000) at the end of the fiscal year July 1, 2020, the City will reopen 

 negotiations on the issue of longevity. 

- Page 124 -

Item 14.



Attached is a strike out version of the Memorandum of Understanding showing the additions and 

deletions to the Agreement. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Do not approve the action the ratification of the Memorandum of Understanding between the 

City of Coachella and the Sanitary and Miscellaneous Employees bargaining unit.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The total fiscal impact to all funds for FY 19/20 is $110,531 and is allocated for in the current 

budget. 

 

 

- Page 125 -

Item 14.



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-52 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE RATIFICATION 

OF A TWO YEAR MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF COACHELLA AND TEAMSTERS LOCAL 1932, 

REPRESENTING THE SANITARY AND MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES 

BARGAINING UNIT 

 

 WHEREAS, on August 30, 2017, the City of Coachella and the Sanitary and 

Miscellaneous Employees bargaining unit entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

setting forth rates of pay, hours of work, and other specific terms and conditions of employment.  

The term of the MOU was for two years commencing on July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2019.   

 

 WHEREAS, over the past three (3) months, the City and the Sanitary and Miscellaneous 

Employees unit have held seven (7) meet and confer meetings to reach agreement on a successor 

MOU.  On September 25, 2019, the City and the Sanitary and Miscellaneous Employees unit 

reached tentative agreement on terms and conditions for a new two year MOU beginning July 1, 

2019 and ending June 30, 2021.  On October 1, 2019, the Sanitary and Miscellaneous Employees 

unit overwhelmingly ratified the tentative agreement.  A summary of the new terms are outlined 

below: 

 

1. Recognition of Union (Article 1, Section 2) 

 Probationary employees will be included in the Unit. 

 

2. Management Rights (Article 2.3) 

 Removal of obsolete language. 

 

3. Regular Compensation (Article 4, Section 1) 

 Language updated to reflect new contract date.  Employees will receive a 3% COLA 

 effective 7/1/19 and a 3% COLA effective 7/1/20. 

 

4. Premium Pay (Article 4, Section 2) 

 Removal of obsolete language. 

 

5. Acting Pay (Article 4, 3) 

 Language updated to reflect existing policy. 

 

6. Voluntary Special Event Overtime (Article 5, Section 1) 

 New language.  Overtime is voluntary for special events.  If the required number of 

 employees needed is not met, City will use inverse seniority to ensure adequate staffing. 

 

7. Standby Pay (Article 5, Section 2) 

 Language updated to reflect correct workweek. 

 

8. Health and Medical Insurance (Article 6, Section 1) 

 Removal of obsolete language. 

 

9. Life Insurance (Article 6, Section 1.B) 

 Increased from $100,000 to $150,000. 
- Page 126 -

Item 14.



10. Retirement (Article 6, Section 2.A, B, and D) 

 Language updated to clarify CalPERS’ three benefit plans.  Obsolete language removed 

 regarding City’s contribution towards retiree medical premiums in 2017 and 2018. 

 

11. Sick Leave (Article 6, Section 3) 

 Maximum accrual increased from 192 days to 200 days. 

 

12. Holidays (Article 6, Section 4) 

 If City has holiday closure, employees who do not have enough hours for coverage of lost 

 time will be allowed to carry negative balance.  Accruals earned after January 1st will be 

 used to clear negative balance. 

 

13. Vacation (Article 6, Section 5.D.) 

 Language updated to clarify existing City policy – cash-ins are based upon a fiscal year. 

 

14. Safety Equipment (Article 6, Section 7) 

 Safety shoe allowance increased from $200.00 to $250.00, including sales tax. 

 

15. Hours of Work (Article 7, Section 1.A, D, and E) 

 Language updated to reflect Building Maintenance Worker position schedule. 

 

16. Rest Periods (Article 7, Section 2) 

 Employees may take breaks away from work, but must use own personal vehicle if 

 leaving work site. 

 

17. Annual Performance Review (Article 7, Section 8.B) 

 Stewards will receive a list of upcoming evaluations on a quarterly basis. 

 

18. Disciplinary Action (Article 7, Section 10) 

 Section deleted.  Language already in Personnel Rules and Regulations. 

 

19. Maintenance of Membership (Article 8, Section 1) 

 Language updated to reflect existing law under SB 866 (Janus v. AFSCME). 

 

20. NonDiscrimination and Equal Opportunity (Article 9, Section 2) 

 Cleanup language to reflect correct protected classes under existing law. 

 

21. Stewards (Article 10, Section 3) 

 Language updated – four (4) stewards will receive 50 hours per fiscal year to conduct 

 union business and will record their hours on the City’s online timekeeping system.  

 Language added to reflect existing law under SB 1085 – Union will reimburse City 

 for all compensation and benefits paid to stewards for additional release time that falls 

 outside normal steward duties.  Stewards will record additional release time hours 

 on the City’s online timekeeping system. 

 

22. Compensation Study (Article 10, Section 3) 

 Elimination of obsolete language. 

 

 

 
- Page 127 -

Item 14.



23. Bulletin Board (Article 11) 

 New language.  City will allow Union to post notices regarding Teamster meetings, 

 agendas, minutes, elections and results, social, recreational and related news bulletins, 

 and reports. 

 

24. Job Postings (Article 12) 

 New language.  City will send notification of Miscellaneous job openings for posting 

 at their training center. 

  

25. Temporary Employees (Article 14) 

 Duplicate language removed. 

 

26. Effective Dates (Article 15, Section 2) 

 Term of Agreement will be July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021. 

 

27. Reopener (Article 16) 

 New language.  In the case that the City’s cannabis revenue increases to one million 

 dollars ($1,000,000) at the end of the fiscal year July 1, 2020, the City will reopen 

 negotiations on the issue of longevity. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella, as follows: 

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The City Council hereby finds and determines 

that the foregoing Recitals of this Resolution are true and correct and hereby incorporated into 

this Resolution as though fully set forth herein. 

Section 2. Title. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-52, a Resolution of the City Council of 

Coachella, California, Approving the Ratification of a Two Year Memorandum of 

Understanding Agreement between the City of Coachella and Teamsters Local 1932, 

representing the Sanitary and Miscellaneous Employees Unit.   

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 9th day of October, 2019. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
- Page 128 -

Item 14.



 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-52 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 9th day of 

October, 2019, by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES:    

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:   

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza  

Deputy City Clerk 
 

- Page 129 -

Item 14.



 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF COACHELLA 

AND  

COACHELLA CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION 

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 1932 

SANITARY EMPLOYEES AND MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES 

 

JULY 1, 20179 – JUNE 30, 201921

- Page 130 -

Item 14.



 

 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

COACHELLA CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION 
TEAMSTERS LOCAL 1932 

SANITARY EMPLOYEES AND MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES  
TABLE OF CONTENTS (TO BE UPDATED LAST) 

 
 PAGE 

ARTICLE 1– PREAMBLE .......................................................................................................1 

           SECTION 1.  INTENT ...............................................................................................1 

           SECTION 2.  RECOGNITION OF UNION ..............................................................1 

ARTICLE 2 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS .............................................................................2 

ARTICLE 3 – BASIS FOR COMPENSATION .....................................................................3 

           SECTION 1.  SALARY ADVANCEMENTS WITHIN BASE PAY RANGE .........3 

           SECTION 2.  STEP ADVANCEMENT ....................................................................4 

           SECTION 3.  PROMOTION ......................................................................................4 

           SECTION 4.  RECLASSIFICATION ........................................................................4 

           SECTION 5.  DEMOTION ........................................................................................5 

           SECTION 6.  METHODS OF COMPENSATION ....................................................5 

           SECTION 7.  REQUIREMENTS AS TO CONTINUITY OF SERVICE .................5 

ARTICLE 4 – REGULAR COMPENSATION ......................................................................5 

           SECTION 1.  BASE HOURLY SALARY AND CLASS TITLES ...........................5 

           SECTION 2.  PREMIUM PAY ..................................................................................6 

     SECTION 3.  ACTING PAY......................................................................................6 

ARTICLE 5 – SPECIAL COMPENSATION .........................................................................6 

           SECTION 1.  OVERTIME COMPENSATION .........................................................6 

           SECTION 2.  STANDBY PAY ..................................................................................7 

           SECTION 3.  CALL-OUT AND REPORTING PAY................................................8 

           SECTION 4.  BILINGUAL PAY ...............................................................................8 

ARTICLE 6 – WAGE SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS .........................................................10 

           SECTION 1.  EMPLOYEE INSURANCE ................................................................10 

           SECTION 2.  RETIREMENT ....................................................................................10  

           SECTION 3.  SICK LEAVE ......................................................................................12 

           SECTION 4.  HOLIDAYS .........................................................................................13 

- Page 131 -

Item 14.



 

 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

           SECTION 5.  VACATION .........................................................................................14 

           SECTION 6.  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ..................................................................15 

           SECTION 7.  SAFETY EQUIPMENT AND UNIFORMS .......................................16 

           SECTION 8.  JURY DUTY........................................................................................16 

           SECTION 9.  STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE ..................................................17 

           SECTION 10.  EMPLOYEE PHYSICAL EXAMINATION ....................................17 

           SECTION 11.  EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT .................................................17 

           SECTION 12.  MEDICAL FLEX PLAN ...................................................................17 

ARTICLE 7 – WORKING CONDITIONS .............................................................................18 

           SECTION 1.  HOURS OF WORK .............................................................................18 

           SECTION 2.  REST PERIODS ..................................................................................19 

           SECTION 3.  MEAL PERIOD ...................................................................................19 

           SECTION 4.  ATTENDANCE ...................................................................................19 

           SECTION 5.  OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT ................................................................19 

           SECTION 6.  LEAVES OF ABSENCE .....................................................................20 

           SECTION 7.  PROBATIONARY PERIOD ...............................................................20 

           SECTION 8.  ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW ..............................................21 

           SECTION 9.  WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ........................................................22 

           SECTION 10.  DISCIPLINARY ACTION ................................................................21 

           SECTION 100.  SEPARATION .................................................................................25 

ARTICLE 8 – SECURITY PROVISIONS ..............................................................................29 

           SECTION 1.  DUES CHECKOFF .............................................................................29 

           SECTION 2.  MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP ...............................................29 

           SECTION 3.  CHANGES IN COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS ........................31 

ARTICLE 9 – GENERAL PROVISIONS ...............................................................................31 

           SECTION 1.  USE OF VEHICLES AND CREDIT CARDS ....................................31 

     SECTION 2.  NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ...............33 

           SECTION 3.  ACCESS TO AGREEMENT...............................................................33 

           SECTION 4.  REPRESENTATION ...........................................................................33 

           SECTION 5.  NO STRIKE/NO LOCK OUT .............................................................33 

- Page 132 -

Item 14.



 

 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

ARTICLE 10 – EMPLOYEE/EMPLOYER RELATIONS ...................................................34 

           SECTION 1.  LABOR/MANAGEMENT COOPERATION COMMITTEE ............34 

           SECTION 2.  GRIEVANCES ....................................................................................34 

           SECTION 3.  COMPENSATION STUDY ................................................................34 

ARTICLE 11 – BULLETIN BOARD ......................................................................................37      

ARTICLE 12 – JOB POSTINGS .............................................................................................37 

ARTICLE 113 - CONTRACTING...........................................................................................37 

ARTICLE 124 - TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES .....................................................................37 

ARTICLE 135 - EFFECTIVE DATES ....................................................................................38 

           SECTION 1.  PROVISION EFFECTIVE ..................................................................38 

           SECTION 2.  SEPARABILITY .................................................................................38 

ARTICLE 16 - REOPENER .....................................................................................................38 

- Page 133 -

Item 14.



 

1 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

ARTICLE 1 – PREAMBLE 

SECTION 1. INTENT 
It is the intent and purpose of the City of Coachella and the Coachella City Employees 

Association Teamsters Local 1932, representing the employees of the City, that this 

Memorandum of Understanding (“Agreement”) shall set forth rates of pay, hours of work, as 

well as other terms and conditions of employment to be observed by both parties. 

This Agreement has been developed in the interest of promoting and improving employee 

relations between the City of Coachella, California, hereinafter referred to as the City, and the 

Coachella City Employees Association Teamsters Local 1932, hereinafter referred to as “CCEA 

or Association Teamsters 1932”. 

Each section of this Agreement shall be considered in its entirety and subsections shall be 

considered only in the context of sections as a whole. 

SECTION 2. RECOGNITION OF UNION 
The City of Coachella acknowledges the Coachella city Employees Association Teamsters Local 

1932 (“Association Teamsters 1932”) as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for the 

following unit: 

1. INCLUDED:  All permanent full-time and probationary employees in the 

classified service of the City, including but not limited to those classifications 

listed in Appendix A to this Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) as well as 

all permanent full-time employees who are not within the classified service 

performing work within the scope of the job descriptions of employees in the 

classified service of the City. 

2. EXCLUDED:  All temporary employees as defined in and limited by Article 12 

of this Agreement, part-time employees, probationary, and all management, 

confidential and supervisory personnel. 

3. When the City creates a new job classification, the City shall give written notice 

(letter, email, FAX) to the Association Teamsters 1932 of the bargaining unit 

assignment, if any, of such classification and the pay range of the classification.  

The Association Teamsters 1932 shall have ten (10) working days (Monday-

Thursday, excluding holidays) after mailing of such notice to contest the City’s 

- Page 134 -

Item 14.



 

2 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

assignment of the newly created classification to another bargaining unit or to 

non-bargaining unit status.  If the Association  Teamsters 1932 timely contests the 

assignment of the newly created classification, the parties shall meet to make an 

effort to reach agreement within ten (10) working days (Monday-Thursday, 

excluding holidays) on the bargaining unit assignment for the classification.  If no 

agreement within the prescribed timeframe, the City’s determination will be final. 

ARTICLE 2  – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

CCEA Teamsters Local 1932  recognizes that the City has the authority to manage and direct, 

on behalf of the public, all operations and activities of the City to the full extent authorized by 

law. 

 1. The City retains the exclusive right to manage and direct City services, the  

  performance of and the work force performing such services. The City  

  retains all of its exclusive management rights, which include, but are not  

  limited to: 

a. determine the mission of its constituent departments, commission, boards 

and issues of public policy; 

b. set standards and levels of service; 

c. determine the procedures and standards of selection for employment and 

promotions; 

d. direct its employees; 

e. establish and enforce dress and grooming standards; 

f. determine the methods and means to relieve its employees from duty 

because of lack of work or other lawful reasons; 

g. maintain the efficiency of governmental operations; 

h. determine the methods, means and numbers of kinds of personnel by 

which government operations are to be conducted; 

i. determine the content and intent of job classifications; 

j. determine methods of financing; 

k. determine style and/or type of City-issued wearing apparel, equipment or 

technology to be used; 

- Page 135 -

Item 14.



 

3 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

l. determine and/or change the facilities, methods, technology, means, 

organization structure and site and composition of the work force and 

allocate and assign work by which the City operations are to be conducted; 

m. determine and change the number of locations, relocations and types of 

operations, processes and materials to be used in carrying out all City 

functions including, but not limited to, the right to contract for or 

subcontract any work or operations of the City; 

n. assign work to and schedule employees in accordance with requirements 

as determined by the City and to establish and change work schedules and 

assignments upon reasonable notice; 

o. establish and modify productivity and performance programs and 

standards; 

p. for good cause, to discharge, suspend, demote, reprimand, withhold salary 

and benefits or otherwise discipline employees in accordance with 

applicable law; 

q. establish employee performance standards including, but not limited to, 

quality and quantity standards and to require compliance therewith; take 

all necessary actions to carry out its mission in emergencies; 

r. exercise complete control and discretion over its organization and the 

technology or performing its work; and 

s. establish reasonable work and safety rules and regulations in order to 

maintain the efficiency of City services. 

 2. The exercise by the City through its Council and management representatives,  

  City Manager, Department Directors and Executives, of its management rights  

  shall not in any way, directly or indirectly, be subject to the grievance procedure. 

 3. Nothing herein precludes bargaining unit employees or Association to challenge a 

  disciplinary action pursuant to Article 7, Section 10.     

ARTICLE 3– BASIS FOR COMPENSATION 

SECTION 1.  SALARY ADVANCEMENTS WITHIN BASE PAY RANGE 
Salary ranges are established to provide fair compensation to each position covered by this 

Agreement.  Initial appointments shall be made at the minimum step within the approved 

- Page 136 -

Item 14.



 

4 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

pay range.  The City Manager may approve a higher starting step if the best interests of 

the City so require. 

SECTION 2. STEP ADVANCEMENT 
A. Salary advancement within each class shall not be automatic, but shall be based 

upon merit and fitness.  All salary increases shall be recommended by the 

Department Head and approved by the City Manager.  Merit increases shall be 

effective on the employee’s anniversary date. 

B. Upon successful and satisfactory completion of six (6) months of service, an 

eligible employee may be advanced one step within his/her range and yearly 

thereafter until the maximum pay rate within the range is reached. 

C. Merit increases will be provided for eligible employees based on performance 

evaluation conducted on employee’s service anniversary date and as outlined in 

this MOU.  

D. The City implemented a performance step recognizing outstanding performance 

on January 1, 2012.  An employee’s advancement to the performance step is 

based on his/her achievement, over the course of the performance appraisal period 

following his/her anniversary date, of the goals and objectives established and 

agreed upon between the employee and his/her supervisor and approved by the 

Director and City Manager.  The Labor/Management Committee adopted the 

appraisal tool criteria for what constitutes outstanding service and goals and 

objectives in order to be eligible for the performance step on April 1, 2012.   

SECTION 3. PROMOTION 
A. An employee who is promoted to a position in a class with a higher salary rate 

 shall be entitled to be placed on the lowest step in the new range which exceeds 

 the employee’s present rate of pay by at least five percent (5%). 

B. Upon successful completion of six (6) months of service in the new class, an 

 employee placed in Step A of the salary schedule may be advanced one step 

 within his/her range and yearly thereafter until the maximum pay rate within 

 range is reached. 

SECTION 4. RECLASSIFICATION 

- Page 137 -

Item 14.



 

5 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

An employee who is reclassified to a position in a class with a higher salary range shall be 

entitled to the lowest step in the higher salary range which exceeds the employee’s present rate 

of pay by a minimum of five percent (5%) of the employee’s base rate of pay. 

SECTION 5. DEMOTION 
When an employee is demoted, the employee’s base pay rate shall be set at the step in the lower 

pay range which provides the smallest decrease in pay if the action is not for cause.  If the 

demotion is for cause, the employee’s pay rate shall be set at any appropriate step rate in the 

lower range that is less than the employee’s existing salary as determined by the City Manager. 

SECTION 6. METHODS OF COMPENSATION 
A. Compensation shall be determined on an hourly basis. 

B. Payments due shall be paid on a bi-weekly basis unless otherwise specified.  By 

mutual consent of the parties, early payments and other modifications can be 

made. 

C. Base hourly salary shall be considered as the regular rate of pay for a particular 

classification without consideration of any other form of compensation. 

D. No employee may take time off from normal working hours (excluding meal 

periods) for the purpose of depositing a pay check. 

SECTION 7. REQUIREMENTS AS TO CONTINUITY OF SERVICE 
A. Service requirements for advancement within a base salary range and vacation 

shall be based on continuous service as a regular employee. 

B. Leaves of absence without pay in excess of five (5) days, except for extended 

military leave, shall be deducted in computing total service but shall not interrupt 

continuous service. 

C. All unauthorized absences without leave shall be grounds for disciplinary action. 

ARTICLE 4 – REGULAR COMPENSATION 

SECTION 1. BASE HOURLY SALARY AND CLASS TITLES 
The hourly wages effective July 1, 20179 through June 30, 201921 for employees covered by 

this Agreement are set forth in the Salary Schedule (Appendix A) to this Agreement.  Appendix 

A reflects a three percent (3%) cost of living adjustment effective July 1, 2019.  Appendix B 

reflects a three percent (3%) cost of living adjustment effective July 1, 2020.   

- Page 138 -

Item 14.



 

6 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

For the period of July 1, 20179 through June 30, 201921, employees will receive an hourly wage 

based on a forty (40) hour work week. 

SECTION 2. PREMIUM PAY 
Occasionally, employees will be assigned to do work requiring specific skills and to perform 

duties not regularly part of their actual job specification that are the duties of a higher paid 

classification.  These temporary assignments are on a spot basis and do not encompass an entire 

work day.  These employees will receive premium pay for the hours actually worked on the 

special assignment.  Assignments shall be made by the Department Head, subject to the approval 

of the City Manager. 

Premium pay shall be paid at the rate of three dollars ($3.00) per hour.  This payment only 

applies to employees required to operate heavy equipment.  Employees shall be entitled to a 

minimum of two (2) hours pay for each assignment. 

Effective December 1, 1998, additional compensation of one hundred dollars ($100) per month 

will be granted to employees assigned as Emergency Preparedness Coordinator. 

SECTION 3. ACTING PAY 

When an employee is asked to substitute in a position higher than the one he/she regularly fills, 

that employee will be entitled to pay equal to the first step of that higher position (or a not less 

than five percent (5%) increase beyond his/her current compensation) for the period of time the 

employee is asked to take over the duties of the higher level position.  An employee will be 

eligible to earn acting pay at the start of the first day the employee works outside of his/her 

regular classification. 

ARTICLE 5 – SPECIAL COMPENSATION 

SECTION 1. OVERTIME COMPENSATION 
A. Employees may be required to work overtime if no employee volunteers or in 

case of an emergency. 

B. Overtime is work directed to be performed in addition to work of the normal work 

period for a specific classification.  Payment for overtime shall be paid at the rate 

of one and one-half (1½) times the employee’s regular hourly rate. 

- Page 139 -

Item 14.



 

7 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

Overtime hours worked will be paid in excess of ten (10) hours worked per day or 

in excess of forty (40) hours worked per week. 

Holiday (including floating holiday) and vacation time used during a work week 

will count as hours worked for purposes of computing overtime pay for payroll 

purposes.  Compensatory time and sick time used during a work week will not 

count as hours worked for purposes of computing overtime pay for payroll 

purposes. 

C. All SCHEDULED overtime and compensatory (comp.) time worked by a non-

exempt employee must be approved IN ADVANCE by both the Department Head 

and the City Manager (or designee) PRIOR to being worked.  Evening and 

weekend EMERGENCY calls must be reported to the Department Head and the 

City Manager (or designee) on the next working day.  Occasional overtime and/or 

compensatory time required to be worked at the end of the day requires only 

Department Head approval. Because unauthorized overtime and compensatory 

time are against City policy, employees who work unauthorized overtime and 

compensatory time are subject to discipline, up to and including termination. 

D. At the discretion of the Department Head and with the agreement of the 

employee, compensatory time off may be substituted in lieu of paid overtime.  

However, no employee may accrue more than one-hundred twenty (120) hours of 

compensatory time off. 

E. Employees shall have the option of receiving monetary compensation for 

overtime work or compensatory time off. 

F. Voluntary Special Event Overtime – in instances where voluntary overtime is 

requested for special events, the City shall post a voluntary sign-up sheet in all 

departments four (4) weeks prior to the event, and the suggested number of 

employees.  The sign-up sheets will be posted for four (4) business days.  The top 

senior employees who possess the skills required to perform the overtime will be 

chosen two (2) weeks prior to the scheduled overtime.  If the required number of 

employees is not met, overtime will be mandatory and the City shall use inverse 

seniority until it reaches the number of employees necessary. 

SECTION 2. STANDBY PAY 

- Page 140 -

Item 14.



 

8 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

Standby pay will be paid at the rate of eighty five dollars ($85.00) for a two (2) day weekend and 

one-hundred thirty five dollars ($135.00) for a three (3) day weekend.  Standby pay will be paid 

at the rate of two-hundred twenty five dollars ($225.00) for a seven (7) day week not including a 

holiday and two-hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) for a week including a holiday.  For purposes of 

this provision the workweek begins at 12:01 p.m. Friday Saturday and concludes 12:00 noon 

midnight the following Friday. 

The City agrees to implement a standby rotation system in each division. 

SECTION 3. CALL-OUT AND REPORTING PAY 
The City agrees to implement an overtime/call-out rotation system for each individual field 

division.  Each individual field division will rotate overtime/call-out assignments within each 

field division’s non-supervisory employees so that line employees are assigned to overtime/call-

out duty in an equitable manner, based upon skill set required to complete said overtime/call-out 

assignment.  Disputes over the application of this provision can be processed through the 

grievance procedure.   

If an employee actually works more than two (2) hours call out on any day he/she will be paid 

for four (4) hours.  If he/she works more than four (4) hours call out on any day he/she shall 

receive eight (8) hours pay.  The minimum hour provision in this section shall be paid once for 

any twenty-four (24) hour day beginning at 12:01 a.m. and ending the following midnight. 

SECTION 4. BILINGUAL PAY 
A. Additional compensation in the amount of five percent (5%) of base salary may 

be paid to staff in the following positions whose primary responsibilities require 

the ability to speak Spanish: 

• Accounting Technician (Payroll) 

• Accounting Technician (Utilities) 

• Business License Technician 

• Code Enforcement Aide 

• Code Enforcement Officer 

• Department Assistant I/II (Administration)  

• Department Assistant I/II (Engineering Services) 

- Page 141 -

Item 14.



 

9 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

• Department Assistant I/II (Public Works) 

• Department Assistant I/II (Utilities) 

• Engineering Technician 

• Human Resources Technician 

• Parks Ranger 

• Planning Technician 

• Recreation Services Coordinator 

• Senior Center Assistant 

• Senior Center Coordinator 

• Water Service Worker II 

B. Additional compensation in the amount of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per pay 

 period for employees who use their conversational Spanish skills when interacting 

 with the public on a more limited basis: 

• Accountant 

• Accounting Technician (Finance) 

• Assistant Engineer 

• Custodian/Building Maintenance 

• Heavy Equipment Operator 

• Public Works/Landscape and Lighting Inspector 

• Public Works Maintenance Workers (Streets and Parks) 

• Senior Accountant 

• Senior Maintenance Worker 

• Senior Water Service Worker I/II/III/IV 

• Street Sweeper Operator 

• Treatment Plant Operator Trainee/I/II/III 

• Vehicle/Equipment Mechanic I/II 

• Water Service Worker I/II 

C. To be eligible to receive bilingual pay, an employee must be serving in an eligible 

 classification and be certified by the City to receive such pay. The City may 

 periodically require evaluation of incumbents receiving bilingual pay. 

- Page 142 -

Item 14.



 

10 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

ARTICLE 6 – WAGE SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS 

SECTION 1. EMPLOYEE INSURANCE 
A. Health and Medical Insurance 

1. Beginning in January, 2018, Tthe City will pay up to the median cost of 

 the CalPERS medical premium for single, two-party, and family coverage 

 for employees, spouses, domestic partners and dependents.  The specific 

 dollar amounts will change each year based upon CalPERS’ rates.  

 Retroactive to July 1, 2017, the City will pay up to the median cost of the 

 2017 CalPERS medical premium for single, two-party, and family 

 coverage for employees, spouses, domestic partners and dependents.  

2.   Employees with duplicate health coverage may choose to cash in five 

 hundred twenty-five dollars ($525.00).  An employee must submit a 

 written request for payment and annual evidence of duplicate coverage. 

B. Life Insurance 

 The City will provide a $100,000 $150,000 policy for each employee. 

C. Optical and Dental 

1. The City will pay full premiums for both optical and dental benefits for 

 employee and dependents. 

2. The employees will have the option of having vision coverage of which 

 the City will pay the premiums for the term of this MOU. 

3. Employees may decline vision coverage, thereby waiving such coverage 

 and shall receive in cash the fees which would have been paid in the form 

 of such insurance premiums. 

D. Long Term and Short Term Disability 

All employees are covered by a long term and short term disability insurance 

policy.  The City shall pay the premium for these disability insurance policies. 

SECTION 2. RETIREMENT  
 A. The City contracts with the California Public Retirement System (CalPERS).   

  Effective October 20, 2012, the City adopted a two-tier retirement plan: 

• Employees hired prior to October 20, 2012 are covered under the 3% 60 

CalPERS Pplan formula and will be on the “One Year Final Compensation” 

- Page 143 -

Item 14.



 

11 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

benefit plan.  Employees under the 3%@60 CalPERS Plan (First Level) 

currently pay an 8% member contribution.  This amount is set by CalPERS. 

• Employees hired on or after October 20, 2012 are covered under the 2%@60 

CalPERS Pplan formula (Second Level) and will be on the “Three Year Final 

Compensation” benefit plan.    Employees under the 2%@60 CalPERS Plan 

currently pay a 7% member contribution.  This amount is set by CalPERS. 

• Effective Employees hired on or after January 1, 2013, new employees are 

covered under the 2%@62 CalPERS Pplan formula (PEPRA) and will be on 

the “Three Year Final Compensation” benefit plan.  Employees under the 

2%@62 CalPERS Plan currently pay a 6.75% member contribution.  This 

amount is set by CalPERS. 

B. Effective July 1, 2012, employees agreed to pay five percent (5%) of the eight 

 percent (8%) member contribution toward this plan.  

Effective July 1, 2013, employees agreed to pay the remaining three percent (3%) 

of the eight percent (8%) member contribution. 

C. The City agrees to pay two dollars ($2.00) per month for the employee’s 

 participation in the 1959 PERS Survivor’s Benefit Program (Government Code 

 sections 21570 et seq.)  The PERS premium for uniformed employees shall be 

 paid by employees. 

D. The City currently contributes the following amount towards an eligible retiree’s 

 CalPERS medical premium: 

 2017 - $202.50 per month 

 2018 - $216.00 per month 

 2019 - $229.50 per month 

 2020 - $243.00 per month 

 2021 - $256.50 per month 

SECTION 3. SICK LEAVE 
A. Sick leave shall be earned at the rate of ten (10) hours per month. For purposes of 

 determining annual cash-out or carryover of accumulated sick leave, unused sick 

 leave will be accrued at the rate of ten (10) hours per month and the cash-out 

 carryover will be determined on that rate. 

- Page 144 -

Item 14.



 

12 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

 B. Sick leave shall be accrued to a maximum of 192 200 days. 

 C. Cash Out:  Termination 

1. Retirement: fifty percent (50%) of accrued sick leave. 
2. Layoff: fifty percent (50%) of accrued sick leave. 
3. Death: fifty percent (50%) of accrued sick leave. 
4. Discharged: None 

 D. Cash Out:  Annual 

1. Employees have the option of saving all of their yearly sick leave or being 

paid for it in accordance with these provisions. 

2. Payment provisions for unused sick leave shall be based on a fiscal year 

basis (July 1 to June 30). 

3. Employees may cash in, convert to vacation, or accrue one-half of their 

annual unused sick leave hours at the end of each fiscal year.  If none of 

these options are exercised by the employee, the unused sick leave will 

automatically be accrued.  

4. Sick leave computation pay shall be based on an employee’s hourly rate as 

of June 30, except for retirement or layoff. 

5. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid in accordance with the average 

number of annual hours accumulated and based on the same schedule as 

the annual cash out. Payment shall be computed at employee’s hourly rate 

at separation. 

E. Use of Sick Leave 

Sick leave shall be used only in case of sickness or disability of the employee or 

for family sick leave.  Misuse of sick leave shall be grounds for disciplinary 

action. 

F. Notification of Sickness 

1. To receive compensation while absent on sick leave, an employee shall 

notify his/her immediate supervisor in the manner provided for in 

Departmental rules and regulations. 

2. When absent for more than three (3) consecutive working days, the 

employee’s illness must be verified by a written statement from an 

attending physician or a personal affidavit stating the fact of the medical 

necessity for the absence, and the employee shall furnish any other proof 

- Page 145 -

Item 14.



 

13 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

of sickness reasonably required by the Department Head or the City 

Manager. 

G. Family Sick Leave 

1. In case of illness of a member of the employee’s immediate family, the 

employee, upon reasonable notice, may take up to one-half of his/her 

annual sick leave accrual for family sick leave. 

2. Immediate family for the purpose of this section shall be defined as 

spouse, mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, 

brother, brother-in-law, child, stepchild, or guardian, stepfather, 

stepmother, registered domestic partner, grandparents or grandchildren. 

3. Family sick leave shall be deducted from the employee’s accumulated sick  

leave. 

H. Return From Sick Leave 

Upon return from sick leave, an employee may be required by the Department 

Head to report for an examination by a City-selected physician to determine 

fitness for duty. 

SECTION 4. HOLIDAYS 
A. The following days shall be considered paid holidays.   

• New Year’s Eve  

• New Year’s Day 

• Martin Luther King’s Birthday 

• Presidents’ Day 

• Cesar Chavez’s Birthday 

• Memorial Day 

• Independence Day 

• Labor Day 

• Veteran’s Day 

• Thanksgiving Day 

• Christmas Eve  

• Christmas Day 

- Page 146 -

Item 14.



 

14 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

B. If the holiday falls on a Friday or Saturday, it will be observed on the Thursday 

before as a legal holiday.  In addition, if a holiday falls on a Sunday, it will be 

observed the following Monday.  In the case that the City has a holiday closure, 

December 24th thru January 1st, employees may use vacation, compensatory time, 

and floating holidays.  In the event employees do not have enough hours for 

coverage of time lost due to the closure of the City, the City will allow employees 

to carry a negative balance.  Any accruals earned after January 1st will be used to 

clear an employee’s negative balance. 

C. Floating Holidays 

1. In lieu of former holidays (Lincoln’s Birthday, Admission Day, and Day 

After Thanksgiving), employees shall earn three (3) floating holidays. 

2. Floating holidays shall be earned on July 1, and shall be taken during the 

period between July 1 through June 30 of each year.  As of June 30, the 

floating holidays earned in a fiscal year and unused shall either be cashed 

out or converted to vacation and carried over to the next fiscal year at the 

employee’s option. 

D. Employees who work on a paid holiday shall be paid at the rate of time and one-

half their normal hourly rate, in addition to the straight time pay they normally 

receive for the holiday, with a minimum of two (2) hours “call in” time 

guaranteed. 

E. There shall be no accrual of holiday time off. 

SECTION 5. VACATION 
A. Employees shall earn vacation as follows: 

1. 1st year through 3rd year of service– eleven (11) days per year. 

2. 4th year through 10th year of service – sixteen (16) days per year. 

3. 11th year through 15th year of service – twenty (20) days per year. 

4. 16th year through 20th year of service – twenty-five (25) days per year. 

5. Over twenty (20) years of service – thirty (30) days per year. 

B. An employee may accrue up to the amount that employee accrues in two (2) 

years. Once this maximum amount has been accrued, the employee shall accrue 

no further vacation until the accrued level has been reduced to below the 

maximum.  The employee will then again begin accruing but at no time shall the 

- Page 147 -

Item 14.



 

15 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

employee’s level accrued vacation exceed the amount of vacation that the 

employee accrues in two (2) years. 

C. The time of taking vacation shall be determined by the Department Head, subject 

to review by the City Manager.  An employee may take vacation only in 

increments of full days or complete shifts.  A Department Head may approve 

smaller increments of not less than four (4) hours. 

D. Subject to filing an official request, an employee may cash in up to eighty (80) 

hours of vacation annually (based on fiscal year: July 1-June 30). 

E. Prior to an employee taking of vacation time, he/she may request and, upon such 

approval, shall receive a payroll check for the wages which normally would be 

earned during the duration of the employee’s vacation.  Employees must give one 

pay period advance notice of such a request.  

SECTION 6. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
A. Employees shall be granted three (3) days bereavement leave for purposes of 

 arranging and attending the funeral of a member of the employee’s immediate 

 family.  Bereavement leave shall only be granted on the employee’s regularly 

 scheduled work days.  Bereavement leave shall not be deducted from an 

 employee’s accrued sick leave. 

B. Immediate family is defined as spouse, mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-

 law, sister, brother, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, child, stepchild, guardian, 

 stepfather, stepmother, registered domestic partner, grandparents or 

 grandchildren. 

C. The City may require an employee to submit evidence of the relationship to the 

 employee and the death of the immediate family member. 

SAFETYSECTION 7. SAFETY EQUIPMENT AND UNIFORMS 
 A. Uniforms 

In the event the City requires employees to wear a special uniform, the City 

agrees to furnish said uniforms and the laundry thereof at no cost to the 

employees.  Employees provided uniforms shall receive five (5) shirt and pant 

changes per week. 

 B. Safety Shoes 

- Page 148 -

Item 14.



 

16 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

 Any employee covered by this agreement whose duties require them to perform 

 work which expose their feet to potential harm or danger shall be required to wear 

 safety shoes during working hours.  The specifications for the shoes will be 

 determined by the City.  The City shall provide one (1) pair of shoes every July, 

 and will contribute up to two-hundred fifty ($200.00 $250.00) dollars, plus sales 

 tax, towards the purchase.  If an employee chooses a shoe whose cost is above 

 what the City contributes, it shall be the responsibility of the employee to pay 

 the difference.  The employee must demonstrate to their supervisor that the 

 shoes they wish to replace need to be replaced.  Should an employee’s work 

 render the shoes ineffective for purposes of foot safety in a period of less than 

 twelve (12) months, that employee must demonstrate to their supervisor or 

 Department Head that the shoes need to be replaced before a second pair will 

 be provided.   

 C. A City cell phone shall be provided to all workers when placed on standby status. 

SECTION 8. JURY DUTY 
An employee who is summoned for attendance to any court for jury duty during his/her normal 

working hours shall be deemed to be on duty and there shall be no loss of salary.  All jury duty 

fees received by an employee shall be paid to the City.  Compensation for mileage or subsistence 

allowances while serving on a jury are not considered as a fee and shall be retained by the 

employee.  Any employee who is called as a witness arising out of any matter in the course of 

his/her City employment shall be deemed to be on duty and there shall be no loss of salary.  Any 

witness fees received by an employee shall be paid to the City along with any mileage payment 

if the employee uses City transportation.  An employee absent as a witness in a private matter 

shall not be entitled to be paid during such absence. 

Nothing herein shall be deemed to affect the right of the City Manager to discuss with the 

employee the possibility and practicability of seeking an exemption or excuse from jury duty or 

as a witness as may legally be available, or postponement of such service when absence by the 

employee would create undue hardship for the employer or the employee’s department, or would 

materially affect required service to the public.   

SECTION 9. STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 

- Page 149 -

Item 14.



 

17 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

All employees covered by this Agreement are covered by the State of California Disability 

Insurance program.  The costs of participating in the program are paid for by the employees. 

SECTION 10. EMPLOYEE PHYSICAL EXAMINATION 
The City reserves the right to require an employee to submit to a fitness for duty medical 

examination.  In doing so, the City shall comply with the pertinent requirements of the U.S. 

Americans with Disabilities Act and the California Fair Employment & Housing Act.  The City 

shall pay the cost of the examination.  An employee may elect to be examined by his/her 

physician.  If an employee elects to be examined by his/her physician the employee must pay the 

cost of the examination, and have all City supplied examination forms completed and returned to 

the City.  An employee who fails to comply with the provisions of this section may be 

disciplined and required to submit to an examination by a City selected physician.  The employee 

shall pay the cost of such an examination.  Examinations shall not include testing for drugs. 

SECTION 11. EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT 
The City will reimburse employees fifty percent (50%) of tuition for continuing education in 

non-job related courses and one hundred percent (100%) of tuition for classes in job related 

courses.  Payment is predicated on an employee receiving a 2.0 grade or better, and is based 

upon a fiscal year.  The City will also reimburse employees one hundred percent (100%) of the 

cost of job-related college preparatory classes, certifications, professional licensure preparatory 

classes, vehicle or equipment certification and/or Class A or B license fees, and renewal fees on 

such certifications and/or licenses.  The cost to the City for the reimbursements shall not exceed 

five thousand dollars ($5,000) per employee for a twelve (12) month period.  Requests for 

reimbursement must be submitted and approved prior to enrolling in a course or applying for a 

certification, license or renewal. 

SECTION 12. MEDICAL FLEX PLAN 
The City will provide and administer an “employee benefits plan” for medical expenses pursuant 

to Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Service Code.  Participation in the plan is voluntary.  The 

annual deduction is determined by the Internal Revenue Service.  

ARTICLE 7 – WORKING CONDITIONS 

SECTION 1. HOURS OF WORK 

- Page 150 -

Item 14.



 

18 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

All departments shall observe office and working hours necessary for the efficient transaction of 

service as determined by the City Manager.  The very nature of the services performed by the 

City makes it impossible for all departments to operate on the same schedule of working hours. 

A. The employees’ normal work period shall be based on a 4/10 work schedule, 

whereby employees will work ten (10) hours per day Monday through Thursday, 

between the hours of 5:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., with the exception of Senior Center 

employees, who will be off either Monday or Friday as determined by the City 

Manager or designee, and the Park Ranger who will work weekends and receive 

two (2) consecutive days off, and one Building Maintenance Worker who will be 

off Sunday, Monday, and Tuesday. 

B. Overtime shall be paid for hours worked in excess of ten (10) hours per day or in 

 excess of forty (40) hours per workweek.  

C. Holidays, floating holidays and vacation hours will be computed at the rate of ten 

 (10) hours per day. 

D. Work schedules for the Senior Center, and Park Ranger, and Building 

 Maintenance Worker employees may vary from the above alternative work 

 schedules based on operational needs. Employees at the Senior Center shall work 

 a 9/80 schedule,  and Park Ranger employees shall work five (5) days a week, 

 eight (8) hours a day with two (2) consecutive days off, and one Building 

 Maintenance Worker shall work a 4/10 schedule with three (3) consecutive days 

 offs. 

E. Departments may require alternative work schedules for some employees to meet 

 the demands of operations, including weekends and evenings.  The City will 

 exercise its efforts in good faith, subject to the requirements of operations to the 

 end that employees will be scheduled on a normal work pattern which shall be 

 four (4) consecutive days on and three (3) consecutive days off in any scheduled 

 work week with the exceptions noted for the Senior Center, and Park Ranger, and 

 one Building Maintenance Worker. 

SECTION 2. REST PERIODS 

- Page 151 -

Item 14.



 

19 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

A. Employees may be allowed up to a fifteen (15) minute rest period in accordance 

with department rules during each half of the regular work day or regular work 

shift. 

B. Rest periods will not be taken at the beginning or end of either half of the regular 

work day or work shift. 

C. Rest periods may not be accumulated, nor shall such rest periods have any 

monetary value if unused. 

D. Breaks must may be taken at away from the work site or at a City facility.  If 

moving by vehicle, employees are required to use their own personal vehicle. 

SECTION 3. MEAL PERIOD 
Employees shall be entitled to an unpaid meal period not to exceed one (1) hour per regular work 

day or regular work shift.  The amount of time for the meal period and the procedure for taking a 

meal period shall be established by departmental rules and regulations. 

SECTION 4. ATTENDANCE 
Employees shall normally be in attendance at their, work in accordance with City regulations 

governing hours of work, holidays, and leaves.  Failure on the part of an employee to notify the 

City of an absence in accordance with the City’s rules shall be considered adequate reason for 

dismissal. 

SECTION 5. OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 
A. No employee in the City service shall hold any job or employment outside of the 

City service without written approval from his or her Department Head or the 

City Manager.  Approval may be requested at any time, shall be renewed each 

July, and must be re-obtained any time outside employment changes. 

B. Outside employment will not be permitted if (a) it would physically or mentally 

impair or hamper the employee in the discharge of his/her duties, (b) it would 

place the employee in conflict with the City in any fashion, or (c) it would reflect 

adversely upon the employee or the City.  The employee may appeal the decision 

of the Department Head to the City Manager. 

C. The City Manager reserves the right to prohibit any outside employment on the 

part of any City employee which may be detrimental to the best interests of the 

City.  In such cases, the employee would be given appropriate warning and then 

- Page 152 -

Item 14.



 

20 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

must decide between his or her City position and the outside employment.  

Employees, may not engage outside business activities while on duty, nor may 

City equipment or property be used for any other reason than City functions. 

D. The procedure to be followed in requesting approval of outside employment is as 

follows: 

1. Employee must submit a written request to his or her Department Head on 

a form provided by the City. 

2. The Department Head shall approve or deny the employee’s request and 

notify the requesting employee immediately. 

3. The request, whether approved or denied, shall be routed to the City 

Manager. 

4. Appropriate follow-up action will be taken if requested (i.e., appeal of 

denial by employee directly to the City Manager). 

SECTION 6. LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
A. General Policy 

The following types of leave, and no other, are officially recognized: holidays, 

vacations, sick, military, jury leave and leave without pay.  All leaves may be 

granted by the Department Head in conformance with rules established for each 

type of leave and shall be referred to the City Manager for approval.  All absences 

of one (1) hour or more must be reported to the personnel office on forms 

provided by the personnel office and on the payroll records of the payroll clerk. 

B. Military Leave 

In accordance with provisions of State Law, an employee shall be granted military 

leave of absence from his/her position during the actual duration of such activity. 

SECTION 7. PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
A. The probationary period is an integral part of the employment process.  It shall be 

utilized to observe a new or promoted employee in his/her position, and to reject 

any employee whose performance does not meet the required work standards. 

B. All original and promotional appointments shall be tentative and subject to a 

probationary period. 

- Page 153 -

Item 14.



 

21 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

1. Original appointments: A six (6) month probationary period provided that 

the City, at its discretion, may extend a probationary period for an 

additional six (6) months.  A rehired permanent employee, returning 

within six (6) months of termination, shall have a six (6) month 

probationary period and shall have all seniority restored for promotional 

and vacation purposes. 

2. Promotional appointments: A six (6) month probationary period.  The 

City, at its discretion, may extend a promotional probationary period for 

an additional six (6) months.  The City will notify the union within five (5) 

working days of any extension of a probationary period. 

3. All sick leave, suspensions or leaves shall extend the probationary period 

by an equal amount of time. 

C. During the probationary period the Department Head, with the concurrence of the 

City Manager, may remove an employee who is unable or unwilling to perform 

the duties of the position satisfactorily or whose habits and dependability do not 

merit his/her continuance in the service.  The Department Head shall immediately 

report such removal to the Human Resources Manager and to the employee and 

shall state his/her reasons in writing. 

D. If an employee is removed from a position during or at the end of his/her 

probationary period, and the Human Resources Manager determines that the 

individual is suitable for appointment to another position, his/her name may be 

restored to the list from which it was certified.  An employee promoted to a new 

class who does not successfully complete his/her probationary period shall be 

reinstated to a position in the class occupied by the employee immediately prior to 

promotion. 

SECTION 8. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
A. Employees shall receive an annual performance review on the anniversary date of 

 their current classification. 

B. Teamsters Local 1932 shop stewards shall receive a list of all upcoming 

 evaluations on a quarterly basis. 

BC. Performance evaluations are grievable on a standard grievance form.  

- Page 154 -

Item 14.



 

22 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

SECTION 9. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 
All persons employed by the City are covered under the California State Workers’ Compensation 

system.  Workers’ compensation insurance covers all job-related injuries and provides for 

payment of medical expenses.  Workers’ compensation death benefits are provided as required 

by law.  No cost is incurred by the employee for this benefit.  All costs are incurred by the City. 

SECTION 10. DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
A. Whenever an employee’s performance, attitude, work habits or personal conduct 

 at any time falls below a desirable level, supervisors shall inform the employee 

 promptly and specifically of such lapses.  If appropriate and justified, a 

 reasonable period of time for improvement may be allowed before initiating 

 disciplinary action.  In some instances a specific incident may justify severe 

 disciplinary action.  The action to be taken depends on the seriousness of the 

 incident and the whole pattern of the employee’s past performance and conduct. 

B. Types of Disciplinary Action 

 1. Repimand: In situations where oral warnings have not resulted in   

  improvement, or where more severe initial action is warranted a written  

  reprimand may be sent to the employee and a copy shall be placed in the  

  employee’s personnel file. 

2. Disciplinary Actions: Refer to demotions, reductions in pay, suspensions 

 without pay, and terminations.  Disciplinary actions may be imposed upon 

 an employee for good cause only as follows: 

a. The Department Head shall give written notice (“Notice of 

Proposed Discipline”) to the employee and the Human Resources 

Manager of the cause or causes for such disciplinary action, 

together with a narrative written statement of the facts relied upon 

to establish the basis for the proposed disciplinary action.  Any 

documents relied upon by the Department Head in establishing 

cause shall be provided to the employee and the Human Resources 

Manager with the “Notice of Proposed Discipline.” 

- Page 155 -

Item 14.



 

23 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

b. The Department Head may not impose the disciplinary action 

proposed in the “Notice of Proposed Discipline” before conducting 

a formal (“Skelly”) meeting with the employee, if the employee 

and/or Association request such a meeting.  The employee and 

Association shall have five (5) working days (Monday-Thursday, 

excluding holidays) from receipt of the “Notice of Proposed 

Discipline” to request a meeting with the Department Head. 

c. If the employee or the Association requests a meeting within the 

time frame outlined in paragraph (b) above, the Department Head 

shall schedule a meeting and shall give at least ten (10) working 

days (Monday-Thursday, excluding holidays) written notice of 

such meeting to the employee and the Association.   

d. At the meeting referred to in the preceding paragraph, the 

employee and/or the Association shall be permitted to present any 

competent and relevant evidence tending to prove or disprove the 

facts upon which the disciplinary action is based.  The Department 

Head may be accompanied or otherwise assisted in disciplinary 

matters by staff and/or legal counsel.  Based on his/her review of 

the evidence following the meeting, the Department Head may 

affirm, modify or rescind the proposed disciplinary action.  Within 

five (5) working days (Monday-Thursday, excluding holidays) 

following the meeting, the Department Head shall give written 

notice of his/her determination and “Order of Discipline” to the 

employee and the Human Resources Manager. 

1. Appeals of Disciplinary Actions: The decision of the Department Head is 

final and not subject to further appeal except for terminations, disciplinary 

suspensions without pay, demotions and pay reductions for disciplinary 

purposes, which may be appealed as follows: 

a. Within ten (10) working days (Monday-Thursday, excluding 

holidays) of receiving the Order of Discipline, the employee or the 

Association shall submit a written appeal to the Human Resources 

Manager. 

- Page 156 -

Item 14.



 

24 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

b. A Hearing Panel composed of three (3) people will hear the appeal.  

One (1) member of the Hearing Panel shall be appointed by the 

employee, and one member of the Hearing Panel shall be 

appointed by the Human Resources Manager.  The third member 

of the Hearing Panel, who shall act as chair, shall be mutually 

selected by the employee and the Human Resources Manager from 

a list of arbitrators to be obtained from the California State 

Mediation and Conciliation Service, which list shall be requested 

within five (5) working days (Monday-Thursday, excluding 

holidays) from the date of the appeal.  After the selection of the 

arbitrator, the Human Resources Manager shall schedule an 

evidentiary hearing before the Hearing Panel within twenty (20) 

working days (Monday-Thursday, excluding holidays) from the 

date of the appeal, or as soon as possible depending upon the 

availability of the arbitrator.  Each side shall bear the cost of their 

individually selected panel member, and the cost of the mutually 

selected panel member shall be borne equally by the City and the 

Association. 

c. Within ten (10) working days (Monday-Thursday, excluding 

holidays) of the close of said hearing, the Hearing Panel shall 

provide a written statement of its recommendation, including any 

findings, to the Human Resources Manager and the employee. 

d. Within five (5) working days (Monday-Thursday, excluding 

holidays) after their respective receipt thereof, the Human 

Resources Manager shall forward the Hearing Panel’s written 

statement of recommendation to the City Manager for his 

consideration. 

e. The City Manager shall review and consider the record of the 

proceedings before the hearing panel, and shall accept, reject or 

modify the recommendation and/or findings.  Written notice of the 

decision and any required findings by the City Manager shall be 

delivered to the employee within ten (10) working days (Monday-

- Page 157 -

Item 14.



 

25 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

Thursday, excluding holidays) of the City Manager’s receipt of the 

Hearing Panel’s statement of recommendation.  The decision of the 

City Manager shall be final and not subject to any further appeal. 

SECTION 110. SEPARATION 
All separations of employees from positions in the classified service shall be designated as one 

of the following types and shall be accomplished in the manner indicated: resignation, layoff, 

disability, death, retirement, and dismissal. 

 A. Resignation 

An employee may resign by submitting to his/her Department Head in writing the 

reasons therefore and the effective date.  As much advance notification as 

possible is requested but a minimum of two weeks’ notice is desired.  Failure to 

comply with this requirement may be cause for denying future employment with 

the City. 

 B. Layoff 

1. Purpose for Layoffs 

For reasons of economy, efficiency, or in the interest or mandate of the 

public, reductions of City services may be required.  Whenever, in the 

judgment of the City Council, it becomes necessary, the City Council may 

eliminate positions, and the employees holding such positions may be laid 

off. 

2. Seniority and Order of Layoff 

a. Seniority shall be by date of first employment in the employee’s 

current classification.  Layoffs shall be in reverse seniority order in 

the affected classification, with junior employees being laid off 

before senior employees.  No full-time permanent employee may 

be laid off while any temporary, probationary or part-time 

employees, or any employees with less seniority are retained in the 

affected classification.  A senior employee who is to be laid off 

shall have the right to bump a junior employee in a lower paying 

classification provided that the senior employee shall have 

- Page 158 -

Item 14.



 

26 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

previously established permanent status in the position into which 

she/he wishes to bump. 

b. If an employee exercises bumping rights to a lower classification, 

said employee shall have the right to be the next person promoted 

to the classification from which he or she was laid off for a period 

of 24 months from the effective date of the lay-off action. 

3. The duties performed by an employee laid off may be reassigned to other 

employees already working who hold positions in appropriate classes. 

4. Reinstatement List and Recall Rights 

a. Full-time permanent employees of the City who are laid off from 

the competitive service in good standing shall have their names 

placed on a recall list for a period not to exceed two (2) years from 

date of layoff, and shall be eligible for recall for any vacancies 

within the same position classification held by the employee, 

provided that the employee meets the minimum qualification and 

is able to perform the duties of the job.  Laid off employees 

applying for vacancies in other position classifications shall be 

given preference provided they meet the minimum qualifications 

for the position and are able to perform the duties of the job. 

b. Once recalled, reinstated employees will be restored to the same 

seniority rights and benefits in effect for the employee at time of 

layoff, unless subsequent changes in the MOU have been made in 

the intervening time regarding a particular benefit, in which case 

the newer MOU language regarding benefit entitlement will take 

precedent. 

c. After expiration of the two (2) year recall list, laid off employees 

will be treated the same as internal candidates for employment 

recruitment purposes only in accordance with the “Recruiting, 

Hiring and Promotions of Classified Employees” policy for a 

period of twelve (12) months after approval of this MOU. 

5. Payment for Accumulated Leave 

- Page 159 -

Item 14.



 

27 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

The laid-off employee shall have the option of receiving payment for any 

accumulated vacation leave compensatory time, or “frozen” sick leave 

with a cash value in accordance with the provisions of the MOU and 

respective City policies, at any time during the layoff period.  Payment 

shall be made in one (1) full payment.  An employee electing to defer 

automatic payment of these leave balances by the City must notify the 

Human Resources Department in writing of their choice.  If payment is 

not selected at the end of the two (2) year period the City will 

automatically pay the employee the amount to which he or she is entitled.  

Once an employee elects payment of any balances, the payment will be 

subject to the provisions applicable for those programs in effect at the time 

of reinstatement. 

6. Severance Pay 

 The laid-off employee will be provided four (4) weeks of severance pay. 

C. Disability 

An employee may be separated when he/she cannot perform the essential duties 

of the position with or without reasonable accommodation(s) because of physical 

or mental disability.  Action may be initiated by the employee, his/her legal 

representative, or the City, but in all cases, it must be supported by medical 

evidence acceptable to the City Manager.  The City may require an examination at 

its expense to be performed by a City selected physician. 

D. Death 

Separation shall be effective as of the date of death.  All compensation due in 

accordance with these rules shall be paid to the estate of the employee, except for 

such sums which by law must be paid to the surviving spouse. 

E. Retirement 

Whenever an employee meets the conditions set forth in these rules and PERS 

Regulations, he/she may elect to retire and receive all benefits earned under the 

Retirement Plan. 

F. Dismissal 

The City Manager may dismiss any employee for the good of the service.  

Reasons for dismissal may include, but shall not be limited to: 

- Page 160 -

Item 14.



 

28 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

1. Failure to meet the prescribed standards of work, morality and ethics to an 

extent that makes an employee unsuitable for any kind of employment in 

the City service. 

2. Theft or destruction of City property. 

3. Incompetence, inefficiency, or negligence in the performance of duty. 

4. Insubordination that constitutes a serious breach of discipline. 

5. Conviction of a criminal offense. 

6. Notoriously disgraceful personal conduct. 

7. Unauthorized absences or abuse of leave privileges. 

8. Acceptance of any valuable consideration which was given with the 

expectation of influencing the employee in the performance of his/her 

duties. 

9. Falsification of records or use of official position for personal advantage. 

10. Intoxication or drinking during working hours or drinking on City 

property. 

11. If an employee’s wages are garnished for more than three (3) debts within 

one (1) year, such an employee may be subject to disciplinary action. 

  Any employee who has been discharged shall be entitled to receive a written  

  statement of the reasons for such action and to a hearing before the City Manager  

  if he/she so requests, as provided in these rules. 

G. City Equipment 

At the time of separation and prior to final payment, all records, assets and other 

items of City property in the employee’s custody shall be transferred to the 

Department Head and certification to this effect shall be executed by the 

employee.  Any amount due because of a shortage in the above shall be collected 

through appropriate legal action if not voluntarily paid by the employee. 

H. Rights of Employees 

Regular employees who separate from City employment shall receive payment for 

all earned salary and earned annual leave. 

ARTICLE 8 – SECURITY PROVISIONS 

- Page 161 -

Item 14.



 

29 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

SECTION 1.  DUES CHECKOFF 
CCEA Teamsters Local 1932 is authorized to use payroll deductions for collecting employee 

organizational dues on a monthly basis. 

SECTION 2. MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP 
A. Any unit member who is a member of the CCEA (“Association”) or who has 

applied for membership, may sign and deliver to the City an assignment 

authorizing deduction of membership dues, initiation fees, and general 

assessments in the Union.  Pursuant to such authorization, the City shall deduct 

the monthly amount certified by the Association to be the dues required for the 

employee’s membership in the Association from the unit member’s regular 

paycheck.  Any unit member who is a member of the Association shall maintain 

membership for the duration of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.  

B. Any unit member who is not a member of the Association or who does not make 

application for membership within 30 days following ratification between the 

parties or within 30 days from the date of commencement of assigned duties, shall 

become a member of the Association shall pay to the Association a fee in an 

amount equal to membership dues, initiation fees, and general assessments via 

automatic payroll deduction by the City and in the same manner as set forth in 

paragraph A of this Article.  There shall be no charge to the Association for such 

mandatory agency fee deduction. 

1. Any unit member who is a member of a religious body whose traditional 

tenets or teachings include objections to joining or financially supporting 

labor organizations and shall not be required to join or financially support 

the labor organizations and shall not be required to join or financially 

support the Union; except that such unit member shall pay, in lieu of a 

service fee, sums equal to such service fee to one of the following non-

religious non-labor organizations, charitable funds, which are exempt from 

taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of Title 26 of the Internal Revenue Code: 

a. United Way 
b. American Cancer Society 
c. To be determined 

- Page 162 -

Item 14.



 

30 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

2. Any employee claiming these exemptions shall furnish the Union and the 

City with copies of receipts from the charity selected as proof that such 

payments have been made or shall authorize payroll deduction of such 

payments.  Such proof shall be presented on or before January 1 of each 

year. 

C. With respect to all sums deducted by the City pursuant to paragraphs A and B

 above, whether for membership dues or agency fee, the City agrees to remit such 

 moneys promptly to the Association together with alphabetical list of employees 

 for whom such deductions have been made,  categorizing them as to member or 

 non-members of the Association and  indicating any changes in personnel from the 

 list previously furnished. 

D. The Association agrees to furnish any information needed  by the City to fulfill 

 the provisions of this Article. 

E. The Association shall comply with the requirements of Government Code  Section 

 3502.5(f) and shall timely provide to both the City  and to the bargaining  unit 

 members the required annual financial information.   

F. The Association shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its City Council 

 members, officers, agents, attorneys and employees from any and all claims, 

 demands, suits or other liability and/or expense pertaining  to the organizational 

 security provisions of this agreement, the process, or decision of the union. 

 provided that the union shall have the exclusive right to decide and determine 

 whether any such action shall be compromised, resisted, defended, tried or 

 appealed.  

The Union shall have the sole and exclusive right to have membership dues deducted by the City 

for employees covered under this Agreement, upon appropriate written authorization submitted 

by such employees to Teamsters Local 1932.  Teamsters Local 1932 shall advise the City in 

writing of the membership dues to be deducted for each member.  The City shall make 

remittance to the Union within fifteen (15) working days of the deduction of such sums.  

Teamsters Local 1932 shall notify the City in writing of any change in dues thirty (30) days prior 

to the effective date of such change.  The Union shall, as soon as possible, notify the City in 

writing if any member of the bargaining unit revokes a membership dues authorization. 

 

- Page 163 -

Item 14.



 

31 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

Teamsters Local 1932 shall notify the City in writing of any employee who hereinafter comes 

into the bargaining unit and who has provided appropriate written authorization to Teamsters 

Local 1932.  The City shall deduct the approved bi-weekly membership dues within the first pay 

period upon receiving written notification from Teamsters Local 1932.   

 
The City shall forward a monthly report to the Union and the Assigned Business Agent, which 

will include any all personnel actions (new hires, terminations, transfers, promotions, home 

address changes, etc.) within the Unit. 

SECTION 3. CHANGES IN COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
The City will provide the CCEA Teamsters Local 1932 with any greater economic benefits 

provided to any other bargaining unit that they may receive, either through settlement or impasse 

proceedings, from contracts effective after July 1, 20179, including fact finding or mediation. 

ARTICLE 9 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

SECTION 1. USE OF VEHICLES AND CREDIT CARDS 
 A. Vehicles 
  City-owned vehicles may be used only when employees are in the official   

  discharge of their duties.  No person may ride in a City-owned vehicle unless on  

  City business.  Absolutely no hitchhikers may be picked up at any time.  City  

  vehicles may not be used for personal business and such use shall be grounds for  

  disciplinary action.  Keeping a City vehicle overnight and use to and from work is 

  not necessarily considered as discharge of duties.  Such use may be allowed only  

  as a condition of employment or if an employee’s job is of a nature that requires  

  him/her to respond to an emergency or call-in. 

 B. Speed Limit 

  City vehicles shall be driven in compliance with all State, City and County laws,  

  rules and ordinances.  No vehicle shall be driven above the posted speed limit  

  except when the necessary sirens and lights are used while responding to   

  emergency situations. 

 C. Courtesy 

- Page 164 -

Item 14.



 

32 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

  All common courtesies of the road shall be exercised whenever practical.  The  

  manner in which vehicles are operated reflect upon the reputation of all City  

  employees. 

 D. Accidents 

  All accidents involving City vehicles and private property are to be reported to the 

  Police Department immediately and to the City Manager as prescribed by the  

  City’s accident report procedure.  Failure to report any accident involving City  

  vehicles within one (1) working day may be construed as an attempt to conceal  

  the accident.  An employee may be warned, suspended or terminated for failing to 

  comply with this provision. 

E. CCEA Teamsters Local 1932 and the City jointly recognize the need for safe 

 equipment and the proper operation of all equipment.  To help achieve a safe 

 work environment the parties agree that: 

1. Every effort will be made to ensure that all motorized equipment is 

maintained properly with prompt repairs made as needed. 

2. Each equipment accident will be analyzed.  A formal report will be made 

available to all involved employees.  Employees judged to have 

contributed to an accident may be held financially responsible for 

damages. 

3. An employee has the right to question if a vehicle is safe to operate. 

4. Vehicle check lists will be used for all vehicular equipment. 

F. Parking 
  City vehicles which are taken home by employees shall not be parked on public  

  streets. 

 G. Unattended Vehicles 
The California Vehicle Code makes it unlawful to leave vehicles running and 

unattended.  Violations of this law will result in disciplinary action. 

 H. Backing of Vehicles 

No City trucks will be backed up without the assistance of a second person 

stationed on the rear of and to the side of a City truck while they are being backed 

up. 

 I. Credit Cards 

- Page 165 -

Item 14.



 

33 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

City-owned gasoline company credit cards are to be used only when it is 

impractical to use City facilities at City Hall.  Credit cards shall not be used for 

meals or lodging unless authorized in advance by the City Manager. 

SECTION 2. NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 
A. The City and CCEA Teamsters Local 1932 agree that both parties have a crucial 

role in the development and implementation of equal employment opportunities.  

Both parties mutually accept responsibility for carrying out these provisions. 

B. The parties agree to cooperate actively and positively in supporting the concept of 

equal opportunity for all employees and to seek and achieve the highest potential 

and productivity in employment situations.  The City agrees to provide 

encouragement and assistance opportunities so that all employees may utilize 

their abilities to the fullest extent. 

C. The City will exert every effort possible to encourage upward mobility of 

employees now at lower grade levels so that they may work at their fullest 

potential. 

D. The provisions of this agreement shall be applied equally to all employees subject 

to the agreement without regard to sex (including pregnancy, gender identity, 

gender expression and sexual orientation, marital status, race, color, creed, 

religion, national origin, union affiliation, political affiliation, ancestry, mental 

disability, physical disability, sexual orientation,  age (40 and above), veteran 

status or medical condition (cancer or genetic characteristic), or any other 

protected class under applicable law. 

SECTION 3. ACCESS TO AGREEMENT 
Upon enactment of this agreement, the City will, within thirty (30) days, provide each employee 

with a copy of this Agreement. 

SECTION 4. REPRESENTATION 
It is agreed that the bargaining unit covered by the Agreement does not include management 

personnel. 

SECTION 5. NO STRIKE/NO LOCK OUT 

- Page 166 -

Item 14.



 

34 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

The Association Teamsters Local 1932, its officers, agents, representatives and/or members 

agree that during the term of this Agreement they will not cause or condone any strike, walkout, 

slowdown, stick-out, or any other job action by withholding or refusing to perform services. 

The City agrees that it shall not lockout its employees during the term of this Agreement.  The 

term “lockout” is hereby defined so as not to include the discharge, suspension, termination, 

layoff, failure to recall or failure to return to work of employees of the City in the exercise of its 

rights as set forth in any of the provisions of this Agreement or applicable ordinance or law. 

ARTICLE 10 – EMPLOYEE/EMPLOYER RELATIONS 

SECTION 1. LABOR/MANAGEMENT COOPERATION COMMITTEE 
A Labor/Management Committee shall be established for the following purposes: 

A. To improve communication between representatives of Labor and Management; 

B. To study and explore ways of eliminating potential problems between the City 

and its employees; 

C. This Committee is not intended to circumvent, replace or modify the grievance 

procedure. 

D. The City and CCEA Teamsters Local 1932 agree to create a subcommittee to 

meet and confer on revisions to City’s Personnel Rules. 

SECTION 2. GRIEVANCES 

A. Extent – A grievance of a wrong, real or fancied, considered by an employee as 

grounds for complaint, except in a case of a personnel action arising out of 

position, classification pay, demotion, suspension and dismissal.  The adjustment 

of complaints arising therefrom are separately provided for. 

B. Policy - The most effective accomplishment of the work of the City requires 

prompt consideration and equitable adjustment of employee grievances.  It is the 

desire of the City to adjust grievances informally, and both supervisors and 

employees are expected to make every effort to resolve problems as they arise.  

However, it is recognized that there will be grievances which will be resolved 

only after a formal appeal and review.  Accordingly, the following procedure is 

established. 

- Page 167 -

Item 14.



 

35 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

C. Procedure – An employee or the employee representative shall first present the 

grievance to the employee’s immediate supervisor, who shall make inquiry into 

the facts and circumstances of the complaint.  The supervisor shall attempt to 

resolve the matter promptly and fairly. 

An employee, if dissatisfied with the decision of the supervisor, may submit the 

 grievance in writing to the Department Head.  The Department Head shall make a 

 separate investigation and inform the employee in writing of his/her decision and the 

 reason therefore within seven (7) working days (Monday-Thursday, excluding holidays) 

 after receipt of the employee’s grievance.  If the employee is dissatisfied with the 

 Department Head’s decision he/she may request in writing a review by the City Manager 

 within seven (7) working days (Monday-Thursday, excluding holidays) following the 

 receipt of the decision of the Department Head.  The City Manager shall make an 

 investigation and conduct such hearings as he/she deems necessary and shall within 

 fifteen (15) working days (Monday-Thursday, excluding holidays) after the receipt of the 

 employee’s request for review, inform the employee in writing of his/her findings and 

 decision.  The decision of the City Manager shall be final.  The City shall make available 

 to the employee or the employee representative a standard grievance form.   

 If a grievance challenges an action of the City Manager taken prior to the time it would 

 reach him/her under this procedure, he/she shall not review the grievance as City 

 Manager.  The final step in the procedure shall be reviewed by the City Manager or 

 equivalent official from another local agency who shall discharge the function normally 

 performed by the City Manager under this procedure. 

SECTION 3. STEWARDS 

The Association Teamsters Local 1932 may be represented by CCEA Officers four (4) Stewards.  

The Association Teamsters Local 1932 shall notify the City in writing of the employees selected 

to act as CCEA Officers Stewards, as well as to provide notice if employee representation 

changes during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding.  CCEA Officers Stewards shall, 

unless performing CCEA Officer steward representative duties, shall be and remain at their 

regular place of work.  CCEA Officers shall be authorized to devote time during working hours 

to perform the following duties, for which the City will pay for reasonable periods of time to 

- Page 168 -

Item 14.



 

36 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

perform those duties: to present a grievance, to investigate a grievance, to confer with a 

Association legal staff and/or Department Head and to attend grievance meetings with 

Department Heads and/or the City Manager.  Not more than one (1) of the designated steward 

representatives may participate in any special meeting to resolve a problem within the scope of 

bargaining or grievance hearing at one time, unless authorized by the City Manager. 

 

The City will provide Teamsters Local 1932 fifty (50) hours per fiscal year per steward for all 

steward meetings, trainings, and executive board meetings during work hours.  Any unused 

hours remaining at the end of the fiscal year will not carry over.  This release time shall be paid 

City time.  Stewards are required to inform their immediate supervisor of such meetings, 

trainings, and executive board meetings a minimum of five (5) business days in advance.  

Supervisors have the discretion to deny attendance to ensure that work locations are adequately 

covered if necessary.  Stewards will record the date and amount of time spent on such activities 

using the City’s online timekeeping system.  

 

In accordance with SB 1085, Teamsters Local 1932 agrees to reimburse the City for all 

compensation and benefits paid to a steward for additional release time requested by Teamsters 

Local 1932 that fall outside normal steward duties, as listed above.  Stewards will record the date 

and amount of time spent on additional release time using the City’s online timekeeping system.  

The City will submit a request for reimbursement to Teamsters Local 1932 on a monthly basis 

and Teamsters Local 1932 will reimburse the City within thirty (30) days of receipt of said 

request. 

SECTION 3. COMPENSATION STUDY 
The City agrees to complete a new Compensation Study, using an agency other than Koff & 

Associates, by no later September 1, 2017.  Employees whose rate of pay is found to be below 

the median of the specified cities used in the 2017 Koff & Associates study will be placed on the 

lowest step in the new range which exceeds the employee’s present rate of pay by at least five 

percent (5%).  Any pay adjustments will be retroactive to July 1, 2017.  Any employee found to 

be above the median will not be Y-rated nor have their pay reduced. 

  ARTICLE 11 – BULLETIN BOARD 
 

- Page 169 -

Item 14.



 

37 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

The City will furnish a reasonable portion of existing bulletin board space for notices of 

Teamsters.  Only areas designated by the appropriate authority may be used for posting of 

notices.  Bulletin boards shall only be used for the following notices: 
   
 A. Scheduled Teamsters meetings, agendas and minutes. 

 B. Information on Teamsters elections and the results. 

 C. Information regarding Teamsters social, recreational, and related news bulletins. 

 D. Reports of official business of Teamsters, including reports of committees or the  

  Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE 12 – JOB POSTINGS 
 
The City will send notification of Miscellaneous Unit job openings to Teamsters for posting at 

their Training Center.  

ARTICLE 131 – CONTRACTING 

In the event the City determines a service and/or program will be contracted out, City agrees that 

any Request for a Proposal for contracting out a service and/or program will not displace any 

current employee. The City will agree to meet and confer with the Association Teamsters Local 

1932 and give notice as required by law. 

ARTICLE 142  – TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES 

The City shall have the right to hire temporary employees (casuals) at the appropriate 

classification as outlined in this MOU as determined by the Department Head.  Such employees 

shall not be covered by this MOU and shall not be employed in excess of one hundred twenty 

(120) consecutive working days within any twelve (12) month calendar month period time.  If an 

temporary employee is employed in excess of one hundred twenty (120) consecutive working 

days in a calendar year, then that temporary employee will be covered by the MOU and become 

a regular employee.   

A temporary employee may hold a position for one hundred twenty (120) working days in any 

twelve (12) month period.  If an employee is employed in excess of one hundred twenty (120) 

- Page 170 -

Item 14.



 

38 
SANITARY/MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES MOU 20179-201921 

 

working days, then that employee will be covered by the MOU and become a regular 

employee. 

SECTION ARTICLE 153 – EFFECTIVE DATES 

SECTION 1. PROVISION EFFECTIVE 
The provisions of this Agreement shall be effective commencing July 1, 20179, except as 

otherwise specified in this Agreement and shall remain in effect until June 30, 201921, or until 

superseded by another Agreement. 

SECTION 2. SEPARABILITY 
If any section, subsection, sentence, or clause or phrase of this Agreement is for any reason held 

to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Agreement.  The City and 

CCEA Teamsters Local 1932 hereby declare that they would have enacted this Agreement and 

each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one 

or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

ARTICLE 16 – REOPENER 

In the case that the City’s cannabis revenue increases to one million dollars ($1,000,000) at the 

end of the fiscal year July 1, 2020, the City will reopen negotiations on the issue of longevity. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 171 -

Item 14.



- Page 172 -

Item 14.



Appendix A
1 of 3

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule
Sanitary/Miscellaneous Employees

July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020
3% COLA effective July 1, 2019

Position Title Step A B C D E
"O" 

Performance 

Step (5%)
Accountant h 29.98 31.48 33.04 34.70 36.44 38.26

m 5196.53 5456.53 5726.93 6014.67 6316.27 6631.73
Grade 13 a 62358.40 65478.40 68723.20 72176.00 75795.20 79580.80
Accounting Technician h 25.49 26.77 28.10 29.51 30.99 32.55

m 4418.27 4640.13 4870.67 5115.07 5371.60 5642.00
Grade 7 a 53019.20 55681.60 58448.00 61380.80 64459.20 67704.00
Assistant Engineer h 36.72 38.56 40.49 42.52 44.65 46.89

m 6364.80 6683.73 7018.27 7370.13 7739.33 8127.60
Grade 21 a 76377.60 80204.80 84219.20 88441.60 92872.00 97531.20
Building Inspector I h 28.77 30.19 31.69 33.28 34.95 36.69

m 4986.80 5232.93 5492.93 5768.53 6058.00 6359.60
Grade 11 a 59841.60 62795.20 65915.20 69222.40 72696.00 76315.20
Building Inspector II h 32.95 34.58 36.32 38.13 40.03 42.03

m 5711.33 5993.87 6295.47 6609.20 6938.53 7285.20
Grade 19 a 68536.00 71926.40 75545.60 79310.40 83262.40 87422.40
Business License Technician h 25.49 26.77 28.10 29.51 30.99 32.55

m 4418.27 4640.13 4870.67 5115.07 5371.60 5642.00
Grade 7 a 53019.20 55681.60 58448.00 61380.80 64459.20 67704.00
Code Enforcement Aide h 15.45 16.22 17.04 17.88 18.78 19.71

m 2678.00 2811.47 2953.60 3099.20 3255.20 3416.40
Grade 10 a 32136.00 33737.60 35443.20 37190.40 39062.40 40996.80
Code Enforcement Officer h 27.00 28.35 29.77 31.26 32.82 34.44

m 4680.00 4914.00 5160.13 5418.40 5688.80 5969.60
Grade 9 a 56160.00 58968.00 61921.60 65020.80 68265.60 71635.20
Construction Project Coordinator h 36.68 38.52 40.44 42.46 44.58 46.80

m 6357.87 6676.80 7009.60 7359.73 7727.20 8112.00
Grade 20 a 76294.40 80121.60 84115.20 88316.80 92726.40 97344.00
Building Maintenance Worker h 20.98 22.03 23.13 24.29 25.49 26.78

m 3636.53 3818.53 4009.20 4210.27 4418.27 4641.87
Grade 2 a 43638.40 45822.40 48110.40 50523.20 53019.20 55702.40
Department Assistant I h 20.98 22.03 23.13 24.29 25.49 26.78

m 3636.53 3818.53 4009.20 4210.27 4418.27 4641.87
Grade 2 a 43638.40 45822.40 48110.40 50523.20 53019.20 55702.40
Department Assistant II h 22.02 23.12 24.27 25.48 26.76 28.10

m 3816.80 4007.47 4206.80 4416.53 4638.40 4870.67
Grade 3 a 45801.60 48089.60 50481.60 52998.40 55660.80 58448.00
Electrician/Instrumentation h 32.06 33.66 35.35 37.11 38.98 40.90
Technician m 5557.07 5834.40 6127.33 6432.40 6756.53 7089.33
Grade 18 a 66684.80 70012.80 73528.00 77188.80 81078.40 85072.00
Engineering Technician h 27.60 28.98 30.44 31.95 33.55 35.24

m 4784.00 5023.20 5276.27 5538.00 5815.33 6108.27
Grade 17 a 57408.00 60278.40 63315.20 66456.00 69784.00 73299.20

- Page 173 -

Item 14.



Appendix A
2 of 3

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule
Sanitary/Miscellaneous Employees

July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020
3% COLA effective July 1, 2019

Position Title Step A B C D E
"O" 

Performance 

Step (5%)
Fleet Services Coordinator h 37.81 39.72 41.69 43.78 45.96 48.27

m 6553.73 6884.80 7226.27 7588.53 7966.40 8366.80
Grade 22 a 78644.80 82617.60 86715.20 91062.40 95596.80 100401.60
Heavy Equipment Operator h 25.33 26.57 27.91 29.30 30.77 32.30

m 4390.53 4605.47 4837.73 5078.67 5333.47 5598.67
Grade 23 a 52686.40 55265.60 58052.80 60944.00 64001.60 67184.00
Human Resources Technician h 27.51 28.88 30.32 31.84 33.44 35.12

m 4768.40 5005.87 5255.47 5518.93 5796.27 6087.47
Grade 24 a 57220.80 60070.40 63065.60 66227.20 69555.20 73049.60
Parks Ranger h 24.50 25.73 27.03 28.37 29.79 31.28

m 4246.67 4459.87 4685.20 4917.47 5163.60 5421.87
Grade 25 a 50960.00 53518.40 56222.40 59009.60 61963.20 65062.40
Planning Technician h 26.02 27.32 28.69 30.12 31.62 33.21

m 4510.13 4735.47 4972.93 5220.80 5480.80 5756.40
Grade 8 a 54121.60 56825.60 59675.20 62649.60 65769.60 69076.80
Public Works/Landscape & h 32.95 34.58 36.32 38.13 40.03 42.03
Lighting Inspector m 5711.33 5993.87 6295.47 6609.20 6938.53 7285.20
Grade 19 a 68536.00 71926.40 75545.60 79310.40 83262.40 87422.40
Public Works Parks Maintenance h 20.98 22.03 23.13 24.29 25.49 26.78
Worker Trainee/I/II m 3636.53 3818.53 4009.20 4210.27 4418.27 4641.87
Grade 2 a 43638.40 45822.40 48110.40 50523.20 53019.20 55702.40
Public Works Streets Maintenance h 21.65 22.73 23.88 25.06 26.31 27.63
Worker Trainee/I/II m 3752.67 3939.87 4139.20 4343.73 4560.40 4789.20
Grade 26 a 45032.00 47278.40 49670.40 52124.80 54724.80 57470.40
Recreation Services Coordinator h 23.09 24.23 25.44 26.71 28.05 29.45
 m 4002.27 4199.87 4409.60 4629.73 4862.00 5104.67
Grade 4 a 48027.20 50398.40 52915.20 55556.80 58344.00 61256.00
Senior Accountant h 35.23 37.00 38.83 40.78 42.82 44.95

m 6106.53 6413.33 6730.53 7068.53 7422.13 7791.33
Grade 16 a 73278.40 76960.00 80766.40 84822.40 89065.60 93496.00
Senior Center Assistant h 20.98 22.03 23.13 24.29 25.49 26.78

m 3636.53 3818.53 4009.20 4210.27 4418.27 4641.87
Grade 2 a 43638.40 45822.40 48110.40 50523.20 53019.20 55702.40
Senior Center Coordinator h 24.36 25.57 26.86 28.20 29.61 31.10

m 4222.40 4432.13 4655.73 4888.00 5132.40 5390.67
Grade 6 a 50668.80 53185.60 55868.80 58656.00 61588.80 64688.00
Senior Code Enforcement h 31.04 32.59 34.23 35.95 37.73 39.63
Officer m 5380.27 5648.93 5933.20 6231.33 6539.87 6869.20
Grade 15 a 64563.20 67787.20 71198.40 74776.00 78478.40 82430.40
Senior Maintenance Worker h 25.14 26.39 27.72 29.11 30.56 32.09

m 4357.60 4574.27 4804.80 5045.73 5297.07 5562.27
Grade 27 a 52291.20 54891.20 57657.60 60548.80 63564.80 66747.20

- Page 174 -

Item 14.



Appendix A
3 of 3

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule
Sanitary/Miscellaneous Employees

July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020
3% COLA effective July 1, 2019

Position Title Step A B C D E
"O" 

Performance 

Step (5%)
Senior Water Service Worker III h 26.02 27.32 28.69 30.12 31.62 33.21

m 4510.13 4735.47 4972.93 5220.80 5480.80 5756.40
Grade 8 a 54121.60 56825.60 59675.20 62649.60 65769.60 69076.80
Senior Water Service Worker IV h 29.50 30.98 32.53 34.15 35.85 37.65

m 5113.33 5369.87 5638.53 5919.33 6214.00 6526.00
Grade 14 a 61360.00 64438.40 67662.40 71032.00 74568.00 78312.00
Street Sweeper Operator h 25.33 26.57 27.91 29.30 30.77 32.30

m 4390.53 4605.47 4837.73 5078.67 5333.47 5598.67
Grade 23 a 52686.40 55265.60 58052.80 60944.00 64001.60 67184.00
Treatment Plant Operator h 20.90 21.93 23.02 24.18 25.39 26.66
Trainee m 3622.67 3801.20 3990.13 4191.20 4400.93 4621.07
Grade 1 a 43472.00 45614.40 47881.60 50294.40 52811.20 55452.80
Treatment Plant Operator I h 23.62 24.79 26.03 27.33 28.70 30.14

m 4094.13 4296.93 4511.87 4737.20 4974.67 5224.27
Grade 5 a 49129.60 51563.20 54142.40 56846.40 59696.00 62691.20
Treatment Plant Operator II h 26.02 27.32 28.69 30.12 31.62 33.21

m 4510.13 4735.47 4972.93 5220.80 5480.80 5756.40
Grade 8 a 54121.60 56825.60 59675.20 62649.60 65769.60 69076.80
Treatment Plant Operator III h 29.50 30.98 32.53 34.15 35.85 37.65

m 5113.33 5369.87 5638.53 5919.33 6214.00 6526.00
Grade 14 a 61360.00 64438.40 67662.40 71032.00 74568.00 78312.00
Utility Clerk I h 20.98 22.03 23.13 24.29 25.49 26.78

m 3636.53 3818.53 4009.20 4210.27 4418.27 4641.87
Grade 2 a 43638.40 45822.40 48110.40 50523.20 53019.20 55702.40
Utility Clerk II h 22.02 23.12 24.27 25.48 26.76 28.10

m 3816.80 4007.47 4206.80 4416.53 4638.40 4870.67
Grade 3 a 45801.60 48089.60 50481.60 52998.40 55660.80 58448.00
Vehicle/Equipment Mechanic I h 23.09 24.23 25.44 26.71 28.05 29.45

m 4002.27 4199.87 4409.60 4629.73 4862.00 5104.67
Grade 4 a 48027.20 50398.40 52915.20 55556.80 58344.00 61256.00
Vehicle/Equipment Mechanic II h 32.06 33.66 35.35 37.11 38.98 40.90

m 5557.07 5834.40 6127.33 6432.40 6756.53 7089.33
Grade 18 a 66684.80 70012.80 73528.00 77188.80 81078.40 85072.00
Water Service Worker I h 20.90 21.93 23.02 24.18 25.39 26.66

m 3622.67 3801.20 3990.13 4191.20 4400.93 4621.07
Grade 1 a 43472.00 45614.40 47881.60 50294.40 52811.20 55452.80
Water Service Worker II h 23.62 24.79 26.03 27.33 28.70 30.14

m 4094.13 4296.93 4511.87 4737.20 4974.67 5224.27
Grade 5 a 49129.60 51563.20 54142.40 56846.40 59696.00 62691.20

- Page 175 -

Item 14.



Appendix B
1 of 3

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule
Sanitary/Miscellaneous Employees

July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021
3% COLA effective July 1, 2020

Position Title Step A B C D E
"O" 

Performance 

Step (5%)
Accountant h 30.88 32.42 34.03 35.74 37.53 39.41

m 5352.53 5619.47 5898.53 6194.93 6505.20 6831.07
Grade 13 a 64230.40 67433.60 70782.40 74339.20 78062.40 81972.80
Accounting Technician h 26.25 27.57 28.94 30.40 31.92 33.53

m 4550.00 4778.80 5016.27 5269.33 5532.80 5811.87
Grade 7 a 54600.00 57345.60 60195.20 63232.00 66393.60 69742.40
Assistant Engineer h 37.82 39.72 41.70 43.80 45.99 48.30

m 6555.47 6884.80 7228.00 7592.00 7971.60 8372.00
Grade 21 a 78665.60 82617.60 86736.00 91104.00 95659.20 100464.00
Building Inspector I h 29.63 31.10 32.64 34.28 36.00 37.79

m 5135.87 5390.67 5657.60 5941.87 6240.00 6550.27
Grade 11 a 61630.40 64688.00 67891.20 71302.40 74880.00 78603.20
Building Inspector II h 33.94 35.62 37.41 39.27 41.23 43.29

m 5882.93 6174.13 6484.40 6806.80 7146.53 7503.60
Grade 19 a 70595.20 74089.60 77812.80 81681.60 85758.40 90043.20
Business License Technician h 26.25 27.57 28.94 30.40 31.92 33.53

m 4550.00 4778.80 5016.27 5269.33 5532.80 5811.87
Grade 7 a 54600.00 57345.60 60195.20 63232.00 66393.60 69742.40
Code Enforcement Aide h 15.91 16.71 17.55 18.42 19.34 20.30

m 2757.73 2896.40 3042.00 3192.80 3352.27 3518.67
Grade 10 a 33092.80 34756.80 36504.00 38313.60 40227.20 42224.00
Code Enforcement Officer h 27.81 29.20 30.66 32.20 33.80 35.47

m 4820.40 5061.33 5314.40 5581.33 5858.67 6148.13
Grade 9 a 57844.80 60736.00 63772.80 66976.00 70304.00 73777.60
Construction Project Coordinator h 37.78 39.68 41.65 43.73 45.92 48.20

m 6548.53 6877.87 7219.33 7579.87 7959.47 8354.67
Grade 20 a 78582.40 82534.40 86632.00 90958.40 95513.60 100256.00
Building Maintenance Worker h 21.61 22.69 23.82 25.02 26.25 27.58

m 3745.73 3932.93 4128.80 4336.80 4550.00 4780.53
Grade 2 a 44948.80 47195.20 49545.60 52041.60 54600.00 57366.40
Department Assistant I h 21.61 22.69 23.82 25.02 26.25 27.58

m 3745.73 3932.93 4128.80 4336.80 4550.00 4780.53
Grade 2 a 44948.80 47195.20 49545.60 52041.60 54600.00 57366.40
Department Assistant II h 22.68 23.81 25.00 26.24 27.56 28.94

m 3931.20 4127.07 4333.33 4548.27 4777.07 5016.27
Grade 3 a 47174.40 49524.80 52000.00 54579.20 57324.80 60195.20
Electrician/Instrumentation h 33.02 34.67 36.41 38.22 40.15 42.13
Technician m 5723.47 6009.47 6311.07 6624.80 6959.33 7302.53
Grade 18 a 68681.60 72113.60 75732.80 79497.60 83512.00 87630.40
Engineering Technician h 28.43 29.85 31.35 32.91 34.56 36.30

m 4927.87 5174.00 5434.00 5704.40 5990.40 6292.00
Grade 17 a 59134.40 62088.00 65208.00 68452.80 71884.80 75504.00

- Page 176 -

Item 14.



Appendix B
2 of 3

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule
Sanitary/Miscellaneous Employees

July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021
3% COLA effective July 1, 2020

Position Title Step A B C D E
"O" 

Performance 

Step (5%)
Fleet Services Coordinator h 38.94 40.91 42.94 45.09 47.34 49.72

m 6749.60 7091.07 7442.93 7815.60 8205.60 8618.13
Grade 22 a 80995.20 85092.80 89315.20 93787.20 98467.20 103417.60
Heavy Equipment Operator h 26.09 27.37 28.75 30.18 31.69 33.27

m 4522.27 4744.13 4983.33 5231.20 5492.93 5766.80
Grade 23 a 54267.20 56929.60 59800.00 62774.40 65915.20 69201.60
Human Resources Technician h 28.34 29.75 31.23 32.80 34.44 36.17

m 4912.27 5156.67 5413.20 5685.33 5969.60 6269.47
Grade 24 a 58947.20 61880.00 64958.40 68224.00 71635.20 75233.60
Parks Ranger h 25.24 26.50 27.84 29.22 30.68 32.22

m 4374.93 4593.33 4825.60 5064.80 5317.87 5584.80
Grade 25 a 52499.20 55120.00 57907.20 60777.60 63814.40 67017.60
Planning Technician h 26.80 28.14 29.55 31.02 32.57 34.21

m 4645.33 4877.60 5122.00 5376.80 5645.47 5929.73
Grade 8 a 55744.00 58531.20 61464.00 64521.60 67745.60 71156.80
Public Works/Landscape & h 33.94 35.62 37.41 39.27 41.23 43.29
Lighting Inspector m 5882.93 6174.13 6484.40 6806.80 7146.53 7503.60
Grade 19 a 70595.20 74089.60 77812.80 81681.60 85758.40 90043.20
Public Works Parks Maintenance h 21.61 22.69 23.82 25.02 26.25 27.58
Worker Trainee/I/II m 3745.73 3932.93 4128.80 4336.80 4550.00 4780.53
Grade 2 a 44948.80 47195.20 49545.60 52041.60 54600.00 57366.40
Public Works Streets Maintenance h 22.30 23.41 24.60 25.81 27.10 28.46
Worker Trainee/I/II m 3865.33 4057.73 4264.00 4473.73 4697.33 4933.07
Grade 26 a 46384.00 48692.80 51168.00 53684.80 56368.00 59196.80
Recreation Services Coordinator h 23.78 24.96 26.20 27.51 28.89 30.33
 m 4121.87 4326.40 4541.33 4768.40 5007.60 5257.20
Grade 4 a 49462.40 51916.80 54496.00 57220.80 60091.20 63086.40
Senior Accountant h 36.29 38.11 39.99 42.00 44.10 46.30

m 6290.27 6605.73 6931.60 7280.00 7644.00 8025.33
Grade 16 a 75483.20 79268.80 83179.20 87360.00 91728.00 96304.00
Senior Center Assistant h 21.61 22.69 23.82 25.02 26.25 27.58

m 3745.73 3932.93 4128.80 4336.80 4550.00 4780.53
Grade 2 a 44948.80 47195.20 49545.60 52041.60 54600.00 57366.40
Senior Center Coordinator h 25.09 26.34 27.67 29.05 30.50 32.03

m 4348.93 4565.60 4796.13 5035.33 5286.67 5551.87
Grade 6 a 52187.20 54787.20 57553.60 60424.00 63440.00 66622.40
Senior Code Enforcement h 31.97 33.57 35.26 37.03 38.86 40.82
Officer m 5541.47 5818.80 6111.73 6418.53 6735.73 7075.47
Grade 15 a 66497.60 69825.60 73340.80 77022.40 80828.80 84905.60
Senior Maintenance Worker h 25.89 27.18 28.55 29.98 31.48 33.05

m 4487.60 4711.20 4948.67 5196.53 5456.53 5728.67
Grade 27 a 53851.20 56534.40 59384.00 62358.40 65478.40 68744.00

- Page 177 -

Item 14.



Appendix B
3 of 3

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule
Sanitary/Miscellaneous Employees

July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021
3% COLA effective July 1, 2020

Position Title Step A B C D E
"O" 

Performance 

Step (5%)
Senior Water Service Worker III h 26.80 28.14 29.55 31.02 32.57 34.21

m 4645.33 4877.60 5122.00 5376.80 5645.47 5929.73
Grade 8 a 55744.00 58531.20 61464.00 64521.60 67745.60 71156.80
Senior Water Service Worker IV h 30.39 31.91 33.51 35.17 36.93 38.78

m 5267.60 5531.07 5808.40 6096.13 6401.20 6721.87
Grade 14 a 63211.20 66372.80 69700.80 73153.60 76814.40 80662.40
Street Sweeper Operator h 26.09 27.37 28.75 30.18 31.69 33.27

m 4522.27 4744.13 4983.33 5231.20 5492.93 5766.80
Grade 23 a 54267.20 56929.60 59800.00 62774.40 65915.20 69201.60
Treatment Plant Operator h 21.53 22.59 23.71 24.91 26.15 27.46
Trainee m 3731.87 3915.60 4109.73 4317.73 4532.67 4759.73
Grade 1 a 44782.40 46987.20 49316.80 51812.80 54392.00 57116.80
Treatment Plant Operator I h 24.33 25.53 26.81 28.15 29.56 31.04

m 4217.20 4425.20 4647.07 4879.33 5123.73 5380.27
Grade 5 a 50606.40 53102.40 55764.80 58552.00 61484.80 64563.20
Treatment Plant Operator II h 26.80 28.14 29.55 31.02 32.57 34.21

m 4645.33 4877.60 5122.00 5376.80 5645.47 5929.73
Grade 8 a 55744.00 58531.20 61464.00 64521.60 67745.60 71156.80
Treatment Plant Operator III h 30.39 31.91 33.51 35.17 36.93 38.78

m 5267.60 5531.07 5808.40 6096.13 6401.20 6721.87
Grade 14 a 63211.20 66372.80 69700.80 73153.60 76814.40 80662.40
Utility Clerk I h 21.61 22.69 23.82 25.02 26.25 27.58

m 3745.73 3932.93 4128.80 4336.80 4550.00 4780.53
Grade 2 a 44948.80 47195.20 49545.60 52041.60 54600.00 57366.40
Utility Clerk II h 22.68 23.81 25.00 26.24 27.56 28.94

m 3931.20 4127.07 4333.33 4548.27 4777.07 5016.27
Grade 3 a 47174.40 49524.80 52000.00 54579.20 57324.80 60195.20
Vehicle/Equipment Mechanic I h 23.78 24.96 26.20 27.51 28.89 30.33

m 4121.87 4326.40 4541.33 4768.40 5007.60 5257.20
Grade 4 a 49462.40 51916.80 54496.00 57220.80 60091.20 63086.40
Vehicle/Equipment Mechanic II h 33.02 34.67 36.41 38.22 40.15 42.13

m 5723.47 6009.47 6311.07 6624.80 6959.33 7302.53
Grade 18 a 68681.60 72113.60 75732.80 79497.60 83512.00 87630.40
Water Service Worker I h 21.53 22.59 23.71 24.91 26.15 27.46

m 3731.87 3915.60 4109.73 4317.73 4532.67 4759.73
Grade 1 a 44782.40 46987.20 49316.80 51812.80 54392.00 57116.80
Water Service Worker II h 24.33 25.53 26.81 28.15 29.56 31.04

m 4217.20 4425.20 4647.07 4879.33 5123.73 5380.27
Grade 5 a 50606.40 53102.40 55764.80 58552.00 61484.80 64563.20

- Page 178 -

Item 14.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jonathan Hoy, P.E., Assistant City Manager  

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with KOA Corporations, Inc. for an amount 

of $545,360 to provide PS&E and Right of Way Services for the Improvements 

of Avenue 50 from Calhoun Street to Cesar Chavez Street - City Project ST-93.  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with KOA 

Corporation, in the amount of $545,360 for the PS&E and Right of Way Services and allocate an 

amount of $54,536 for contingencies - City Project ST-93. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The total cost estimated to complete improvements for this project is an amount of $4.5 million, 

currently there is a reimbursement agreement between CVAG and The City of Coachella to 

provide funding, with the regional share of 75%(CVAG) for an amount of $3,375,000 of the total 

cost. The Project is to Improve Avenue 50 between Calhoun Street and Cesar Chavez Street 

which is among the Top 10 projects listed in the 2015 Transportation Project Prioritization Study 

(TPPS).  

 

The City is the Lead Agency for this proposed work. The project will widen the existing street 

and construct concrete curb and gutter on within areas where none exists between Calhoun Street 

and Cesar Chavez Street. The finished project will complete the planned widening of Avenue 50 

to two traffic lanes in each direction, and include pedestrian, bicycle and drainage facilities. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

On November 29, 2017 City Council authorized an agreement with KOA Corporation for 

professional design services. The consultant has completed the environmental document and 

finalized the project scope, which include right-of-way acquisition. 

 

Staff recommends that KOA move on to the final design phase to complete the Plans, 

Specifications and estimates. This phase will include the necessary right-of-way acquisition 

along the south side of Avenue 50.   

 

- Page 179 -

Item 15.



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Funding for these services will be reimbursed at the rate previously specified of 75% CVAG, and 

25% City from Street DIF funds. 

 

- Page 180 -

Item 15.



 
 
 

5095 
T: 619
MON

 
 
 
 
 
PROP
AVEN
CALH
 
PROJ
The p
west 























 
SCOP
 
Task
The K
param
City’s
perfo
 






 

Murphy Canyon
9.683.2933 | F: 6
TEREY PARK O

POSAL FOR T
NUE 50 BETW
HOUN STREE

JECT OVERVI
project entails
of Calhoun S
 two throu
 complete
 curb and 
 a center r
 auxiliary t
 a class II 
 sidewalks
 continuo
 drainage 
 striping a
 new traff
 demolitio
 landscap
 traffic co
 erosion c
 specificat
 construct
 right of w
 utility coo
 project m
 construct

PE OF SERVIC

k 1 – Project M
KOA Team sta
meters for thi
s Project Man
ormed: 

 Managem
 Participati
 Submittin
 Quality Co

n Road, Suite 330
19.683.7982 | ww
RANGE   ONTAR

THE DEVELO
WEEN THE CO
ET) AND CESA

IEW 
s the improve

Street and Ces
ugh lanes of t
e pavement re

gutter 
raised and lan
turn lanes at 
bike lane in e
s on each side
us lighting  
improvemen

and signing 
ic signal at De

on and remov
ing and irriga
ntrol during c

control 
tions 
tion cost estim
way acquisitio
ordination 

management s
tion phase se

CES 

Management
aff will meet w
is project.  Un

nager to keep 

ment of projec
ing in coordin
g Monthly Pr
ontrol of Subm

0, San Diego, CA
ww.koacorp.com
RIO   SAN DIEGO

PMENT OF P
OACHELLA W
AR CHAVEZ 

ement of Aven
sar Chavez Str
traffic in each
eplacement o

ndscaped med
signalized int

each direction
e  

ts including r

e Oro and Av
val of existing 
ation 
construction 

mate 
on services 

services 
rvices 

t and Admin
with the City e
nder the proje

him informed

ct team includ
nation and pr
rogress Repor
mittals  

A 92123 
m 
O 

PLANS, SPECI
WEST CITY LIM

STREET 

nue 50 betwe
reet.  The des
 direction  
r rehabilitatio

dian  
tersections  
n  

retention basi

enue 50 and 
improvemen

istration 
engineering s
ect manageme
d of the deve

ding sub-cons
ogress meetin
rts and Invoic

IFICATIONS, 
MITS (APPRO

een the west C
sign of the im

on as required

ns on the sou

other signal m
nts 

taff at the ou
ent task, KOA
lopments on 

sultants 
ngs which inc
es including u

AND ESTIM
OXIMATELY 

Coachella City
proved street

d 

uth side of Av

modifications

tset of the pr
A will be respo

the project. T

clude preparin
updating Sche

ATE FOR TH
ONE QUART

y Limits (appr
t will include: 

venue 50 west

s as required 

roject to estab
onsible for ma
The following 

ng minutes 
edules 

E IMPROVEM
TER MILE WE

oximately one

t of Cesar Cha

blish the desig
aintaining con
specific subt

MENT OF 
ST OF 

e quarter mile

avez Street 

gn 
ntact with the
asks will be 

1 

e 

e 

- Page 181 -

Item 15.



 

An in
agen







 
KOA 
The m
meet
 
Deliv





 
Task
An ae
bette
the p
for th
appro
 
The r
detai
 
Deliv

Task
Prelim
betw
expo
poth
utility
we w
adjus
 
Deliv


 
Task
KOA 






nitial Kick-off 
nda for the me
 Introducti
 Project go
 Discussion
 Available 
 Communi

will prepare m
minutes will d
ting schedule 

verables: 
 Meeting a
 Meeting m
 Monthly i

k 2 - Surveyin
erial survey h
er defined tha
project from C
he constructio
oaches to the

resulting base
il design deve

verables: 
Updated s
 

k 3 – Utility P
minary utility 

ween utilities a
ose the potent
oling, we will 
y conflicts up 

will contact the
stment, or relo

verables: 
 Potholing

k 4 – Design P
will prepare t
 Title Shee
 Typical Se
 Demolitio
 Roadway 

meeting will b
eeting that wi
ions 
oals and expe
n of proposed
data 
ications proto

minutes of th
document dec

on our calen

agendas 
minutes 
nvoices and p

ng and Base M
as been provi

an at the begi
Calhoun west 
on of the proj
e Cesar Chave

e mapping of 
elopment. 

survey base m

otholing and
research has 

and the propo
tial conflicts a
contact Dig A
to 6 slot poth

e utility comp
ocation. 

 report 

Progress Sub
the prelimina

et 
ections 
on Plan 
Plan and Prof

be held at the
ill include: 

ctations 
d work plan a

ocol 

e meeting an
cisions made 
dar after the 

progress repo

Mapping 
ided as a base
nning of the 
to the City lim
ect.  Therefor

ez Street and A

the combined

map with TIN 

d Utility Coor
been perform

osed construc
and note the l
Alert to field m
holes may be

panies to infor

bmittal (60%)
ry level of des

files 

e beginning o

nd schedule

d will circulat
and identify a
kickoff meeti

orts 

e for the desi
concept deve
mits, and to o
re additional a
Avenue 50 int

d survey data

surface in Au

rdination 
med as part of
ction have bee
ateral and ve
mark buried u
 required.  On
rm them of th

) 
sign for the p

of the project.

te the draft m
action items f
ng.   

gn developm
elopment pha
obtain topogra
aerial survey w
tersection.  

a will be prepa

toCAD .DWG 

f the concept
en identified. 
rtical location

utilities. We an
nce we have i
he conflicts an

project.  The p

.  As part of th

minutes back t
for KOA and t

ment.  Howeve
ase, and addit
aphic informa
will be necess

ared at a 1”=2

 format  

tual plan deve
 KOA will sub

ns.  After iden
nticipate that
identified the 
nd begin disc

plans will inclu

his meeting, K

to City staff fo
the City.   We 

er, the limits o
tional survey w
ation of the p
sary for those

20’ scale to a

elopment, and
bcontract with
ntifying locatio
t to adequate
 actual locatio
ussions with t

ude: 

KOA will prep

or review and 
will setup mo

of the project 
will be require

properties to b
e areas and fo

llow for a suff

d potential co
h a potholing 
ons that will r
ly identify uti
ons of the bu
them on utilit

2

pare a draft 

comments.  
onthly 

are now 
ed to extend 
be acquired 
or the 

ficient level o

onflicts 
 company to 
require 
lity potential 
ried utilities, 
ty protection,

2 

f 

- Page 182 -

Item 15.



 












 
KOA 
speci
to th
 
KOA 
utility
 

D








 
Task
 
Right
prop
 
Task
KOA 
Addit















 Drainage 
 Signing an
 Intersectio
 Hardscape
 Traffic Sig
 Landscapi
 Lighting P
 Erosion Co
 Traffic Co
 Cross-sec

will prepare a
ifications, and
e plans, speci

will identify p
y companies. 

Deliverables: 
 Preliminar
 Preliminar
 Preliminar
 Utility con
 Review m
 Review m
 Comment

k 5 – Right of

t of way acqu
osal as a sepa

k 6 –Complete
will complete
tional level of
 Title Shee
 Typical Se
 Demolitio
 Roadway 
 Drainage 
 Signing an
 Intersectio
 Hardscape
 Traffic Sig
 Landscapi
 Lighting P
 Erosion Co
 Traffic Co

Plans, Profiles
nd Striping Pl
on Details 
e Details 

gnal Plans 
ing and Irriga
Plan 
ontrol Plan 
ntrol Plan 
tions 

a draft set of 
d estimate to 
ifications, and

potential utilit
 

ry plans (60%
ry specificatio
ry cost estima
nflict matrix 
eeting agend
eeting minute
t response for

f Way Acquis

isition will be
arate phase. 

e Plans, Spec
e any edits to 
f detail will be

et 
ections 
on Plan 
Plan and Prof
Plans, Profiles
nd Striping Pl
on Details 
e Details 

gnal Plans 
ing and Irriga
Plan 
ontrol Plan 
ntrol Plan 

s and Details 
lan 

tion Plan 

specifications
the City staff 

d estimate wil

ty conflicts an

%) 
ons (60%) 
ate (60%) 

da 
es 
rm 

sition Service

e required.  KO

cifications, an
the plans, sp

e added to th

files 
s and Details 
lan 

tion Plan 

s and an opin
for review.  K
l be made as 

nd will summa

es 

OA will submi

nd Estimate 
ecifications, a
e sheets asse

ion of probab
KOA will meet

part of the 90

arize them in 

t the right of 

(90%) 
and estimate 
mbled for the

ble constructi
t with City sta
0% design su

a utility confl

way acquisiti

based on City
e 60% design

on cost.  We 
ff to review th
bmittal.   

ict matrix. 60

ion proposal 

y comments t
.  The plans w

will submit th
he City’s com

% plans will b

separate from

to the 60% de
will include: 

3

he plans, 
ments.  Edits 

be sent to the

m this 

esign.  

3 

e 

- Page 183 -

Item 15.



 


 
KOA 
speci
to th
respo
 
Deliv





 
Task
KOA 
















KOA 
We w
form
 
Deliv





 
Task
KOA 
issuin
 
Deliv




 
 
 
 

 Cross-sec

will prepare a
ifications, and
e plans, speci
onse form to 

verables: 
 Complete
 Complete
 Complete

k 7 – Final Pla
will address a
 Title Shee
 Typical Se
 Demolitio
 Roadway 
 Drainage 
 Signing an
 Intersectio
 Hardscape
 Traffic Sig
 Landscapi
 Lighting P
 Erosion Co
 Traffic Co
 Cross-sec
will prepare a

will submit sig
ats for biddin

verables: 
 Final plan
 Final spec
 Final Engi

k 8 – Bidding 
will prepare r

ng any bid ad

verables: 
 RFI respon
 Bid adden

tions 

a complete se
d estimate to 
ifications, and
track the edit

e plans (90%) 
e specification
e cost estimate

ans, Specifica
any comment

et 
ections 
on Plan 
Plan and Prof
Plans, Profiles
nd Striping Pl
on Details 
e Details 

gnal Plans 
ing and Irriga
Plan 
ontrol Plan 
ntrol Plan 
tions 
a final set of s
gned and seal
ng purposes. 

s in AutoCAD
cifications in M
neer’s estima

Support 
responses to 

ddendums. 

nses 
ndum assistan

et of specifica
the City staff 

d estimate wil
ts for the prep

ns (90%) 
e (90%) 

ations and Es
ts from the 90

files 
s and Details 
lan 

tion Plan 

specifications 
ed reproduci

D 
MS Word 
te in MS Exce

Request for In

nce 

tions and an 
for review.  K
l be made as 
paration of fin

stimate (100%
0% City review

and an engin
ble [plans, sp

el 

nformation (R

opinion of pr
KOA will meet

part of the 10
nal design. 

%) 
w.  The final p

neer’s opinion
ecifications a

RFI) during the

robable const
t with City sta
00% design p

plans will inclu

n of probable
nd estimate i

e bid advertis

truction cost. 
ff to review th

phase.  We wi

ude: 

 construction
n AutoCAD a

sement period

 We will subm
he City’s com
ll prepare a c

n cost.     
nd MS Word 

d, and will ass

4

mit the plans, 
ments.  Edits 
omment 

and Excel 

sist the City in

4 

n 

- Page 184 -

Item 15.



 

Task
KOA 
of RF
contr
 
 
STAF
KOA 
summ
 

Jimm
Chuc
Char
Ray W
Eric Y
Anne
Edwa
Ling 
Raisa
Jenni
Chris
Surve
Right
Land
Potho
 
SCHE
 
KOA 
the ta
 

 
 
FEE 

The p

k 9- Construc
will provide c

FI responses.  
ractor.  (fee a

FFING 
has assemble

marized in the

Name 
my Lin 
ck Stephan 
lie Schwinger
Wang 
Yang 
e Azzu 
ard Okitsu 
Luo 

a Garcia 
ifer Miller 
stine Adley 
ey by WestLA
t of Way Serv
scape Archite
oling by Ultra

EDULE 

has proposed
asks outlined 

proposed fee 

tion Support
construction s
KOA will prep
nd scope to b

ed a team to d
e following m

r 

AND Group, In
vices by Epic L
ecture by Dav
a Engineering 

d a 17 month
in the scope 

for Tasks 1-4

t 
support servic
pare as-built d
be determined

deliver the pr
matrix. 

A
Clas

Principal II 
Principal II 
Senior Engin
Senior Engin
Senior Engin
Senior Plann
Senior Desig
Associate En
Associate En
Associate En
Senior Office

nc. 
Land Solution
vid Volz Desig

Contractors 

 schedule for 
of services. 

4 and 6-8 is $3

ces, which ma
drawings bas
d based on pl

roject as scop

Avenue 5
ssification 

eer II 
eer I 
eer I 
er II 
ner II 
gineer II 
gineer II 
gineer II 

e Administrato

s, Inc. 
n 

plan product

374,979.00 an

ay include ma
ed on redline
lans, specifica

ed, on schedu

50 Staffin

Princ
QAQ
Proje
Lead
Lead
Loca
Ligh
Prod
Prod
Prod

or Proje

tion, review, a

nd is detailed 

aterial submitt
e mark ups of 
ations, and es

ule, and in bu

ng Plan 

cipal in Charg
QC Manager
ect Manager/
d Drainage En
d Traffic Engin
al Coordinatio
ting Designe

duction Engin
duction Engin
duction Engin
ect Administr

and bidding.  

in the fee att

tal reviews, sit
f changes prov
stimate as a se

udget.  Our pr

Role 
ge 

/Lead Civil En
ngineer 
neer 
on 
r 

neer 
neer 
neer 
rator 

The proposed

tachment. 

te visits, and 
vided by the 
eparate phase

roposed staffi

gineer 

d schedule co

preparation 
City or the 
e) 

ing plan is 

Hours 
24 
100 
255 
56 
112 
20 
108 
610 
610 
74 
80 

orrelates with

5 

 

- Page 185 -

Item 15.



 
 
 

5095 Murph
T: 619.683.2
MONTEREY

Task 1 – Pro
Task 2 - Su
Task 3 – Ut
Task 4 – De

Title Shee
Key Map 
General N
Control Po
Typical Se
Demolitio
Roadway 
Drainage 
Signing an
Intersectio
Hardscap
Landscap
Traffic Sig
Lighting P
Erosion C
Traffic Co
Cross Sec
QAQC
Specs
Estimate

Task 6 - Co
Title Shee
Key Map 
General N
Control Po
Typical Se
Demolitio
Roadway 
Drainage 
Signing an
Intersectio
Hardscap
Landscap
Traffic Sig
Lighting P
Erosion C
Traffic Co
Cross Sec
QAQC
Specs
Estimate

Task 7 - Fin
Task 8 - Bid

Total

 
 
 
 

hy Canyon Road
2933 | F: 619.683
Y PARK ORANG

T

oject Manageme
rveying and Bas

tility Potholing a
esign Progress S
t (1 sheet)
1(sheet)

Notes (1 sheet)
oints (1 sheet)
ections (2 sheets)
n Plan (6 sheets)
Plan and Profiles
Plan and Profiles
nd Striping Plan (
on Details (2 shee
e Details (1 shee
ing and Irrigation

gnal Plans ( 2 she
Plans (4 sheets)
ontrol Plan (4 sh
ntrol Plans (8 she

ctions (37 sheets)

mplete Plans, S
t (1 sheet)
1(sheet)

Notes (1 sheet)
oints (1 sheet)
ections (2 sheets)
n Plan (6 sheets)
Plan and Profiles
Plan and Profiles
nd Striping Plan (
on Details (2 shee
e Details (1 shee
ing and Irrigation

gnal Plans ( 2 she
Plans (4 sheets)
ontrol Plan (4 sh
ntrol Plans (8 she

ctions (37 sheets)

nal Plans, Specif
dding Support

d, Suite 330, San 
3.7982 | www.ko

GE   ONTARIO   S

ask

ent and Adminis
se Mapping
and Utility Coor
Submittal (60%)

s (16 sheets)
s and Details (3 s
(4 sheets)
ets)

et)
n Plans (17 sheet

eets)

eets)
eets)

pecifications an

s (16 sheets)
s and Details (3 s
(4 sheets)
ets)

et)
n Plans (4 sheets)

eets)

eets)
eets)

fications and Est

Diego, CA 9212
oacorp.com 
SAN DIEGO 

Pr

stration

rdination

sheets)

ts)

nd Estimate

sheets)

)

timate (100%)

3 

rinciplal II
Se

Eng

$265.00 $2
24

0

0

24

enior 
ineer II

Sen
Plann

215.00 $180
60 2
2
2
93 0
1
1
1
1
1
6
32
4
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
2
8

20
8
78
1
1
1
1
2
2
24
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
8

20
8
12
8

255 2

KOA Fee

nior 
ner I

Senio
Enginee

0.00 $180.0
0

0 120

32

24

24

40

108

24
12

16

16

40

32
8

0 268

e Estimate for D

or 
er I

Senior 
Designer I

00 $130.00

50

50

50

50

8

108

esign of Avenue

I
Associate 

Engineer II

$115.00

16
12
766
10
10
10
10
20
60
130
50
30
20
16
30
30
50
30
60
160

40
556
6
6
6
6

10
40
120
24
24
8
8

24
24
34
24
60
100

32
60
8

1418

e 50 Tasks 1-4 a
Senior 
Office 
Admin

KO
Di
Co

$80.00
80 $4

$1
$2

0 $3

0 $3

$4
$1

80 $1,8

nd 6-8
OA 
rect 

osts

Total KO
Cost

400.00 $29,660.
100.00 $2,370.
200.00 $2,010.
300.00 $136,485.

$1,365.
$1,365.
$1,365.
$1,365.
$2,515.
$8,190.

$21,830.
$12,370.
$3,665.
$2,730.
$2,055.
$3,665.
$7,985.

$12,465.
$3,665.

$11,650.
$20,120.
$7,200.
$4,300.
$6,320.

300.00 $106,950.
$905.
$905.
$905.
$905.

$1,580.
$5,030.

$18,960.
$7,510.
$5,135.
$1,135.
$1,135.
$2,975.
$5,855.

$10,625.
$2,975.
$9,995.

$13,220.
$7,200.
$4,300.
$5,400.

400.00 $16,680.
100.00 $4,180.

800.00 $298,335.

OA 
Westland

.00

.00 $16,644.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00 $16,644.00

DVD

0

$20,000.00

$20,000.00

$10,000.00

$10,000.00

$5,000.00

0 $35,000.00

UEC To

$
$

$25,000.00 $
$1

$
$

$

$

$
$

$1

$

$

$

$

$

$25,000.00 $3

otal Cost

29,660.00
19,014.00
27,010.00
56,485.00
$1,365.00
$1,365.00
$1,365.00
$1,365.00
$2,515.00
$8,190.00

$21,830.00
$12,370.00
$3,665.00
$2,730.00
$2,055.00

$23,665.00
$7,985.00

$12,465.00
$3,665.00

$11,650.00
$20,120.00
$7,200.00
$4,300.00
$6,320.00
16,950.00

$905.00
$905.00
$905.00
$905.00

$1,580.00
$5,030.00

$18,960.00
$7,510.00
$5,135.00
$1,135.00
$1,135.00

$12,975.00
$5,855.00

$10,625.00
$2,975.00
$9,995.00

$13,220.00
$7,200.00
$4,300.00
$5,400.00
21,680.00
$4,180.00

$0.00
74,979.00

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 - Page 186 -

Item 15.



 
 
 

5095 Murph
T: 619.683.2
MONTEREY

 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSA
BETWEEN
CALHOUN
 
PROJECT 
The projec
one quart
improvem
and partia
 
Right of w

 O
 A
 D
 A
 Es
 R
 Q
 Pr

 
KOA will s
acquisitio
 
Assumptio

 6 
 13
 13
 N
 N
 N
 C
 N
 6 
 R
 D
 C
 P
 D
 P
 Li
 H

 

hy Canyon Road
2933 | F: 619.683
Y PARK ORANG

AL FOR RIGH
N THE COACH
N STREET) A

OVERVIEW 
ct entails the 
ter mile west o

ment, right of w
al acquisition 

way acquisitio
Order and revie
Appraisal oversi
Document prep
Acquisitions and
scrow services
elocation assis

Quality assuranc
roject managem

sub-consult th
n services to 

ons for the Ri
client meetin

3 properties w
3 appraisals w

No appraisal re
No business re
No loss of bus

ity will provid
No eminent do

full residentia
elocation for 

Displacements
oordination o
roject can be 

Deposition, co
roposal is vali
itigation guar
ourly rates m

d, Suite 330, San 
3.7982 | www.ko

GE   ONTARIO   S

HT OF WAY A
HELLA WEST
ND CESAR C

improvement
of Calhoun St
way will need
of seven othe

ns services w
ew preliminary
ite (assume 13

paration for off
d negotiations 
s coordination 
tance – reside
ce/quality cont
ment (meeting

he preparatio
Epic Land Sol

ght of Way A
ngs, monthly s
will be impact
will be prepare
eviews will be
elocations will
iness goodwi

de right of way
omain suppor
al acquisition
6 residences 
 will be coope

of phase I or p
completed in
urt testimony
id for 90 days
rantee is not i

may be adjust 

Diego, CA 9212
oacorp.com 
SAN DIEGO 

ACQUISTION 
T CITY LIMITS
CHAVEZ STRE

t of Avenue 5
treet and Cesa
d to be acquir
er properties. 

ill include: 
y title reports (
) 
fer packages (a
(assume 13) 
 (assume 13) 
ntial (assume 6
trol 
gs, file maintena

n of property
lutions, Inc. 

Acquisition ser
status reports
ted 
ed 

e needed 
l be necessary
ll appraisals w
y document t
rt services are
s will be requ
will be requir
erative 
phase II site a
n 12 months w
y and expert w
s 
n the scope 
3% at the beg

3 

SERVICES FO
S (APPROXIM
EET 

50 between th
ar Chavez Str

red through to
 

(assume 13) 

assume 13) 

6) 

ance, file close

y descriptions 

rvices include
s, and related 

y 
will be necess
templates 
e included 
ired 

red 

ssessments is
without delay
witness are no

ginning of ea

OR THE IMPR
MATELY ONE

he west Coach
reet.  It is antic
otal acquisitio

e out, status re

 to WestLAND

e: 
tasks 

ary 

s not in the sc
ys 
ot included in

ch calendar y

ROVEMENT O
E QUARTER M

hella City Lim
cipated that t
on of 6 reside

ports, etc.) 

D Group, Inc.,

cope 

n the scope 

year 

OF AVENUE 5
MILE WEST O

its (approxim
to construct t
ential properti

, and the othe

1 

50 
OF 

ately 
he 
ies, 

er 

- Page 187 -

Item 15.



 

SCHEDUL
 
KOA has p
 
FEE 

The propo

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LE 

proposed a 6 

osed fee for T

month sched

Task 5 is $170

dule for right 

,381.00 and is

of way acquis

s detailed in t

sition services

the fee attach

s. 

hment. 

2 - Page 188 -

Item 15.



 

 
 
 
(Letterhea
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ad Additional pages templaate) 

3 - Page 189 -

Item 15.



 
 
 

5095 Murph
T: 619.683.2
MONTEREY

 
 
 
 
 
 

Task 5 - Rig

hy Canyon Road
2933 | F: 619.683
Y PARK ORANG

Tas

ht of Way Acquis

d, Suite 330, San 
3.7982 | www.ko

GE   ONTARIO   S

sk

sition Services

Diego, CA 9212
oacorp.com 
SAN DIEGO 

Princi

$265
8

3 

iplal II
Senior 

Engineer 

5.00 $215.00
8 12

II
Senior 

Planner I

0 $180.00

KO

Senior 
Engineer I D

$180.00

OA Fee Estimate fo

Senior 
esigner I

Assoc
Engin

$130.00 $115
1

or Design of Ave

ciate 
neer II

Senior 
Office 
Admin

5.00 $80.00
2 8

enue 50 for Task 5
KOA 

Direct 
Costs

Tota
C

$6

5

al KOA 
Cost

Westla

6,720.00 $15,19

and Epic

91.00 $148,470

DVD

0.00

UEC To

$1

 
otal Cost

170,381.00

1 - Page 190 -

Item 15.



C-1 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

CITY OF COACHELLA 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this 9th  day of October, 2019 by and between 
the City of Coachella, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
California with its principal place of business at 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 92236 
(“City”) and KOA Planning & Engineering, a California Corporation with its principal place of 
business at, 1100 Corporate Center Drive, Suite 201, Monterey Park, California 91754 
(“Consultant”).  City and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and 
collectively as “Parties.” 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 City.  City is a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State 
 of California, with power to contract for services necessary to achieve its purpose. 

2.2 Consultant.  Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the 
provision of certain professional services required by the City on the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant represents that it is 
experienced in providing Professional Design Engineering Services to public 
clients, is licensed in the State of California, and is familiar with the plans of the 
City. 

2.3 Project.  City desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the Plans, 
Specifications and Estimate, including Right of Way Acquisition Services  for the 
Improvement of Avenue 50 from Calhoun  to Cesar Chavez Street, City Project 
ST-93. 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to 
the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 
necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional program management necessary for the 
Project (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject to, and performed in 
accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from October 9th, 2019 to 
December 31st, 2021, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  Consultant shall complete the 
Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and 

- Page 191 -

Item 15.



C-2 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if 
necessary to complete the Services. 

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 
Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine 
the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  
Consultant retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of 
this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on 
behalf of Consultant shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under 
Consultant’s exclusive direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other 
amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this 
Agreement and as required by law.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and 
obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security 
taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ 
compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Consultant shall perform the Services 
expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of 
Services set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  
Consultant represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the 
Services in conformance with such conditions.  In order to facilitate Consultant’s conformance 
with the Schedule, City shall respond to Consultant’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon 
request of City, Consultant shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to 
meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 
Consultant shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Consultant has represented to City that 
certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should 
one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of 
at least equal competence upon written approval of City.  In the event that City and Consultant 
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to terminate this 
Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the 
Services in a manner acceptable to the City, or who are determined by the City to be 
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a 
threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the 
Consultant at the request of the City.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are 
as follows:  

Jimmy H. Lin, PE, KOA Corporation – Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
3.2.5 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates Jonathan Hoy, P.E. –

City Engineer, or his designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(“City’s Representative”).  City’s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the 

- Page 192 -

Item 15.



C-3 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

City for all purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall not accept direction or orders from 
any person other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative.  Consultant hereby designates Jimmy H. Lin 
– Chief Executive Officer, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance 
of this Agreement (“Consultant’s Representative”).  Consultant’s Representative shall have full 
authority to represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement.  
The Consultant’s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and 
attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures 
and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Consultant agrees to work closely with City 
staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, consultants and other 
staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Consultant shall perform 
all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the 
standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the 
State of California.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional 
calling necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all employees and 
subconsultants shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to 
them.  Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees and subconsultants have all licenses, 
permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the 
Services, including a City Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be 
maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification 
provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without 
reimbursement from the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are 
caused by the Consultant’s failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any 
employee of the Consultant or its sub-consultants who is determined by the City to be 
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat 
to the safety of persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services 
in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant 
and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and 
in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting 
the performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall 
give all notices required by law.  Consultant shall be liable for all violations of such laws and 
regulations in connection with Services.  If the Consultant performs any work knowing it to be 
contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, 
Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Consultant shall indemnify 
and hold City, its officials, directors, officers, employees, and agents free and harmless, pursuant 
to the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of 
any failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

 

 

- Page 193 -

Item 15.



C-4 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence 
Work under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has 
secured all insurance required under this section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any 
subconsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory 
to the City that the subconsultant has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall, at its expense, 
procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants.  
Consultant shall also require all of its subconsultants to procure and maintain the same insurance 
for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum 
levels of coverage: 

(A)  Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as 
broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 
Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 
Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); 
and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as 
required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain 
limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with 
general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident 
for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s 
Liability: Workers’ Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of 
California.  Employer’s Liability limits of $1,000,000  per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

3.2.10.3 Professional Liability.  Consultant shall procure and 
maintain, and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years 
following completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their 
profession.  Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claim, and shall 
be endorsed to include contractual liability. 

3.2.10.4 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall 
contain the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or 
approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be 
endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in 
connection with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 

- Page 194 -

Item 15.



C-5 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall 
stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying 
coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and 
shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall 
be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, 
maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 
Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s 
scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the 
Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 
insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 
Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 
or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 
provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 
the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All 
insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In 
addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.10.6 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any 
deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Consultant 
shall guarantee that, at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense 
expenses. 

3.2.10.7 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with 
insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in 
California, and satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.10.8 Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish City 
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this 

- Page 195 -

Item 15.



C-6 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

Agreement on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for each 
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the City if requested.  All certificates and 
endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work commences.  The City 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any 
time. 

3.2.10.9 Reporting of Claims.  Consultant shall report to the City, in 
addition to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in 
connection with the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.11 Safety.  Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid 
injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at 
all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, 
and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature 
of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as 
applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) adequate life protection and life saving 
equipment and procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and 
subconsultants, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, 
confined space procedures, trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, 
equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or 
injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety 
measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including 
authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth 
in Exhibit ”C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation 
shall not exceed five hundred forty-five thousand three hundred sixty dollars ($545,360) 
without written approval of City Manager.  Extra Work may be authorized, as described below, 
and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Consultant shall submit to City a monthly 
itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by 
Consultant.  The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the 
initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, 
through the date of the statement.   City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review 
the statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any 
expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 
request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work 
which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which 
the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.  

- Page 196 -

Item 15.



C-7 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization 
from City’s Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages.  Consultant is aware of the requirements of California 
Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, 
Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of 
prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on “public works” and 
“maintenance” projects.  If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public 
works” or “maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total 
compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage 
Laws.  City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in 
effect at the commencement of this Agreement.  Consultant shall make copies of the prevailing 
rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the 
Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Consultant’s 
principal place of business and at the project site.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold 
the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or 
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Consultant shall maintain complete and 
accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 
records shall be clearly identifiable.  Consultant shall allow a representative of City during 
normal business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any 
other documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all 
work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three 
(3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice to 
Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by 
giving written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, 
at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, 
Consultant shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to 
City, and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Consultant may not terminate 
this Agreement except for cause. 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 
herein, City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data 
and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the performance of 
Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to provide such document and other 
information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

- Page 197 -

Item 15.



C-8 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 
whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it 
may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this 
Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other 
address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

 

 

Consultant: 

KOA Corporation 
1100 Corporate Center Dr. Ste. 201 
Monterey Park, CA 91754 
Attn:  Jimmy H. Lin 
 

City: 
City of Coachella 
1515 Sixth Street 
Coachella, CA  92236 
Attn:  Jonathan Hoy, P.E. – City Engineer 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 
(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at 
its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice 
occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property.  This 
Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, modify, reuse, or 
sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, 
specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in 
any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data 
magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be 
prepared by Consultant under this Agreement (“Documents & Data”).  Consultant shall require 
all subconsultants to agree in writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license 
for any Documents & Data the subconsultant prepares under this Agreement.  Consultant 
represents and warrants that Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & 
Data.  Consultant makes no such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data 
which were prepared by design professionals other than Consultant or provided to Consultant by 
the City.  City shall not be limited in any way in its use of the Documents and Data at any time, 
provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement shall be at City’s 
sole risk. 

- Page 198 -

Item 15.



C-9 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, 
procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written 
information, and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant.  
Such materials shall not, without the prior written consent of City, be used by Consultant for any 
purposes other than the performance of the Services.  Nor shall such materials be disclosed to 
any person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or the Project.  Nothing 
furnished to Consultant which is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has 
become known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use 
City’s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or 
the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other 
similar medium without the prior written consent of City. 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorney’s Fees.  If either party commences an action against the other 
party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the 
losing party reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.6 Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
indemnify and hold the City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and 
harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, 
damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any 
manner arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to any negligence, errors or omissions, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
consultants, and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the 
Consultant’s Services, including without limitation the payment of all consequential damages, 
expert witness fees, and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. Consultant shall 
defend, at Consultant’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or 
other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.  Consultant shall pay and satisfy any 
judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Consultant 
shall reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, 
for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in 
enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Consultant’s obligation to indemnify shall not be 
restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the City, its directors, officials officers, 
employees, agents, or volunteers. 

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by 
both parties. 

- Page 199 -

Item 15.



C-10 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 
this Agreement. 

3.5.10 City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.  City reserves right to employ 
other consultants in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the parties. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate or 
transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 
prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 
hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 
assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have 
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any 
term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not 
work days.  All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, and 
subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to 
City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 
content or intent of this Agreement. 

3.5.14 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or amendment 
of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.5.15 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 
default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 
contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.5.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.17 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.18 Prohibited Interests.  Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not 
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 
for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not 
paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 

- Page 200 -

Item 15.



C-11 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Consultant further 
agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic 
Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the 
Services.  For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this 
Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of 
City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this 
Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.19 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Consultant represents that it is an equal 
opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, 
sex or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff 
or termination.  Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City’s Minority 
Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines 
currently in effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.20 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Consultant certifies that it 
is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every 
employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.21 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Consultant has all requisite power and 
authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 
warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.22 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an original. 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of 
the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written 
approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all 
provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

- Page 201 -

Item 15.



C-12 
PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services  Created on 10/01/2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA    KOA Corporation 

 

By:                                                       By:                                                   
William B. Pattison    Date   Jimmy Lin,            Date 
City Manager     Chief Executive Officer  

 

 

By:_________________________      ________ 
      Carlos Campos, City Attorney            Date 

 

 
 
Attest: 
 
By: ____________________________         ______ 
           Deputy City Clerk, Andrea Carranza         Date 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 202 -

Item 15.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jonathan Hoy, P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer  

SUBJECT: Construction Contract with Onyx Paving Company Inc. for the construction of 

speed humps for Traffic Calming Phase III, City Project ST-124. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Authorize The City Manager to execute a Construction Contract with Onyx Paving Company 

Inc. for the construction of speed humps for Traffic Calming Phase III, City Project ST-124. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The City of Coachella is implementing The Traffic Calming Project Phase III – Speed Humps in 

compliance with requests from Coachella’s residents among different districts. Installation of 

Speed Humps, which are raised “bumps” placed across residential streets, are one of several 

measures to calm traffic in residential areas. This project is developed in response to 

neighborhood reports of speeding problems. The initiation of this process was to submit a Speed 

Hump Petition signed by the residents from separate households on the same subdivision. 
 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 

The City requested public bids in accordance with City standard practices and in compliance 

with public contract law. Two companies submitted bids for the project and were opened and 

read aloud in the Planning Commission Room at The Permit Center on October 3, 2019 at 10:00 

A.M. The bid opening results are listed as follows: 
 

COMPANY City Bid Amount 

Onyx Paving Company Inc. Anaheim $137,000 

Hardy and Harper, Inc. Lake Forest $187,000 
 

Staff has reviewed the bids and recommends awarding the project to Onyx Paving Company Inc. 

as it is the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Not budgeted in FY 19/20 CIP Workbook. Allocate Fund 127, Street and Transportation DIF for 

Project ST-124 for Construction Contract plus 10 percent contingency for a total amount of 

$150,700. 

- Page 203 -

Item 16.



City of Coachella City Project No. ST-124 Traffic Calming Phase III  

CONTRACT 
25 

CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT is made this _______ day of ___________, 2019, in the County of 
Riverside, State of California, by and between the City of Coachella, hereinafter called City, and 
_Onyx Paving Company Inc._, hereinafter called Contractor.  The City and the Contractor for the 
considerations stated herein agree as follows:  

ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF WORK.  The work to be performed consists of furnishing all labor, 
materials, tools, transportation, supplies, equipment, appurtenances, fuel, and power, unless 
specifically excepted, necessary to construct this project as described in the General Conditions, 
and all the work required in strict compliance with Contract Documents as specified in Article 5 
below for the following project: 

Traffic Calming Phase III 
City Project No. ST-124 

The Contractor and its surety shall be liable to the City for any damages arising as a result of the 
Contractor’s failure to comply with this obligation.  

ARTICLE 2. TIME FOR COMPLETION 45 CALENDAR DAYS..  The Work shall be 
commenced on the date stated in the City’s Notice to Proceed.  The Contractor shall complete all 
Work required by the Contract Documents within 45 calendar days from the commencement 
date stated in the Notice to Proceed.  By its signature hereunder, Contractor agrees the time for 
completion set forth above is adequate and reasonable to complete the Work.   

ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT PRICE.  The City shall pay to the Contractor as full compensation 
for the performance of the Contract, subject to any additions or deductions as provided in the 
Contract Documents, and including all applicable taxes and costs, the sum of 
_One Hundred Thiry-Seven Thousand Dollars 
($____137,000.00__________________).  Payment shall be made as set forth in the General 
Conditions. 

ARTICLE 4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  In accordance with Government Code section 
53069.85, it is agreed that the Contractor will pay the City the sum of $1,000 for each and every 
calendar day of delay beyond the time prescribed in the Contract Documents for finishing the 
Work, as Liquidated Damages and not as a penalty or forfeiture.  In the event this is not paid, the 
Contractor agrees the City may deduct that amount from any money due or that may become due 
the Contractor under the Contract.  This Article does not exclude recovery of other damages 
specified in the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 5. COMPONENT PARTS OF THE CONTRACT.  The “Contract Documents” 
include the following: 

Notice Inviting Bids 
Instructions to Bidders 
Contractor's Bid Forms 

- Page 204 -

Item 16.



City of Coachella City Project No. ST-124 Traffic Calming Phase III  

CONTRACT 
26 

Contractor’s Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation 
Bid Bond 
Designation of Subcontractors  
Information Required of Bidders 
Non-Collusion Affidavit form 
Contract 
Performance Bond 
Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond  
General Conditions 
Special Provisions (or Special Conditions) 
Technical Specifications 
Greenbook Standard Specifications (Sections 1-9 Excluded) 
Addenda 
Plans and Contract Drawings 
Approved and fully executed change orders 
Any other documents contained in or incorporated into the Contract 

The Contactor shall complete the Work in strict accordance with all of the Contract Documents. 

All of the Contract Documents are intended to be complementary. Work required by one of the 
Contract Documents and not by others shall be done as if required by all. This Contract shall 
supersede any prior agreement of the parties. 

ARTICLE 6. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW.  Each and every provision of law 
required to be included in these Contract Documents shall be deemed to be included in these 
Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall comply with all requirements of applicable federal, 
state and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, the provisions of the 
California Labor Code and California Public Contract Code which are applicable to this Project. 

ARTICLE 7. INDEMNIFICATION.  Contractor shall provide indemnification as set forth in 
the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 8. PREVAILING WAGES.  Contractor shall be required to pay the prevailing rate 
of wages in accordance with the Labor Code which such rates shall be made available at 
Engineering Department or may be obtained online at http//www.dir.ca.gov/dlsr. and which must 
be posted at the job site. If the Work involves federal funds or otherwise requires compliance 
with the Davis-Bacon Fair Labor Standards Act, the Contractor and all its subcontractors shall 
comply with the higher of the state or federal prevailing wage rates, the aforementioned which 
may be obtained online at http://www.wdol.gov/dba.aspx as provided jointly by the U.S. Office 
of Management and Budget, Department of Labor, Department of Defense, General Services 
Administration, Department of Energy, and Department of Commerce. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Contract has been duly executed by the above-named parties, on 
the day and year above written. 

- Page 205 -

Item 16.



City of Coachella City Project No. ST-124 Traffic Calming Phase III  

CONTRACT 
27 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

By: 

______________________________ 
Signature 

______________________________ 
Name 

______________________________ 
Title 

Attest:  

______________________________ 
City Clerk: 

Recommended By: 

______________________________ 
Signature 

______________________________ 
Name 

______________________________ 
Title 

Onyx Paving  Company Inc.

By: 

______________________________ 
Signature 

______________________________ 
Name 

______________________________ 
Title 

____630360______________ 
License Number 

- Page 206 -

Item 16.



Traffic Calming Phase III
City of Coachella ST-124
Bid Opening: October 3, 2019

Item No. Item Description
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Item Price Total Item Price Total Item Price Total

1 Mobilization 1 LS 21,000.00$  21,000.00$        5,000.00$    5,000.00$            20,000.00$  20,000.00$         
2 Traffic Control 1 LS 21,000.00$  21,000.00$        13,500.00$  13,500.00$          12,800.00$  12,800.00$         

3

Construction of speed humps
as per Technical
Specifications

27 EA
2,400.00$    64,800.00$        2,700.00$    72,900.00$          3,900.00$    105,300.00$       

4

Striping of humps and legends
as per Technical
Specifications

1 LS
22,680.00$  22,680.00$        24,000.00$  24,000.00$          30,000.00$  30,000.00$         

5

Installation of advance
warning signs as per
Technical Specifications

54 EA
370.00$        19,980.00$        400.00$        21,600.00$          350.00$        18,900.00$         

Sub-Total 149,460.00$   137,000.00$     187,000.00$    
10% Contingency 14,946.00$     13,700.00$       18,700.00$      
Final Total 164,406.00$   150,700.00$     205,700.00$    

Engineer's Estimate Onyx Paving Hardy & Harper

- Page 207 -

Item 16.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jonathan Hoy, P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Construction Contract with Bunker Engineering for the construction of the 

Avenue 50 Storm Drain, City Project SD-02. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize The City Manager to execute a Construction Contract with Bunker Engineering for the 

construction of the Avenue 50 Storm Drain, City Project SD-02. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The City of Coachella has secured a $307,264 grant for this project from Prop 1B from the 

Coachella Valley Mountains Conservancy (CVMC). The grant is to construct a Storm Drain along 

Avenue 50 from an existing detention basin at Grade Separation east to the Coachella Valley Storm 

Channel. This project will allow pretreated storm water runoff to be conveyed to the Coachella 

Valley Storm Channel. Without this improvement storm water runoff can overflow the detention 

basin, causing damage to the existing farmland to the southeast.  
 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 

The City requested public bids in accordance with City standard practices and in compliance with 

public contract law. Three companies submitted bids for the project and were opened and read 

aloud in the Planning Commission Room at the Permit Center on October 3, 2019 at 10:00 A.M. 

The bid opening results are listed as follows: 
 

COMPANY City Bid Amount 

Bunker Engineering Indio $437,331.00 

Granite Construction Indio $527,448.00 

Roberts Incorporated Orange $596,917.80 
 

Staff has reviewed the bids and recommends awarding the project to Bunker Engineering as it is the 

lowest responsive, responsible bidder. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

A total of $307,264 from Prop 1B and $91,826 from General Fund 101 was approved in the 

2019/20 budget for the Avenue 50 Storm Drain. Based on the bid results, staff is recommending an 

additional $82,000 from the General Fund for construction plus contingency for this project. 

- Page 208 -

Item 17.



City of Coachella City Project No. SD-02 Avenue 50 Storm Drain  

CONTRACT 
27 

CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT is made this           day of  , 20 19     , in the City of 
Coachella, State of California, by and between the City of Coachella, hereinafter called City, and    
___Bunker Engineering_____, hereinafter called Contractor. The City and the Contractor for the 
considerations stated herein agree as follows:  

ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF WORK.  The Contractor shall perform all Work within the time 
stipulated the Contract and shall provide all labor, materials, equipment, tools, utility services, 
and transportation to complete all of the Work required in strict compliance with the Contract 
Documents as specified in Article 5 below for the following Project: 

Avenue 50 Storm Drain Plan 
City Project No. SD-02 

The Contractor and its surety shall be liable to the City for any damages arising as a result of the 
Contractor’s failure to comply with this obligation. 

ARTICLE 2. TIME FOR COMPLETION 45 CALENDAR DAYS.  The Work shall be 
commenced on the date stated in the City’s Notice to Proceed.  The Contractor shall complete all 
construction within 45 calendar days.  By its signature hereunder, Contractor agrees the time for 
completion set forth above is adequate and reasonable to complete the Work.    

ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT PRICE.  The City shall pay to the Contractor as full compensation 
for the performance of the Contract, subject to any additions or deductions as provided in the 
Contract Documents, and including all applicable taxes and costs, the sum 
of ____Four Hundred Thirty-Seven Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-One__ 
Dollars ($___437,331.00_______). Payment shall be made as set forth in the General 
Conditions. 

ARTICLE 4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  In accordance with Government Code section 
53069.85, it is agreed that the Contractor will pay the City the sum of $1,000 for each and every 
calendar day of delay beyond the time prescribed in the Contract Documents for finishing 
the Interim Work and $1,000 for each and every calendar day of delay beyond the time 
prescribed in the Contract Documents for finishing the non-Interim Work, as Liquidated 
Damages and not as a penalty or forfeiture.  In the event this is not paid, the Contractor agrees 
the City may deduct that amount from any money due or that may become due the Contractor 
under the Contract.  This Article does not exclude recovery of other damages specified in the 
Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 5. COMPONENT PARTS OF THE CONTRACT.  The “Contract Documents” 
include the following: 

Notice Inviting Bids 
Instructions to Bidders 
Contractor's Bid Forms 
Contractor’s Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation 
Bid Bond 

- Page 209 -

Item 17.



City of Coachella City Project No. SD-02 Avenue 50 Storm Drain  

CONTRACT 
28 

Designation of Subcontractors  
Information Required of Bidders 
Non-Collusion Affidavit form 
Contract 
Performance Bond 
Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond  
General Conditions 
Special Provisions (or Special Conditions) 
Technical Specifications 
Greenbook Standard Specifications (Sections 1-9 Excluded) 
Addenda 
Plans and Contract Drawings 
Approved and fully executed change orders 
Any other documents contained in or incorporated into the Contract 

The Contactor shall complete the Work in strict accordance with all of the Contract Documents. 

All of the Contract Documents are intended to be complementary. Work required by one of the 
Contract Documents and not by others shall be done as if required by all. This Contract shall 
supersede any prior agreement of the parties. 

ARTICLE 6. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW.  Each and every provision of law 
required to be included in these Contract Documents shall be deemed to be included in these 
Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall comply with all requirements of applicable federal, 
state and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, the provisions of the 
California Labor Code and California Public Contract Code which are applicable to this Project. 

ARTICLE 7. INDEMNIFICATION.  Contractor shall provide indemnification as set forth in 
the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 8. PREVAILING WAGES.  Contractor shall be required to pay the prevailing rate 
of wages in accordance with the Labor Code which such rates shall be made available at 
Engineering Department or may be obtained online at http//www.dir.ca.gov/dlsr. and which must 
be posted at the job site. If the Work involves federal funds or otherwise requires compliance 
with the Davis-Bacon Fair Labor Standards Act, the Contractor and all its subcontractors shall 
comply with the higher of the state or federal prevailing wage rates. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Contract has been duly executed by the above-named 
parties, on the day and year above written. 

- Page 210 -

Item 17.



City of Coachella City Project No. SD-02 Avenue 50 Storm Drain  

CONTRACT 
29 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

By: 

______________________________ 
Signature 

______________________________ 
Name 

______________________________ 
Title 

Attest:  

______________________________ 
City Clerk 

Recommended By: 

______________________________ 
Signature 

______________________________ 
Name 

______________________________ 
Title 

BUNKER ENGINEERING 

By: 

______________________________ 
Signature 

______________________________ 
Name 

______________________________ 
Title 

_____1034643_____________ 
License Number 

- Page 211 -

Item 17.



Avenue 50 Storm Drain
City of Coachella SD-02
Bid Opening: October 3, 2019
Item 
No. Item Description

Estimated 
Quantity Unit Item Price Total Item Price Total Item Price Total

1 Mobilization 1 LS 60,000.00$        60,000.00$             4,500.00$      4,500.00$            24,300.00$   24,300.00$       

2 Traffic Control and Public Notification 1 LS 34,500.00$        34,500.00$             15,000.00$    15,000.00$          12,100.00$   12,100.00$       

3
PM-10 Wash Out, B.M.P.'S, Trash Bends
and SWPPP 1 LS

18,000.00$        18,000.00$             13,000.00$    13,000.00$          12,100.00$   12,100.00$       

4

Tree Shrub Removal And Clear And Grub
Ten Plus Trees and Variety of Shrubs. 1 LS

9,000.00$          9,000.00$               9,000.00$      9,000.00$            17,400.00$   17,400.00$       

5

Furnish and Install manhole per CVWD
STD. DWG. S-5 and S-10B. Manhole
cover shall be stamped “DRAIN” and shall
be locking type.

2 EA

20,000.00$        40,000.00$             17,000.00$    34,000.00$          40,300.00$   80,600.00$       

6
Furnish and Install 18” HDPE Storm
Drain Pipe  per plans 291 LF

209.00$             60,819.00$             450.00$         130,950.00$        940.00$        273,540.00$     

7

Furnish and Install 4” PVC Storm Drain
Pipe per plans 20 LF

205.00$             4,100.00$               12.00$           240.00$               660.00$        13,200.00$       

8

Furnish and Install 4” Perforated PVC
Storm Drain Pipe per plans 1,028 LF

12.00$               12,336.00$             12.00$           12,336.00$          60.00$          61,680.00$       

9 Furnish and Install 4” Cross per plans 3 EA 260.00$             780.00$                  850.00$         2,550.00$            332.00$        996.00$            

10 Furnish and Install 4” 90° Bend per plans 1 EA 200.00$             200.00$                  650.00$         650.00$               600.00$        600.00$            

11 Furnish and Install 4” End Cap per plans 18 EA 90.00$               1,620.00$               250.00$         4,500.00$            177.00$        3,186.00$         

12
Sawcut, Remove and Replace AC
Pavement and striping 2,951 SF 16.00$               47,216.00$             15.00$           44,265.00$          3.00$            8,853.00$         

13
Furnish and Install 1”-2” diameter washed
crushed stone 837 CY

50.00$               41,850.00$             216.00$         180,792.00$        52.00$          43,524.00$       

14
Furnish and Install 4 oz. non-woven filter
fabric around stone 23,884 SF

2.50$                 59,710.00$             1.25$             29,855.00$          0.70$            16,718.80$       

15 Relocate existing signal light per plans 1 EA 34,000.00$        34,000.00$             27,000.00$    27,000.00$          40,000.00$   40,000.00$       

16
Construct 12” Class 2 Aggregate Base (No
CMB) 165 TONS

80.00$               13,200.00$             114.00$         18,810.00$          40.00$          6,600.00$         
Sub-Total 437,331.00$        527,448.00$     615,397.80$  
10% Contingency 43,733.10$          52,744.80$       61,539.78$    
Final Total 481,064.10$        580,192.80$     676,937.58$  

Bunker Engineering Granite Construction Roberts Incorporated

- Page 212 -

Item 17.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jonathan Hoy, P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer  

SUBJECT: Construction Contract with Matich Corporation in the amount of $2,390,000.00 

and an amount of $239,000.00 for contingency for the construction of The 

Active Transportation Program (ATP) Cycle 2, City Project No. ST-100. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Authorize The City Manager to execute a Construction Contract with Matich Corporation in the 

amount of $2,390,000.00 and an amount of $239,000.00 for contingency for the construction of 

The Active Transportation Program (ATP) Cycle 2, City Project No. ST-100. 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The City of Coachella was awarded in FY 2015/2016 from the Riverside County Transportation 

Commission (RCTC) a grant through SB 821 in the amount of $2.2 million with a local share in 

the amount of $531,000 funded through Measure A. The City Council, on 5/23/2018, authorized 

Amendment #1 with a consultant for design services. The proposed improvements include street 

signs, street lights, thermoplastic striping, bike green details, communications improvements, 

electrical service connection, minor signage installations, and other incidental appurtenant work. 

Improvements are to be constructed at various locations throughout the City. 
 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 

The City published a Notice of Inviting Bids in The Desert Sun on 9/6/2019 and 9/13/2019 and 

made the Notice available on its website. Bids were received and opened on October 2nd, 2019 at 

2:00 pm. The City received four bids from the following companies: 

1. Matich Corporation $2,390,000.00 

  2.   Granite Construction $2,405,245.00 

  3    All American Asphalt  $3,112,444.00 

  4.   Onyx Paving Company $3,456,000.00 

 

Staff has reviewed the bids and determined that Matich Corporation is the lowest responsive bid, 

and recommends that the City execute a construction contract with Matich. 
 

  

- Page 213 -

Item 18.



FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The ATP Cycle 2 Project ST-100 was included in the City’s approved CIP for FY 2019/20. The 

contract amount of $2,390,000 plus contingency in the amount of $239,000 will be funded with 

SB821 Grant and Measure A fund. 

- Page 214 -

Item 18.



ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM (ATP) – CYCLE 2 
CITY PROJECT NUMBER: ST-100 

CONTRACT 
28 

MINAGAR & ASSOCIATES, INC.  

CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT is made this _____ day of _________, 2019, in the County of 
Riverside, State of California, by and between the City of Coachella, hereinafter called City, and 
__Matich Corporation______________, hereinafter called Contractor.  The City and the Contractor 
for the considerations stated herein agree as follows:  

ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF WORK.  The Contractor shall perform all Work within the time 
stipulated the Contract and shall provide all labor, materials, equipment, tools, utility services, 
and transportation to complete all of the Work required in strict compliance with the Contract 
Documents as specified in Article 5 below for the following Project: 

ATP Cycle 2 Project 

The Contractor and its surety shall be liable to the City for any damages arising as a result of the 
Contractor’s failure to comply with this obligation. 

ARTICLE 2. TIME FOR COMPLETION.  The Work shall be commenced on the date stated 
in the City’s Notice to Proceed.  The Contractor shall complete all Work required by the 
Contract Documents within 120 calendar days from the commencement date stated in the Notice 
to Proceed.  By its signature hereunder, Contractor agrees the time for completion set forth above 
is adequate and reasonable to complete the Work.   

ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT PRICE.  The City shall pay to the Contractor as full compensation 
for the performance of the Contract, subject to any additions or deductions as provided in the 
Contract Documents, and including all applicable taxes and costs, the sum of 
__Two Million, Three Hundred Ninety Thousand_Dollars ($__2,391,000.00_).  Payment shall be 
made as set forth in the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  In accordance with Government Code section 
53069.85, it is agreed that the Contractor will pay the City the sum of $2,500  for each and every 
calendar day of delay beyond the time prescribed in the Contract Documents for finishing the 
Work, as Liquidated Damages and not as a penalty or forfeiture.  In the event this is not paid, the 
Contractor agrees the City may deduct that amount from any money due or that may become due 
the Contractor under the Contract.  This Article does not exclude recovery of other damages 
specified in the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 5. COMPONENT PARTS OF THE CONTRACT.  The “Contract Documents” 
include the following: 

Notice Inviting Bids 
Instructions to Bidders 
Contractor's Bid Forms 
Contractor’s Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation 
Bid Bond 
Designation of Subcontractors  

- Page 215 -

Item 18.



ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM (ATP) – CYCLE 2 
CITY PROJECT NUMBER: ST-100 

CONTRACT 
29 

MINAGAR & ASSOCIATES, INC.  

Information Required of Bidders 
Non-Collusion Affidavit form 
Contract 
Performance Bond 
Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond  
General Conditions 
Special Provisions (or Special Conditions) 
Technical Specifications 
Greenbook Standard Specifications (Sections 1-9 Excluded) 
Addenda 
Plans and Contract Drawings 
Approved and fully executed change orders 
Any other documents contained in or incorporated into the Contract 

The Contactor shall complete the Work in strict accordance with all of the Contract Documents. 

All of the Contract Documents are intended to be complementary. Work required by one of the 
Contract Documents and not by others shall be done as if required by all. This Contract shall 
supersede any prior agreement of the parties. 

ARTICLE 6. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW.  Each and every provision of law 
required to be included in these Contract Documents shall be deemed to be included in these 
Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall comply with all requirements of applicable federal, 
state and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, the provisions of the 
California Labor Code and California Public Contract Code which are applicable to this Project. 

ARTICLE 7. INDEMNIFICATION.  Contractor shall provide indemnification as set forth in 
the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 8. PREVAILING WAGES.  Contractor shall be required to pay the prevailing rate 
of wages in accordance with the Labor Code which such rates shall be made available at the 
Engineering Department or may be obtained online at http://www.dir.ca.gov/dlsr. and which 
must be posted at the job site. If the Work involves federal funds or otherwise requires 
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Fair Labor Standards Act, the Contractor and all its 
subcontractors shall comply with the higher of the state or federal prevailing wage rates, the 
aforementioned which may be obtained online at http://www.wdol.gov/dba.aspx, as provided 
jointly by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget, Department of Labor, Department of 
Defense, General Services Administration, Department of Energy, and Department of 
Commerce. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Contract has been duly executed by the above-named 
parties, on the day and year above written. 

- Page 216 -

Item 18.



ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM (ATP) – CYCLE 2 
CITY PROJECT NUMBER: ST-100 

CONTRACT 
30 

MINAGAR & ASSOCIATES, INC.  

CITY OF COACHELLA 

By: 

______________________________ 
Signature 

______________________________ 
Name 

______________________________ 
Title 

Attest:  

______________________________ 
City Clerk 

Recommended By: 

______________________________ 
Signature 

______________________________ 
Name 

______________________________ 
Title 

MATICH CORPORATION

By: 

______________________________ 
Signature 

______________________________ 
Name 

______________________________ 
Title 

_149783_____________________ 
License Number 

- Page 217 -

Item 18.



Active Transportation Program Cycle 2
City of Coachella ST-100
Bid Opening: October 2, 2019

Item No. Item Description
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Item Price Total Item Price Total Item Price Total

1 Furnish/Install roadside traffic sign as shown on plan 79 EA  $          208.00  $            16,432.00  $        225.00  $             17,775.00  $        208.00  $          16,432.00 

2
Relocate existing sign and post to new location as
shown on plan 9 EA  $            78.00  $                 702.00  $          85.00  $                  765.00  $          78.00  $              702.00 

3
6" wide thermoplastic white bike lane line per
caltrans Std. plan A20D-Detail 39 42,263 LF  $              0.57  $            24,089.91  $            0.62  $             26,203.06  $            0.55  $          23,244.65 

4

Wet-sandblast and remove all conflicting traffic
striping. Pavement legends/words and markings
(Sheet 17-25) 1 LS  $     64,000.00  $            64,000.00  $    70,000.00  $             70,000.00  $    63,000.00  $          63,000.00 

5
Clear and grub miscellaneous trash and debris
required 1 LS  $     53,000.00  $            53,000.00  $    36,000.00  $             36,000.00  $    20,000.00  $          20,000.00 

6 Construct 12" Class II aggregate base (NO CMB) 10,760 TONS  $            22.75  $          244,790.00  $          31.50  $           338,940.00  $          31.00  $        333,560.00 

7
Enhanced CL2 Bikeway pavement markings
("Greenback Bike Lane") per plan details 70 EA  $       1,100.00  $            77,000.00  $      1,200.00  $             84,000.00  $      1,100.00  $          77,000.00 

8
White pavement arrow marking as shoen on plan per
caltrans Std. plan A24A 23 EA  $            99.00  $              2,277.00  $        105.00  $               2,415.00  $          98.00  $           2,254.00 

9 4" wide white channelizing lead line 100 LF  $              0.47  $                   47.00  $            0.50  $                    50.00  $            0.45  $                45.00 

10
6" wide thermoplastic white bike lane drop striping
per Caltrans Std. plan A20D-Detail 39A 1,674 LF  $              0.57  $                 954.18  $            0.62  $               1,037.88  $            0.55  $              920.70 

11 8" wide white chevron markings at 45-degrees 2,818 LF  $              2.86  $              8,059.48  $            3.10  $               8,735.80  $            2.85  $           8,031.30 

12

4" yellow double-double (median island) markings
w/type 'D' reflectors per Caltrans Std. plan A20B-
Detail 29 2,241 LF  $              2.08  $              4,661.28  $            2.25  $               5,042.25  $            2.05  $           4,594.05 

13
White pavement word marking as shown on plan per
Caltrans Std. plan A24D (25-SF typ. area) 52 EA  $          130.00  $              6,760.00  $        142.00  $               7,384.00  $        130.00  $           6,760.00 

14
12" limit line/crosswalk marking per Caltrans Std.
plan A24E 474 LF  $              3.12  $              1,478.88  $            3.40  $               1,611.60  $            3.10  $           1,469.40 

15
4" double yellow centerline per Caltrans Std. plan
A20B-Detail 22 6,587 LF  $              0.94  $              6,191.78  $            1.00  $               6,587.00  $            0.95  $           6,257.65 

16
8" white channelizing line per Caltrans Std. plan
A20D-Detail 38 (left lane type) 541 LF  $              0.94  $                 508.54  $            1.00  $                  541.00  $            0.95  $              513.95 

17
8" white channelizing line per Caltrans Std. plan
A20D-Detail 38B (right lane type) 329 LF  $              0.94  $                 309.26  $            1.00  $                  329.00  $            0.95  $              312.55 

18 Construct pedestrian crossing island per plan detail 2 EA  $     39,000.00  $            78,000.00  $    18,500.00  $             37,000.00  $    24,000.00  $          48,000.00 

Matich Corporation Granite Construction All American Asphalt

- Page 218 -

Item 18.



19

Construct 4" thick PCC sidewalk on 6" CL2
aggregate base over compacted subgrade per City of
Coachella Std. drawing No. S-25.1 16,345 SF  $              5.74  $            93,820.30  $            9.85  $           160,998.25  $          11.00  $        179,795.00 

20

Construct 8" thick PCCcommercial driveway on 6"
CL2 aggregate base over compacted subgrade per
City of Coachella Std. drawing No. S-19.2 1 EA  $     10,000.00  $            10,000.00  $      6,300.00  $               6,300.00  $      8,000.00  $           8,000.00 

21
Cold plane 2' wide, 0.15' deep along join cuts, feather
A.C. to match existing pavement 20,524 SF  $              0.52  $            10,672.48  $            1.15  $             23,602.60  $            0.70  $          14,366.80 

22 Construct 0.55' HMA pavement 6,987 TONS  $            80.39  $          561,684.93  $        100.00  $           698,700.00  $          99.00  $        691,713.00 
22A Roadway Excavation 9,750 CY  $            24.72  $          241,020.00  $          18.00  $           175,500.00  $          68.00  $        663,000.00 

23

Construct type "B" (8") curb and gutter over 0.50'
Class 2 AB per City of Coachella Std. drawing No. S-
8 2,386 LF  $            15.72  $            37,507.92  $          31.50  $             75,159.00  $          62.00  $        147,932.00 

24
Construct perpendicular ADA pedestrian access ramp
per City of Coachella Std. drawing No. S-26 2 EA  $       4,000.00  $              8,000.00  $      3,400.00  $               6,800.00  $    13,000.00  $          26,000.00 

25
4" wide skip white lane line per Caltrans Std. plan
A20B-Detail 32 5,440 LF  $              0.47  $              2,556.80  $            0.50  $               2,720.00  $            0.45  $           2,448.00 

26
Two-way left turn lane per Caltrans Std. plan
A20B-Detail 32 142 LF 2.08$                 $                 295.36 2.25$                $                  319.50 2.05$                $              291.10 

27

Furnish and Install solar-powered LED pathway
lighting system, inlcuding light fixture, pole and
foundation at 100' spacing along path

25 EA
8,300.00$         $          207,500.00 8,300.00$        $           207,500.00 7,500.00$        $        187,500.00 

28

Furnish and Install street light pole, 15-foot mast
arm & luminaire complete with foundation and
junction box per City of Coachella Std. drawings
No. L-1 & L-2, and connect to existing electrical
power per I.I.D. lighting standards and
specifications

14 EA

6,800.00$         $            95,200.00 7,300.00$        $           102,200.00 6,600.00$        $          92,400.00 
29 Not Used 0  $                        -    $                         -    $                      -   

30

Furnish and Install yellow class 1 (flexible post)
delineator with reflective bands and fixed
reboundable base, spaced at 50 feet apart. O.C.

51 EA
31.20$               $              1,591.20 34.00$             $               1,734.00 31.00$             $           1,581.00 

31

Furnish and Install white class 1 (flexible post)
delineator with reflective bands and fixed
reboundable base, spaced at 19 feet apart, O.C.

100 EA
31.20$               $              3,120.00 34.00$             $               3,400.00 31.00$             $           3,100.00 

32

4" wide skip yellow centerline (2-lane highways)
per Caltrans Std. plan A20A-Detail 1 16,850 LF

0.47$                 $              7,919.50 0.50$                $               8,425.00 0.45$                $           7,582.50 
33 Relocate existing mailbox 6 EA 400.00$             $              2,400.00 550.00$           $               3,300.00 520.00$           $           3,120.00 

- Page 219 -

Item 18.



34

Enhanced green CL2 bike lane drop markings
per Caltrans Std. plan A20D-Detail 39A 137 EA

124.80$             $            17,097.60 136.00$           $             18,632.00 125.00$           $          17,125.00 

35
Furnish and Install 'No Dumping' signs per
project specifications 4 EA 208.00$             $                 832.00 230.00$           $                  920.00 205.00$           $              820.00 

36
Furnish and Install anti-theft locking
mechanisms to manhole and utility covers 4 EA

780.00$             $              3,120.00 1,340.00$        $               5,360.00 3,600.00$        $          14,400.00 

37

Furnish and Install pet/dog waste station with
trash receptacle and plastic bag dispenser system 5 EA

431.60$             $              2,158.00 470.00$           $               2,350.00 430.00$           $           2,150.00 

38

Furnish and Install type III-BF anodized
aluminum electrical service cabinet complete
with foundation, circuit breakers and type V
photo cell as detailed on plan, per City of
Coachella and I.I.D. Stds and specifications

1 EA

10,400.00$       $            10,400.00 10,000.00$      $             10,000.00 9,100.00$        $           9,100.00 

39 Street lighting conduit and wiring per plan 1 LS 123,000.00$     $          123,000.00 118,000.00$    $           118,000.00 108,000.00$    $        108,000.00 

40
Remove and dispose of exisiting guardrail (5-
post) 2 EA 2,000.00$         $              4,000.00 3,200.00$        $               6,400.00 3,600.00$        $           7,200.00 

41 Relocate existing CATV/Telecomm pedestal 1 LS 520.00$             $                 520.00 460.46$           $                  460.46 5,200.00$        $           5,200.00 

42

Replace ex. Ladder crosswalk in place,
inclduding transverse and longitudinal bars per
Caltrans Std. plan A24F

4,014 SF
3.12$                 $            12,523.68 3.40$                $             13,647.60 3.00$                $          12,042.00 

43 Install bicycle symbol with arrow per plan detail 10 EA 46.80$               $                 468.00 50.00$             $                  500.00 46.00$             $              460.00 
44 Initial Mobilization 1 LS 229,330.92$     $          229,330.92 50,000.00$      $             50,000.00 96,020.35$      $          96,020.35 
45 Traffic Control construction signs 1 LS 114,000.00$     $          114,000.00 57,900.00$      $             57,900.00 198,000.00$    $        198,000.00 

Sub-Total 2,390,000.00$     2,405,245.00$      3,112,444.00$   
10% Contingency 239,000.00$        240,524.50$         311,244.40$      
Final Total 2,629,000.00$     2,645,769.50$      3,423,688.40$   

- Page 220 -

Item 18.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Provide staff direction on request from Eventscape International, Inc.for a 

$25,000.00 sponsorship of the 2019 Run With Los Muertos Event. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Provide staff direction regarding request from Eventscape International, Inc. for a $25,000.00 

sponsorship for the 2019 Run With Los Muertos Event. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

On October 1, 2019, staff received the attached $25,000.00 sponsorship request by Eventscape 

International, Inc., for the 2019 Run With Los Muertos Event.  This event is a City co-sponsored 

event and has been since 2013.  Annually this event has provided the in-kind services for traffic 

control, public safety and funded the actual costs of all traffic control and lighting rental 

expenses; these hard costs total $15,000.  Last year the City also provided a $15,000 sponsorship 

above the in-kind and traffic equipment rental costs; bringing the City’s funding for the 2018 

event to $30,000.  Last year this event had 540 total registered runners and attracted an estimated 

3,500-4,500 people to the City’s Downtown.  As the requested sponsorship is above the event’s 

budgeted allocation staff is requesting direction regarding approval of this request.  If approved 

the event budget will need to be augmented in the amount of $10,000.   

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Approve City Manager to process sponsorship request in the amount of $25,000 and 

authorize allocation of $10,000 from undesignated City General Fund reserves for 

sponsorship request.   

2. Approve City Manager to process sponsorship request in an amount below $15,000.   

3. Decline sponsorship request submitted by Eventscape International, Inc.   

4. Provide alternate direction to staff.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If Council approves request as submitted, an allocation of $10,000 from undesignated General 

Fund reserves will be required to allow for sponsorship award in the requested amount of 

$25,000 to the event expenditure account 101-11-160-90-801-013.   

- Page 221 -

Item 19.



 

Attachment: Sponsorship Request 

  

 

- Page 222 -

Item 19.



INVOICE

10/1/2019

RWLM 2019

Bill To

City of Coachella
1515 6th Street
Coachella, CA 92236
Attn: Bill Pattison

EventScape International,Inc
P.O. Box 7201
La Quinta, CA 92248

TOTALSIGNATURE:

Description AmountQty Rate

COACHELLA RUN WITH  LOS MUERTOS FESTIVAL SPONSORSHIP

Premiere Sponsorship 25,000.001 25,000.00
Entertainment, Large scale Installations, Library Space decor for:
Procession, 5K Run, Block Party, Art Walk
Sales Tax 0.008.75%

$25,000.00

- Page 223 -

Item 19.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jonathan Hoy, P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Professional Service Agreement with NV5 to develop final plans, specifications 

& estimates for the Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity 

Project No. ST-123 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Service Agreement with NV5 to develop 

final plans, specifications & estimates for the Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and 

Connectivity Project No. ST-123, in an amount not to exceed $330,000.00, which includes a 

10% contingency. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The City received approximately $3.2 million in funding from SB 859-Green House Gas 

Reduction Fund for the City of Coachella’s Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and 

Connectivity Project No. ST-123. This grant is intended to help create healthy and vibrant 

communities by establishing and enhancing parks and open space, using natural solutions to 

improving air and water quality and reducing energy consumption, and creating more walkable 

and bike-able trails. 

This phase of the project consists of the preparation of full construction documents including 

plans with final elevations, technical specifications, construction cost estimate (PS&E) and 

support services for the design of the following improvements: 

 

• Plant approximately 288 native, drought tolerant and low- water trees, 15 gallon or less 

• Plant approximately 1,100 native drought tolerant and low-water plantings 

• Install LED security lighting 

• Construct Class II bicycle path and sidewalk, including ADA curb ramps 

• Install permanent irrigation system 

• Installation of approximately 7,240 linear feet of bioswales 

• Approximately 51 wayfinding signs, 48 road signs, and one funding acknowledgement sign 

• Approximately 4 drinking fountains 

• Approximately 10 trash cans 

• Approximately 4 shade structures, 10 benches, 4 bike racks 

 

- Page 224 -

Item 20.



DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

In August 2019, the City published a request for proposals from qualified professional 

engineering and landscape architectural service firms.  On August 20, 2019 proposals were 

received from six engineering firms.  Staff reviewed the proposals and conducted interviews with 

the top three firms. As a result of the evaluation and interview process NV5 was selected as the 

top firm for this project. The complete ranking of the top three firms is as follows: 

1. NV5  

2. MBI 

3. MSA 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no cost to the General Fund to develop the PS&E for this project.  Funding for the 

Plans, Specification and Engineer Estimate was included in the City’s Approved Capital 

Improvement Program (CIP) FY19/20 budget. Funding for this phase of the project is funded 

through Urban Greening Grant Agreement No. U29142-0. 

 

- Page 225 -

Item 20.



 
1 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

NV5 

 

1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this 9th day of October 2019 by and between 

the City of Coachella, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 

California with its principal place of business at 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 92236 

(“City”) and NV5 with its principal place of business at, 42-829 Cook Street, Suite 104 Palm 

Desert, CA 92211 (“Consultant”).  City and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as 

“Party” and collectively as “Parties.” 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 Consultant. 

Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain 

professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement.  Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing professional engineering 

and landscape architectural Services to public clients, is licensed in the State of California, and is 

familiar with the plans of City. 

2.2 Project. 

City desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the Grapefruit Boulevard 

Urban Greening Project No. ST-123 (“Project”) as set forth in this Agreement. 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to 

the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 

necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional surveying services necessary for the 

Project (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject to, and performed in 

accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from October 9, 2019 to 

October 9, 2021, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  Consultant shall complete the 

Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and 

- Page 226 -

Item 20.



2 

deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if 

necessary to complete the Services. 

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 

Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine 

the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 

Agreement.  City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  

Consultant retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of 

this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on 

behalf of Consultant shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under 

Consultant’s exclusive direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other 

amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this 

Agreement and as required by law.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and 

obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security 

taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ 

compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Consultant shall perform the Services 

expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of 

Services set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

Consultant represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the 

Services in conformance with such conditions.  In order to facilitate Consultant’s conformance 

with the Schedule, City shall respond to Consultant’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon 

request of City, Consultant shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to 

meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 

Consultant shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Consultant has represented to City that 

certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should 

one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of 

at least equal competence upon written approval of City.  In the event that City and Consultant 

cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to terminate this 

Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the 

Services in a manner acceptable to the City, or who are determined by the City to be 

uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a 

threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the 

Consultant at the request of the City.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are 

as follows:  

Vickie Bridenstine, PE LEED AP -  Engineering Manager 

 

3.2.5 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates Jonathan D. Hoy, P.E. 

-City Engineer, or his designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 

(“City’s Representative”).  City’s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the 

- Page 227 -

Item 20.



3 

City for all purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall not accept direction or orders from 

any person other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative.  Consultant hereby designates John 

McCarthy PE, CFM-Principal, or his designee, to act as its representative for the performance of 

this Agreement (“Consultant’s Representative”).  Consultant’s Representative shall have full 

authority to represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement.  

The Consultant’s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and 

attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures 

and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Consultant agrees to work closely with City 

staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, consultants and other 

staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Consultant shall perform 

all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the 

standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the 

State of California.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional 

calling necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all employees and 

subconsultants shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to 

them.  Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees and subconsultants have all licenses, 

permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the 

Services, including a City Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be 

maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification 

provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without 

reimbursement from the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are 

caused by the Consultant’s failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any 

employee of the Consultant or its sub-consultants who is determined by the City to be 

uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat 

to the safety of persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services 

in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant 

and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and 

in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting 

the performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall 

give all notices required by law.  Consultant shall be liable for all violations of such laws and 

regulations in connection with Services.  If the Consultant performs any work knowing it to be 

contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, 

Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Consultant shall defend, 

indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, officers, employees, and agents free and 

harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or 

liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or 

regulations. 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

- Page 228 -

Item 20.



4 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence 

Work under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has 

secured all insurance required under this section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any 

subconsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory 

to the City that the subconsultant has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall, at its expense, 

procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to 

persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 

the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants.  

Consultant shall also require all of its subconsultants to procure and maintain the same insurance 

for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum 

levels of coverage: 

(A)  Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as 

broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 

Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 

Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); 

and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as 

required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain 

limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 

injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with 

general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general 

aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit 

shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident 

for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s 

Liability: Workers’ Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of 

California.  Employer’s Liability limits of $1,000,000  per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

3.2.10.3 Professional Liability.  Consultant shall procure and 

maintain, and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years 

following completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their 

profession.  Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claim, and shall 

be endorsed to include contractual liability. 

3.2.10.4 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall 

contain the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or 

approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be 

endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations 

performed by or on behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in 

connection with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 

the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall 

- Page 229 -

Item 20.



5 

stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying 

coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, 

officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and 

shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall 

be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, 

maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 

Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be 

primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s 

scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the 

Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 

Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 

insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 

Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 

or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 

provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 

the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All 

insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In 

addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection 

afforded to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.10.6 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any 

deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Consultant 

shall guarantee that, at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 

such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, 

employees, agents, and volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing 

payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense 

expenses. 

3.2.10.7 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with 

insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in 

California, and satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.10.8 Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish City 

with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this 

- Page 230 -

Item 20.



6 

Agreement on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for each 

insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 

behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the City if requested.  All certificates and 

endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work commences.  The City 

reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any 

time. 

3.2.10.9 Reporting of Claims.  Consultant shall report to the City, in 

addition to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in 

connection with the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.11 Safety.  Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid 

injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at 

all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, 

and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature 

of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as 

applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) adequate life protection and life saving 

equipment and procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and 

subconsultants, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, 

confined space procedures, trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, 

equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or 

injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety 

measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including 

authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth 

in Exhibit ”C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation 

shall not exceed Three Hundred Thirty Thousand Dollars ($330,000.00) without written 

approval of City Manager.  Extra Work may be authorized, as described below, and if 

authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Consultant shall submit to City a monthly 

itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by 

Consultant.  The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the 

initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, 

through the date of the statement.   City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review 

the statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any 

expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 

request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work 

which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which 

the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.  

- Page 231 -

Item 20.



7 

Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization 

from City’s Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages.  Consultant is aware of the requirements of California 

Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, 

Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of 

prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on “public works” and 

“maintenance” projects.  If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public 

works” or “maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total 

compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage 

Laws.  City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in 

effect at the commencement of this Agreement.  Consultant shall make copies of the prevailing 

rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the 

Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Consultant’s 

principal place of business and at the project site.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold 

the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or 

liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Consultant shall maintain complete and 

accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 

records shall be clearly identifiable.  Consultant shall allow a representative of City during 

normal business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any 

other documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all 

work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three 

(3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice to 

Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by 

giving written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, 

at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, 

Consultant shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to 

City, and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Consultant may not terminate 

this Agreement except for cause. 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 

herein, City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data 

and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the performance of 

Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to provide such document and other 

information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

- Page 232 -

Item 20.



8 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 

whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it 

may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this 

Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other 

address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

Consultant: 

NV5 

42-829 Cook Street, Suite 104  

Palm Desert, CA 92211 

Attn:  Vickie Bridenstine, PE LEED AP -  Engineering Manager 

 

City: 
City of Coachella 

1515 Sixth Street 

Coachella, CA  92236 

Attn:  Jonathan D. Hoy, P.E. – Engineering Department 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 

(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at 

its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice 

occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property.  This 

Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, modify, reuse, or 

sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, 

specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in 

any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data 

magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be 

prepared by Consultant under this Agreement (“Documents & Data”).  Consultant shall require 

all subconsultants to agree in writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license 

for any Documents & Data the subconsultant prepares under this Agreement.  Consultant 

represents and warrants that Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & 

Data.  Consultant makes no such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data 

which were prepared by design professionals other than Consultant or provided to Consultant by 

the City.  City shall not be limited in any way in its use of the Documents and Data at any time, 

provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement shall be at City’s 

sole risk. 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, 

procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written 

information, and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in 

- Page 233 -

Item 20.



9 

connection with the performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant.  

Such materials shall not, without the prior written consent of City, be used by Consultant for any 

purposes other than the performance of the Services.  Nor shall such materials be disclosed to 

any person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or the Project.  Nothing 

furnished to Consultant which is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has 

become known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use 

City’s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or 

the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other 

similar medium without the prior written consent of City. 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 

appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorney’s Fees.  If either party commences an action against the other 

party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 

Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the 

losing party reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.6 Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 

defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents 

free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, 

loss, damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any 

manner arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to any negligence, errors or omissions, 

recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, agents, 

consultants, and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the 

Consultant’s Services, including without limitation the payment of all consequential damages, 

expert witness fees, and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. Consultant shall 

defend, at Consultant’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or 

other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.  Consultant shall pay and satisfy any 

judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, officials, officers, 

employees, agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Consultant 

shall reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, 

for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in 

enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Consultant’s obligation to indemnify shall not be 

restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the City, its directors, officials officers, 

employees, agents, or volunteers. 

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by 

both parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

- Page 234 -

Item 20.



10 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 

this Agreement. 

3.5.10 City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.  City reserves right to employ 

other consultants in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the 

successors and assigns of the parties. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate or 

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 

prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 

hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 

assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have 

participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 

construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any 

term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not 

work days.  All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, and 

subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to 

City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 

specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 

convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 

content or intent of this Agreement. 

3.5.14 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or amendment 

of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.5.15 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 

default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 

privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 

contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.5.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 

beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.17 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 

invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 

provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.18 Prohibited Interests.  Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not 

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 

for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not 

paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 

solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 

contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Consultant further 

agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic 

- Page 235 -

Item 20.



11 

Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the 

Services.  For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this 

Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of 

City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this 

Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.19 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Consultant represents that it is an equal 

opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or 

applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, 

sex or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 

initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff 

or termination.  Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City’s Minority 

Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines 

currently in effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.20 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Consultant certifies that it 

is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every 

employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-

insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such 

provisions before commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.21 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Consultant has all requisite power and 

authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 

warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 

authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.22 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute an original. 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of 

the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written 

approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all 

provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

- Page 236 -

Item 20.



12 

 

 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA    Q3 CONSULTING 

By:                                                      By:  ________________________ 

Bill Pattison     Carmen Kasner 

City Manager     Regional Managing Director 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

By:_______________________          ____        _ 

      Carlos Campos, City Attorney            Date 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:_______________________          __________ 

      City Clerk                                             Date 

 

- Page 237 -

Item 20.



 

C-13 
 

EXHIBIT “A”  

- Page 238 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella
Jonathan Hoy, P.E. 
1515 Sixth Street 

Coachella, CA 92236

PS&E FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING AND LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES, CITY PROJECT NO. ST-123 

GRAPEFRUIT BLVD. URBAN GREENING AND CONNECTIVITY PROJECT
August 20, 2019

Prepared For: 

Address Line 1
Address Line 2
City, ST 000000
PM Name
Phone: 555.555.5555 | Email

42-829 Cook Street, Suite 104
Palm Desert, CA 92211
Vickie Bridenstine
Phone: 760.341.3101 | Vickie.Bridenstine@nv5.com

- Page 239 -

Item 20.



42-829 Cook Street, Suite 104  |  Palm Desert, CA 92211  |  www.NV5.com  |  Office  760.341.3101  |  Fax  760.469.4086
CONSTRUCTION QUALITY ASSURANCE  -  INFRASTRUCTURE  -  ENERGY  -  PROGRAM MANAGEMENT  -  ENVIRONMENTAL

August 20, 2019

City of Coachella
Attn: Jonathan Hoy, P.E.
1515 Sixth Street
Coachella, CA 92236

SUBJECT:  Proposal for Professional Engineering and Landscape Architectural Services PS&E  
  for the Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity Project   
  City Project No. ST-123 

Dear Mr. Hoy,

The City of Coachella (City) has a unique 70 year history filled with a vibrant culture and an inspiring 
community. The City is in need of our engineering and survey team to assist with the preparation of full plans, 
specifications, and estimate (PS&E) for the Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity project. 
NV5, Inc. is that firm. Our proposal is intended to highlight our capabilities—the disciplines, similar experience, 
and qualified staff that we can bring to you. NV5’s focus is always on quality of product and service and our 
goal is to always meet or exceed your expectations.

 » Understanding of Work — NV5 understands the nature of the City’s needs and is fully committed to the 
services as outlined throughout our submittal. Our work will be performed under the direction of our Project 
Manager, Vickie Bridenstine, PE who has over 33 years of experience providing the services required in this 
contract.

 » Similar Experience — NV5 has delivered similar projects to local agencies throughout Riverside County, 
including the Cities of Coachella, Indian Wells, Palm Desert, La Quinta, Indio, the County of Riverside, and 
the Coachella Valley Water District. Through this experience we have: 1) confronted similar challenges and 
have resolved them, 2) identified ways to do it better, and 3) developed the ability to anticipate your needs, 
expectations, and unique project concerns. This experience will allow us to foresee problems before they 
occur and complete the project in a timely manner. Additionally, our knowledge of local codes and regulations 
make us ideal to perform these services.

 » Responsiveness and Ability to Meeting Contract Needs — NV5 will provide your requested services with 
our in-house staff in Palm Desert along with our subconsultant, Ray Lopez Associates (RLA), whom NV5 has 
enjoyed an excellent working relationship for many years. 

 » Strong Project Personnel — Our team members’ track record of delivering important projects for the City, and 
the surrounding area demonstrates that we understand the concerns of municipalities and are familiar with 
developing and implementing standards and procedures.

CONSULTANT IDENTIFICATION
NV5, Inc. 42-829 Cook Street, Suite 104
Palm Desert, CA 92211 760.341.3101

PRIMARY CONTACT FOR THIS ASSIGNMENT
Vickie Bridentstine, PE, LEED AP, Project Manager

42-829 Cook Street, Suite 104, Palm Desert, CA 92211 
760.341.3101 | vickie.bridenstine@nv5.com

SUBCONSULTANT IDENTIFICATION
Ray Lopez Associates

Ray Lopez, Principal, 56-960 Jackson Street, Vista Santa Rosa, CA 92274  
760.206.9696 | rlascape@aol.com - Page 240 -

Item 20.



42-829 Cook Street, Suite 104  |  Palm Desert, CA 92211  |  www.NV5.com  |  Office  760.341.3101  |  Fax  760.469.4086
CONSTRUCTION QUALITY ASSURANCE  -  INFRASTRUCTURE  -  ENERGY  -  PROGRAM MANAGEMENT  -  ENVIRONMENTAL

A commitment letter for our subconsultant RLA has been included in the appendix.

This proposal shall remain valid for no less than 180 days from the date of submittal. 

NV5 acknowledges receipt of RFP addendum no. 1 dated August 15, 2019. Please see signed addenda in the 
appendix.

NV5 verifies that all information submitted with this proposal is true and correct.

We are excited to work with the City on this contract and we look forward to strengthening our relationship.

Sincerely,

NV5, Inc.

Carmen Kasner, PE     Vickie Bridenstine, PE, LEED AP
Regional Managing Director    Project Manager
P26719-0005627.00

- Page 241 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 1

Qualifications, Related Experience, and References ___________________ 2

Proposed Staffing and Project Organization __________________________ 6

Work Plan ______________________________________________________ 7

Exceptions and Deviations _______________________________________ 15

Appendix

Cost and Price Proposal (under separate cover)

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity NV5.COM 

Table of Contents | 1

- Page 242 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 2

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Qualifications, Related Experience 
and References | 2

FIRM PROFILE
NV5 is a provider of professional and technical engineering and consulting solutions 
to the public and private sectors. We provide services through five business verticals: 
infrastructure, construction quality assurance, energy, program management, 
and environmental solutions. With offices located throughout the United States and 
with extensive resources to provide services locally, we strive to bring projects from 
inception to completion.

Your primary NV5 team is based in Palm Desert, just a short drive from the project 
location. With over 300 engineers, surveyors and support personnel located in 
Southern California, we are capable of providing high quality services throughout 
the area.

Established in 1949, NV5 has been serving Southern California for 70 years. NV5 is 
a publicly-owned and traded national corporation incorporated in California with offices 
located throughout the United States. We have a reputation for excellence earned from 
a long list of clients, with a focus on communities and a mission to use engineering to 
improve the quality of those communities. Our services are traditional — engineering, 
planning, surveying, construction management, and construction support — but our 
attitude, approach, and delivery are unique. The relationships we establish with our 
clients, our commitment to sustainability and our involvement in the communities we 
live and work in set us apart from other companies. The result is that we go beyond our 
client’s expectations to provide the right solutions for your project needs.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
NV5 is a leading provider of professional engineering and consulting solutions with a 
70-year history. We have experienced steady growth and have been listed on Fortune 
Magazine’s 100 Fastest Growing Firms List two years in a row (2017 - 2018). Our 
longevity and continued growth is a testament to our financial stability, ability to meet 
current and future obligations, and the strength of our professional capabilities.

CAPABILITIES
NV5 has worked for public and private clients, federal and local governments, and 
has delivered numerous projects within the Counties of Riverside, San Diego, San 
Bernardino and Imperial. NV5 has a well established working relationship with the 
City as we are currently working on, or have completed over 20 projects in the 
areas of surveying, civil engineering, traffic and transportation, and water. NV5 
engineers have performed various required evaluations, economic analyses, and 
developed PS&E for a variety of engineering projects. 

Some of the services we commonly provide to our clients include:

 » Surveying, Staking &
 » Mapping
 » Independent Plan 
Review

 » Legal Descriptions
 » Site Civil Engineering
 » Flood Control & Drainage
 » NPDES Services

 » Engineering Studies
 » Water/Wastewater
 » Engineering
 » Bridge & Transportation
 » Engineering
 » Construction Support,
 » Management & 
Inspection

 » Environmental Services
 » Geotechnical 
Engineering/

 » Materials Testing
 » Community/Public
 » Relations
 » Program Management
 » Energy Services

SUCCESS.

For the past 70 years, NV5 
has provided professional 
expertise to public and 
private sector agencies.
We talk with our clients 
and, more importantly, 
we listen. As a result, our 
clients trust us to provide 
the integrated consulting 
and management 
solutions that enable their 
success - regardless of 
project size or complexity.

EXPERIENCE.

NV5’s team of civil 
engineering and survey 
professionals offers 
essential public work 
improvements, PS&E, 
and transportation 
improvements, as well as 
all other required services 
for this contract. NV5 
has proven expertise to 
successfully provide the 
required services for the 
City of Coachella.

COMMITMENT.

NV5 is confident 
our expertise in civil 
engineering and surveying, 
combined with our 
extensive local knowledge, 
makes us your ideal 
partner. We have compiled 
a team of professionals 
who will be committed to 
the success of this project 
and will deliver the project 
in the agreed upon time-
frame.

- Page 243 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 3

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

SUBCONSULTANTS
NV5 routinely uses subconsultant firms to enhance our capabilities and provide outstanding services 
to our clients. For this project, we have chosen Ray Lopez Associates (RLA) due to their expertise in 
landscape architecture. 

Ray Lopez Associates, established in 1990, is a well-respected full service landscape architectural firm 
providing landscape design and landscape construction administration services to its clients in the 
governmental and private sectors. Serving clients that include developers, municipal agencies, private 
residential and utility companies. RLA offers practical, cost effective and aesthetic landscape design solutions 
that provide lasting enjoyment for the intended users.

NV5 and RLA have an excellent long standing relationship and we have worked on numerous projects 
together, including projects in Twentynine Palms, Yucca Valley, Cathedral City, and Palm Desert. The following 
table describes the roles and responsibilities of NV5 and Ray Lopez Associates joint work.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION NV5 ROLE RLA ROLE
Project Phoenix 
Twentynine Palms, CA Downtown Plaza Project Prime Subconsultant

Prescott Plaza 
Yucca Valley, CA Commercial Center Prime Subconsultant

Sage Estates 
Yucca Valley, CA 107 New Homes Prime Subconsultant

Mary Pickford Theater 
Cathedral City, CA Parking Lot Prime Subconsultant

Mohawk Car Wash 
Yucca Valley, CA Car Wash Prime Subconsultant

I-10 Auto Mall 
Indio, CA Auto Mall Prime Subconsultant

REFERENCES
NV5’s record of success is a true demonstration of the experience and credentials of our staff. However, 
despite how proud we are of our performance, we recognize that the true measure of success is the 
satisfaction of our clients. We encourage you to contact the individuals listed in the table below, as they can 
provide specific information regarding our performance and ability to meet schedule and budget requirements 
while going beyond simply producing a technically sound design and constructible project.

CITY OF TWENTYNINE PALMS ANGENIOUS ENGINEERING 
SERVICES, INC. NRO ENGINEERING

Frank Luckino 
City Manager
760.367.6799
fluckino@29palms.org

Andy Cheah 
Principal/Managing Director
949.599.5400
Andy.Cheah@angenious-es.com

Noel Owsley 
Principal
760.346.3250
noelo@aol.com

Qualifications, Related Experience 
and References | 3

- Page 244 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 4

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 
Past experience is the key indicator of future success. We are committed to quality and believe that 
commitment is one reason why more than 85% of our work comes from repeat clients—an obvious indicator 
of client satisfaction. Experience makes the difference between a successful and unsuccessful project. On 
the following pages we have included three similar projects that we feel highlight our team’s capabilities to 
successfully complete the Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity Project.

AVENUE 54/VAN BUREN STREET
CITY OF COACHELLA | COACHELLA, CA
NV5 provided survey and civil engineering services for the City of 
Coachella for the street widening of 6,300 linear feet of Avenue 
54 and 400 linear feet of Van Buren Street. NV5 performed a 
topographic and design survey prior to design. Our civil design 
included street widening, the addition of median curbs, storm 
drain, and irrigation relocation. The design was processed 
through the County of Riverside and Coachella Water District 
as well as the City of Coachella. NV5 also provided staking and 
construction support for the city during construction.

Reference: Jonathan Hoy, PE, City Engineer
Phone: 760.398.3502
Email: jhoy@coachella.org

TYLER STREET IMPROVEMENTS
CITY OF COACHELLA | COACHELLA, CA
NV5 provided surveying and consulting services for Tyler Street 
improvements that included pulverizing and repaving the 
existing street, constructing a redwood header and widening 
the pavement to the full width of the street. Services included 
topographic surveys and base map, preparing and processing 
street improvement plans and profiles. This project was 
completed on time and within budget.

Reference: Jonathan Hoy, PE, City Engineer
Phone: 760.398.3502
Email: jhoy@coachella.org

Qualifications, Related Experience 
and References | 4

VAN BUREN STREET IMPROVEMENT
CITY OF COACHELLA | COACHELLA, CA
NV5 provided engineering and surveying services for the Van 
Buren improvements. Design services included providing 
topographic surveys of existing features including above ground 
utilities, existing improvements, and preparing a base map 
of existing conditions. NV5 prepared and processed street 
improvement plans and profiles replacing the existing pavement 
and widening the roadway to include a bike path and walking 
path for Van Buren Street. This project was completed on time 
and within budget.

Reference: Jonathan Hoy, PE, City Engineer
Phone: 760.398.3502
Email: jhoy@coachella.org

- Page 245 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 5

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

AVENUE 48 WIDENING
CITY OF COACHELLA | COACHELLA, CA
NV5 provided civil design and survey for the partial widening and 
striping of Avenue 48 between Jackson and Van Buren streets in 
the cities of Coachella and Indio.

Our designs include a new traffic signal designed for the 
intersection of Avenue 48 and Van Buren, which is under the 
jurisdiction of both cities and the County of Riverside. The street 
widening occurred in multiple areas on both sides of the street 
and included curb and gutter, sidewalks and street lighting. NV5 
coordinated with the Imperial Irrigation District for electric pole 
relocations and street lighting design, and with the Coachella 
Valley Water District, which will abandon its existing irrigation 
pipelines and vacate the old Bureau of Reclamation easements.

NV5 also performed a topographic design survey and prepared 
right-of-way legal documents and a Phase-1 environmental 
assessment as part of this project.

Reference: Jonathan Hoy, PE, City Engineer
Phone: 760.398.3502
Email: jhoy@coachella.org

Qualifications, Related Experience 
and References | 5

CALHOUN STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
CITY OF COACHELLA | COACHELLA, CA
NV5 provided engineering and surveying services for the 
Calhoun Street improvements. Design survey services including 
a topographic survey showing existing features including above 
ground visible unities and existing improvements along Van 
Buren Street from the existing Pardee Tract to Avenue 49. NV5 
prepared a base map showing existing conditions along with the 
existing right-of-way. Additionally, NV5 prepared and processed 
street improvement plans and profiles replacing the existing 
pavement and widening the roadway to include a bike path and 
walking path on both sides of Calhoun Street. This project was 
completed on time and within budget.

Reference: Jonathan Hoy, PE, City Engineer
Phone: 760.398.3502
Email: jhoy@coachella.org

- Page 246 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 6

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

* Key Personnel
** Subconsultant

PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE

Carmen Kasner, PE

QUALITY ASSURANCE/
QUALITY CONTROL

Phil Kern, PE, QSD

SURVEYING

Jay Fahrion, PLS

CIVIL ENGINEERING DESIGN

Scott Vinton, PE

UTILITY CONSULTANT

Eddie Pablos

PROJECT MANAGER

Vickie Bridenstine, PE,  
LEED AP

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

**Ray Lopez Associates

Jonathan Hoy, PE
City Engineer/Assistant City 

Manager

Proposed Staffing and  
Project Organization | 6

PROJECT TEAM
NV5 has assembled a team of highly qualified professionals to meet your project needs. Team members 
have been selected based upon their experience with the potential scope of services, their knowledge of the 
local area, and their ability to serve the City’s needs for this contract. Vickie Bridenstine, Jay Fahrion, and 
Ray Lopez all have extensive work experience with the City of Coachella. All team members will be available 
to the extent proposed for the duration of the project—team members will not be removed or replaced 
without the prior written concurrence of the City.

The following organizational chart delineates the our key personnel and their role for this project. Resumes 
detailing key team members’ relevant experience, education, and applicable licenses are provided in 
the appendix.

- Page 247 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 7

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Work Plan | 7

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH
Phase 1 of the project includes research, information gathering, survey, coordination with the City staff 
and utility purveyors. Our first task will be to meet with City staff to determine if all the project’s goals and 
objectives have been covered by our proposal. We will also use this time with staff to review possible design 
alternatives to reduce costs and improve safety and function, if any and further define the project limits and 
scope. We will determine the project schedule, with the City’s concurrence, and begin gathering information 
and preparing the base mapping. 

We will approach this project with the understanding that the key issues are as follow:

Create a safe, pleasant, artful and walkable route that connects the key assets and activity centers within the 
Pueblo Viejo Downtown District.

• Resulting improvement in pedestrian and bicycle safety (during and after construction)
• Safe traffic operations during construction
• Effective coordination with the City, business owners and utility purveyors
• Utility conflict identification and resolution
• Constructability
• Project costs
• Project schedule and completion
• Accessibility of the consultant
• Community relations

As part of this project, NV5 will create a comprehensive base map, which will include research of existing 
records, plans and data pertaining to the project site and environs. This will include reviewing all current 
Assessor’s Parcel Maps, Parcel Maps, Records of Survey, Filed Maps, Right-of-way Maps and any other 
available maps or record drawings that affect the centerline and right-of-way. This information will be used to 
develop a base map for the improvement plans.

Upon notice to proceed we will conduct an aerial topographic 
survey for Grapefruit Boulevard between Leoco Lane and Ninth 
Street in the areas of proposed improvements. We will provide 
aerial topography for the project limits and include three 
hundred feet (300’) beyond the project limits to the north and 
south and 50-feet beyond the right-of-way limits on each side 
of Grapefruit Boulevard. This will provide the photometrics 
to illustrate existing physical features within those limits. In 
addition to the aerial topography, we will survey cross-sections 
at all intersections with side streets within the right-of-way 
to acquire accurate data for design. Each intersection will 
be surveyed in detail in order to get the level of accuracy to 
ensure the proposed design of ADA ramps and sidewalks meet 
the current criteria. 

Upon notice to proceed, we will initiate our utility coordination and research for the project. All major utility 
purveyors will be contacted and requests made for all of their information regarding the location of above-
ground and subsurface utilities. The information received from the utility companies identifying the size and 
location of their facilities will be plotted and added to our base map. Part of our field survey task will include 
locating visible utilities and other surface objects within the right-of-way. 

- Page 248 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 8

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Work Plan | 8

After completion of the above work, we will present the City with a comprehensive Planning/Engineering tool 
that will provide a clear, accurate document showing the current, existing physical and legal conditions of the 
roadway. We will use this base to overlay the proposed improvements including curb and gutter, Class II bike 
paths, bio swales and sidewalks. We will identify any areas that may be of concern, such as utility conflicts 
or local drainage issues. The geometric drawings showing the proposed improvements will be submitted to 
the City for approval prior to proceeding to subsequent phases of the project. A plant palette for all plants 
proposed to be included on the project will be submitted to the City. All proposed plants will comply with the 
Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO). These preliminary drawings will provide a base for 
the preliminary landscape and streetscape design and will be submitted to the City for their review prior to 
finalizing the plans. 

We assume that the environmental clearances for the project have already been obtained by the City. We will 
determine if any mitigation measures were identified during the environmental clearances will be required to 
bring the project impacts below a significant impact as indicated in a Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting 
Program (MMRP), if any.

Meetings with the City Staff, field reviews, coordination with utility purveyors, coordination with affected 
property owners, distributing information and soliciting feedback are all included in this first phase of 
the work. 

Phase 2 of work will include the project design and 
development of the improvement plans, specifications and 
estimates. We will design roadway signage and striping to 
meet Caltrans Standards unless otherwise directed by the 
City. We will strategize with the city staff and utility owners 
to solve design issues, resolve potential utility conflicts and 
address public concerns that may arise prior to completed 
design.

The design for the flashing beacon will be finalized 
after the potholes are performed at the new beacon 
pole locations to verify the absence of utility conflicts. 
We understand that those potholes will need to be 

drilled no less than the actual diameter of the proposed foundation of the poles and to the actual depth of 
the foundation. 

The landscape plans and irrigations plans will be prepared in conjunction with the street improvement plans 
and submitted concurrently with those plans. Street furniture such as bike racks, benches, trash cans, shade 
structures and security lighting will be shown the plans.

Utility potholes will be performed at the design phase in order to confirm utility locations. Any coordination for 
utility relocations will occur during this phase and utility agreements will be initiated if necessary.

The plans, specifications and estimates will be submitted to the City for review at the 60%, 100% and final 
completion stage. Upon receipt and review of the City’s comments, the review comments will be incorporated 
into the plans and they will be prepared to 100% completion. The preliminary Special Provisions of project 
specifications will be developed utilizing the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (latest 
edition), as well as a project Bid Schedule, which will be provided to the City for inclusion into the overall 
Project Specifications being compiled incorporating the City’ boilerplate information. These items, along with 
a preliminary quantity and cost estimate based upon the Bid Schedule, will be submitted to the City for review 
and comment with the submittals of the plans. 

- Page 249 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 9

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Work Plan | 9

Meetings with the City Staff, field reviews, coordination with utility purveyors, coordination with affected 
property owners if required, distributing information and soliciting feedback are all included in this phase of 
the work. 

Phase 3 of the project includes construction support for the project. We will attend the pre-bid meeting 
and will be available during the bidding process to answer questions regarding the project plans and 
specifications. Once a contractor has been selected, we will attend the pre-construction meeting in support of 
the City and be available to answer questions and respond to requests for information during the construction 
of the project. We will provide construction staking of all of the improvements included on the plans. When 
construction is complete, we will work with the contractor and the City to prepare record drawings of the 
project for submittal to the City.

WORK PLAN
Based upon our review of the City’s Request for Proposal (RFP) and our review of the existing field conditions, 
we have prepared the following Scope of Work tasks that will be needed to complete and provide a project 
that meets the City’s goals and expectations.

PHASE 1
RESEARCH, INFORMATION GATHERING, SURVEY, UTILITY RESEARCH AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
AND UNDERSTANDING
Task 1.1 Kickoff Meeting – The NV5 team will attend a kickoff meeting with the City staff to review the City’s 
goals and expectations, the schedule, discuss possible design alternatives, if any, and further define the 
project limits and scope of work.

Task 1.2 Research Record Information –Obtain all record information 
that is available through the City of Coachella and Riverside County 
including right-of-way maps, parcel maps, dedication documents and 
others to establish the legal centerline and right-of-way for Grapefruit 
Boulevard.

Task 1.3 Utility Research – Prepare utility notifications for all dry 
and wet utilities in the vicinity of the project. NV5 will request record 
drawings and atlas information from the City of Coachella Sanitary 
District, Coachella Water Authority, Spectrum Cable, Imperial Irrigation 
District, Frontier Communications, and SoCal Gas for utilities in the 
area, the information, once received, will be incorporated into the 
base map.

Task 1.4 Survey Control – Research with Riverside County and local 
agencies will also be performed to obtain horizontal and vertical 
survey control data to establish horizontal and vertical control for 
the project. The survey crew will search for existing monuments of 
record to establish the centerline and right-of-way for to the portion of 
Grapefruit improvements within the project limits. This information is 
to be shown and plotted on the base map.

Task 1.5 Aerial Topography Survey – NV5’s Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (UAV) staff will perform aerial 
flights using UAV Photogrammetry and Lidar to create the aerial topographic survey. The NV5 survey staff 
will set 5 (five) targets and provide horizontal and vertical control using NAD 83, California State Plane 
Coordinates Zone 6 and Local Vertical Datum. NV5 will deliver an overall hard-copy plot and a CD-ROM 

- Page 250 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 10

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Work Plan | 10

containing the Digital Terrain Model information used for the generation of topographical information, the 
contour information, planimetric detail, the tfw image limit files, orthophoto, TIFF images and .dwg image 
limits files which will allow us to bring the images into their proper coordinate position. The final delivery 
of digital information will be supplied in an AutoCAD CIVIL3D format. Aerial Topography will conform to US 
mapping standards.

Task 1.6 Supplemental Topographic Survey – A NV5 survey crew will perform a survey of the subject area 
utilizing a combination field surveying, utility locating, and aerial mapping operations. We will survey surface 
elevations and existing improvements, including:

• Visible above-ground utilities, including vaults, meters, freestanding equipment, manholes, and valves
• Drain inlets and outlets
• Fire hydrants, PIVs, and fire department connection(s)
• Fences, curbs and gutters
• Sidewalks, Handicap ramps
• Site light fixtures
• Power poles, guy wires, and power appurtenances

Task 1.7 Mapping – NV5 will compile all of the information obtained in the above tasks into a base map 
that will be utilized as a base for our concept design. We will map all of the record easements that are noted 
by record for the above-mentioned right-of-way. NV5 will map all existing utilities from observed evidence 
collected by the field survey and or evidence from plans requested by the surveyor and obtained from utility 
companies, or provided by client (with reference as to the sources of information). Aerial topography along 
with supplemental topography will be included in the base map.

Geometric Approval Drawings
Task 2.1 Conceptual Level Plans – Utilizing the base map and the 
aerial topography prepare conceptual level plans (30% level) of the 
project defining the proposed improvements for submittal to the City 
for review. Consideration will be given on how we can minimize 
impacts to the local businesses and provide a design that meets the 
City’s objectives.

Task 2.2 Conceptual Design Meeting with the City – NV5 design team 
will meet with the City staff to review the concept plan and discuss 

any revisions, potential constraints either physical or financial and discuss possible solutions. Agreed upon 
revisions will be incorporated into the concept plan prior to continuing with the next phase of the project.

PHASE 2
PROJECT DESIGN AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN DEVELOPMENT
Task 3.1 Final Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) – NV5 will prepare plans for the proposed 
improvements utilizing the approved conceptual design. The plans will be prepared as plan and profile sheets 
at a scale of 1”=20’. The title sheet will include the City’s standard notes and signature blocks. The plan 
package will include detail sheets and typical sections, a demolition plan, signing and striping as well as the 
street improvement designs. The plans will be submitted to the City for their review at 60% completions, 100% 
completion and Final approval. Final plans will be submitted on full size (24” x 36”) mylar.

- Page 251 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 11

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Task 3.2 Coordination Meetings – The design team will meet with the City staff to review the project plans 
and status at the 60% and 100 % submittal milestones. The team will review the plan status and project 
schedule as well as the City’s plan check comments.

Task 3.3 Flashing Beacon and LED Security Lighting Design – NV5 will prepare plans identifying the 
locations and proposed feeds for the flashing beacon and LED security lights. The plans will be based on the 
improvement plans and will be coordinated with all existing and proposed facilities.

Task 3.4 Utility Potholing – We will coordinate utility potholing prior to final design for utilities where a conflict 
may be an issue due to the proposed improvements. The locations of the flashing beacons, will be potholed 
the approximate diameter and depth of the proposed foundation/footing to identify any potential conflicts. 
Water mains where anticipated tie-ins for water meters for irrigation improvements and water fountain 
improvements will be potholed as needed. Gas mains or other below ground utilities will be potholed to verify 
horizontal and vertical locations.

Task 3.5 Coordination with Imperial Irrigation District (IID) – We will coordinate with IID regarding the point of 
service location for electrical supply of flashing beacons. Any pole relocations required will be per IID design. 
We are assuming that IID will provide the down feed and conduit plan to the beacon light locations. 

Task 3.6 Final Signing and Striping Plans – We will prepare signing 
and striping plans for the project improvements including transitions as 
needed on the north and south ends of the project. The plans will be 
prepared at a scale of 1”=20’ to match the street improvement plans. 
The plans will be prepared in planview only with stacked viewports and 
based upon Caltrans MUTCD. 

Task 3.7 Specifications – We will prepare the project technical 
specifications for the proposed improvements for City review with the 
100% and Final plan submittals. Specifications shall be prepared in Microsoft Word and shall conform to 
the Special Provisions Guide for use in the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction and shall 
include the bid schedule indicating measurement and payment for bid items for the project. The City will 
provide the front-end bid documents, contract and general provisions.

Task 3.8 Engineer’s Estimate of Probable Costs – We will provide an engineer’s estimate of probable costs 
with and submit with the 100% and final plan submittal. The estimate shall be prepared in Microsoft Excel 
and reflect items shown on the bid schedule provided as part of the specifications including sufficient bid 
items as reflected on the improvement plans for contactors to properly bid on the scope of work. As part of 
this task we will prepare a schedule indicating probable construction duration in calendar days to submit to 
the City for their use in communication with the potential bidders.

LANDSCAPE DESIGN
Task 4.1 Project Coordination and Communication – NV5’s subconsultant RLA will perform general project 
coordination such as site visits, phone calls, emails, etc. in order to make sure the project design decisions 
are communicated to the City and the design team.

Task 4.2 Base Maps and Planting Palette – RLA shall use NV5’s base CAD files to create the Landscape Base 
Sheets required for the Preliminary Landscape Plans, Landscape Construction Plans and Irrigation Plans. RLA 
will also prepare a planting palette for the project which reflects the plants indicated in the RFP as well as 
other drought tolerant plants which meet the requirements of the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance 
(MWELO) requirements. The plant palette will include the proposed species and sizes to be utilized on the 
project. (We understand that no trees may exceed 15 gallons in size in the initial planting.) The plant palette 
will be submitted to the City for their review prior to proceeding with the preliminary landscape design.

Work Plan | 11

- Page 252 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 12

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Task 4.3 Preliminary Landscape/Construction Plans – RLA will prepare a preliminary landscape plan on the 
base maps prepared as part of the previous task. The plan shall locate, size and identify all trees, shrubs and 
ground covers. Propose drinking fountains (4), trash cans (10), shade structures (4), benches (10) and bike 
racks (4) will be located on the plan. This plan will be submitted to the City and project team for review and 
preliminary approval. 

Task 4.4 Final Construction Plans for Street Furniture – This plan will call-out and locate site amenities 
based upon the review and comments received from the project team and the City. The specifications for the 
installation of the amenities as described in the previous task will be per the manufacturer and/or suppliers. 

Task 4.5 Final Landscape Plans – The final landscape plan will be based upon the review and comments 
received from the project team and City on the preliminary landscape plan. The plans will be submitted along 
with the irrigation plans to the City and the Coachella Water Authority for review and approval. The plans will 
include details and specifications required to install the landscape improvements, a title sheet with project 
information and an opinion of probable costs for the proposed landscape improvements.

Task 4.6 Irrigation Plans – The irrigation plan will be prepared to accompany the final landscape plans for 
submittal. The plan will specify all piping materials and sizes, emitters, valves, water meter locations and 
sizes required to irrigate the proposed and existing (if any) plant material. RLA will provide water calculations, 
flow requirements and equipment sizing as required.

Task 4.7 Processing Landscape and Irrigation Plans – Processing of the construction documents, landscape 
and irrigation plans will be done with the Water district and the City for final approval. Minor corrections to the 
plans after review by the agencies in included under this task. It is assumed that no more than two submittals 
will be required before the plans are approved for construction.

PHASE 3
CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT
Task 5.1 Pre-Bid Requests for Information (RFIs) – We will respond to RFIs during the bidding process 
relating to our plans and specifications. We have assumed up to ten (10) pre-bid RFIs. We will provide 
documentation of our responses to the RFIs and submit them to the City for reference.

Task 5.2 Temporary Markings – We will provide temporary markings depicting the limits of construction prior 
to the pre-construction meeting. 

Task 5.3 Pre-Construction Meeting – We will attend a pre-construction meeting with the City and the 
selected contractor. NV5 staff will include members of the design team and construction survey team. We 
will be prepared to answer any questions regarding the plans and specifications and we will be available to 
coordinate schedule of construction staking. Discussions will include staking request protocol and lead times.

Task 5.4 Construction Staking – NV5 will provide office calculations and one set of stakes for the 
following tasks.

• Curb and Gutter along the easterly side along with the handicap ramps on the westerly side of Grapefruit 
Boulevard and the southerly side of 9th street. Stake will be set at 25’ intervals and graded to top of curb or 
finish surface. Cut sheets shall be provided to the client.

• Curb and Gutter for the proposed median along the center of Grapefruit Boulevard. Stake will be set at 25’ 
intervals and graded to top of curb and invert of pipe in Bio Swale. Cut sheets shall be provided to the client.

• Stake locations of Beacon lights and lighted Bollards. Cut Sheets shall be provided.

Work Plan | 12

- Page 253 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 13

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Task 5.5 Construction RFIs – We will respond to Construction staff and/or Contractor RFIs during the project 
construction as it relates to clarification of technical design issues that may come up during construction. We 
have assumed up to ten (10) construction RFIs. We will provide documentation of our responses to the RFIs 
and submit them to the City for reference.

Task 5.6 Site Observation and Quality Control Landscape Improvements – During construction observe, 
recommend, clarify and provide “filed reports” for the duration of the construction installation, not to exceed 
fifteen (15) site visits (3 visits per week +/-). Field reports shall indicate construction activities/progress, on-
site equipment/personnel and weather conditions. Additional days shall be billed at $250.00 per visit/report 
as requested by the client. 

Task 5.7 Prepare Record Drawings – We will prepare a set of Mylar “Record Drawings” reflecting as-built 
conditions based upon red-line copies of the plans from the contractor and City inspector upon the project 
completion. 

ASSUMPTIONS
• City already has the environmental clearances for this project.
• No additional right-of-way will be needed
• Record maps for existing right-of-ways are available for our use
• No fee encroachment permits will be required in order to accomplish our work including survey tasks

EXCLUSIONS
• CEQA documentation
• Geotechnical and pavement design services
• Community outreach services
• Hydrology/hydraulics calculations or reports
• Any task not included is excluded

Work Plan | 13

- Page 254 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and ConnectivityCity of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 14

ID Task Name

1 Notice to Proceed (3 wks from submittal)

2 PHASE 1
3 Kickoff meeting

4 Research

5 Topographical survey

6 Survey control and supplemental survey

7 Aerial topographic survey

8 Prepare base map

9 Geotechnical Analysis

10 Field exploration

11 Laboratory testing

12 Analysis and conclusions

13 Geometric approval drawings

14 Conceptual drawings

15 Conceptual design meeting with the City

16

17 PHASE 2
18 PS&E preparation (project & landscape design)

19 60% drawings

20 Submittal meeting

21 City Review

22 100% drawings

23 Submittal meeting

24 City Review

25 Final mylar

26 City signatures on mylars

27

28 PHASE 3
29 Bid support services

30 Construction support services

31 Pre-construction meeting

32 Construction staking

33 Respond to RFI & other questions

34 Prepare record drawings

35 Project completion

9/9

9/9

10/3

10/31

12/5

12/17

7/28

8/4

1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30
Sep '19 Oct '19 Nov '19 Dec '19 Jan '20 Feb '20 Mar '20 Apr '20 May '20 Jun '20 Jul '20 Aug '20

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

GRAPEFRUIIT BOULEVARD URBAN GREENING AND CONNECTIVITY PROJECT

Page 1

Project: Grapefruit Blvd Schedule.mpp
Date: 8/19/19

Work Plan | 14

- Page 255 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 15

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Exceptions/Deviations | 15

EXCEPTIONS AND DEVIATIONS
NV5 prides ourselves in quality service, satisfied clients, and a cooperative approach to working relationships. 
This is due to a long track record of successful projects and clients offering repeat business. The request for 
proposal requested a description of possible exceptions to the sample Professional Services Agreement. Our 
review of the agreement has determined that the agreement is acceptable to NV5.

- Page 256 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

APPENDIX

- Page 257 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Subconsultant  
Commitment Letter

R A Y   L O P E Z   A S S O C I A T E S
LANDSCAPE   ARCHITECTURE   &   PLANNING

56-960 JACKSON STREET, VISTA SANTA ROSA, CA   92274

Phone: 760 / 206-9696     E-mail:  RLAscape@aol.com

August 14, 2019

Ms. Vickie Bridenstine 
NV5, Inc.
42-829 Cook Street, Suite 104, Palm Desert, CA 92211
P:  858.927.3651   E: Kristina.Schulz@nv5.com

Subject: Letter of Commitment for the City of Coachella Request for Professional Engineering and Landscape
Architectural Services Preparation of PS&E for the Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity Report / City
project No. ST-123

Dear Ms. Bridenstine:

Ray Lopez Associates is pleased to join the NV5 team for the subject contract.  We are committed to the NV5 team to
provide Construction Documents for the site amenities (e.g. shade structures, drinking fountains, bike rakes, benches),
Landscape Plans, Irrigation Plans, Details and Specifications.

We appreciate your interest in Ray Lopez Associates and look forward to working with NV5 and the City of Coachella
for this contract.

Sincerely,

Raymond C. Lopez

Raymond C. Lopez
President / Landscape Architect

  

- Page 258 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 18

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Resumes

CARMEN KASNER, PE 
Principal-in-Charge

Carmen has 29 years of experience in municipal services focusing on civil 
design of CIP projects. She offers vast insight into public participation, 
permitting and coordination, project and design standards and site and 
access constraints. Carmen’s experience includes extensive levels of 
inventory development and condition assessment of agency assets, with 
projects ranging from sanitary to storm to roadway systems. Her experience 
also includes extensive work and coordination with various agencies in 
southern California involving flood control, development, transportation 
issues, water system capacities, sewer conditions and public meetings.

Project Experience
PROJECT PHOENIX 
TWENTYNINE PALMS, CA 
Principal-in-charge for this project overseeing the project team and providing 
guidance during the engineering and design phase. The development plan 
includes a 71-unit senior housing facility, a 14,000-square-foot multi-
purpose building, a package wastewater treatment plant, public parking 
lots, and associated sidewalks, paseos, roadways, street, landscaping and 
lighting improvements. The area encompasses approximately 11.2 acres 
in downtown Twentynine Palms. NV5 has been contracted to provide all 
aspects of design services for this project including civil, water, wastewater, 
geotechnical, traffic, landscape and utility coordination services.

AVENUE 48 WIDENING, STRIPING AND SIGNAL
COACHELLA, CA
Carmen provided oversight and guidance to the team that provided civil design and survey for the partial 
widening and striping of Avenue 48 between Jackson and Van Buren streets in the cities of Coachella and 
Indio. NV5’s designs include a new traffic signal designed for the intersection of Avenue 48 and Van Buren, 
which is under the jurisdiction of both cities and the County of Riverside. NV5 coordinated with the Imperial 
Irrigation District for electric pole relocations and street lighting design, and with the Coachella Valley 
Water District, which will abandon its existing irrigation pipelines and vacate the old Bureau of Reclamation 
easements. The team also performed a topographic design survey and prepared right-of-way legal documents 
and a Phase-1 environmental assessment as part of this project. 

CITYWIDE PEDESTRIAN ACCESS RAMPS
RANCHO MIRAGE, CA
Principal-in-charge of this project, which included survey and analysis of over 450 pedestrian access ramps 
within the City to determine the level of ADA compliance. Based upon a complex ranking system and physical 
locations of the ramps, 100 were selected to be replaced with ramps that meet the current Federal and state 
ADA requirements.

EAST VALLEY PARKWAY WIDENING
CITY OF ESCONDIDO | ESCONDIDO, CA
Principal-in-charge for the design of this $6M project will eliminate a traffic bottleneck and features a 
bridge widening, traffic signal modifications, streetscape design, preparation of right-of-way documents and 
environmental services. The designers took special care during the geometric approval phase of the project to 
ensure that the improvements were no more than needed to accommodate future traffic projections, saving the 
City capital funds that could be applied to other needs.

EDUCATION
BS, Civil Engineering
South Dakota State University

EXPERIENCE
29 years

CREDENTIALS
CA Professional Engineer
No. 50856

CURRENT ASSIGNMENTS
PIC for:
Project Phoenix
San Luis Rey Recycled Water 
Pipeline
Miramar Cear Well 
Replacement Construction 
Management

ASSIGNMENT AVAILABILITY
10%

TENURE WITH FIRM
5 years

- Page 259 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 19

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

VICKIE BRIDENSTINE, PE, LEED AP 
Project Manager

Vickie has over 34 years of civil engineering experience in public and 
private sectors. Her engineering background includes over five years of 
plan check services for various cities throughout southern California. Cities 
within the Coachella Valley/Inland Empire include Beaumont, Coachella, 
and Rancho Mirage. In addition to performing plan check reviews, 
Vickie was tasked with developing check lists to be used in ensuring 
plan completeness. 

She has prepared designs and specifications as well as managed the 
design of many private and municipal engineering projects. Her special 
areas of expertise are sanitary sewer, water distribution, street design 
including reconstruction and rehabilitation, storm drain, hydrology and 
hydraulics, rough and final grading design. Through hands-on experience 
with state-of-the-art computer-aided design and drafting, combined with 
practical field experience, Vickie has provided comprehensive consulting 
services from the preliminary planning stages through construction for 
private sector and public works projects.

Project Experience
AVENUE 48 WIDENING
COACHELLA, CA
The project includes street improvements for the widening Avenue 48 to three lanes in each direction. Vickie 
provided management and design engineering services for the street improvement plans, signing and striping 
and utility coordination, tying the new improvements into existing streets.

PROJECT PHOENIX
TWENTYNINE PALMS, CA
Project manager for this 11.2 acre downtown redevelopment project. The project includes a 14,000 
multi-purpose building, museum and cultural center, housing project, pedestrian paseos and parking lots, 
sewer and water improvements, street widening, undergrounding overhead utilities, landscaping and lighting 
improvements and a package wastewater treatment plant. 

TYLER STREET PAVEMENT REHABILITATION
COACHELLA, CA
The project included the reconstruction of approximately 3,300’ of Tyler Street between Avenue 53 and Avenue 
54 in the City of Coachella. The plan included pulverizing existing pavement and using it for bas and repaving 
matching existing pavement and curb and gutter where they exist.

PEDESTRIAN RAMP IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
RANCHO MIRAGE, CA
This project included the survey and analysis of over 450 pedestrian access ramps within the City to determine 
the level of ADA compliance. Based upon a complex ranking system and physical locations of the ramps, 100 
were selected to be replaced with ramps that meet the current Federal and state ADA requirements. Vickie was 
the lead designer in the preparation of the plans and specifications for this project.

EDUCATION
Geotechnical Engineering, 
University of Missouri, Rolla

EXPERIENCE
34 years

CREDENTIALS
CA Professional Engineer,  
No. 57142
LEED Accredited Professional

CURRENT ASSIGNMENTS
Project Phoenix - 25%
Prescott Plaza - 20%
Gates of Spain - 5%
Onaga Trail Extension - 20%

ASSIGNMENT AVAILABILITY
30%

TENURE WITH FIRM
7 years

Resumes

- Page 260 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 20

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

ST-70 CALHOUN STREET IMPROVEMENTS
COACHELLA, CA
Project manager and design engineer for approximately 1100 LF of street improvements and widening. The 
design included full depth removal of existing pavement and widening street to accommodate a bike lane 
and walking path on both sides of the roadway. The design was challenging due to existing power poles and 
developed properties directly adjacent to the right-of-ways. The plans also included the signing and striping for 
the new roadway.

ST-70 VAN BUREN STREET IMPROVEMENTS
COACHELLA, CA
Project manager and design engineer for approximately 1400 LF of street improvements and widening. The 
design included full depth removal of existing pavement and widening street to accommodate a bike lane and 
walking path. The design included vertical revisions to help deal with ponding issues on the existing roadway.

THE GARDENS AT EL PASEO
PALM DESERT, CA
Managed and designed this 8-acre “high-end” retail center in Palm Desert. The project included a pedestrian 
paseo and a multi-level parking structure developed in Palm Desert’s exclusive El Paseo retail district. The 
design included grading, drainage, sewer, water, street and utility coordination.

THE CANYONS AT BIGHORN
PALM DESERT, CA
As project manager /engineer for this 470-unit residential and golf community, Vickie was responsible for 
providing a full range of civil engineering services. The project included a Tom Fazio-designed golf course as 
well as coordination with the Corps of Engineers, Department of Fish and Game, and local agencies. The design 
included grading, street and storm drain design, sanitary sewer and water including three different pressure 
transmission and distribution mains.

Resumes

- Page 261 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 21

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

PHIL KERN, PE, QSD 
Quality Assurance/Quality Control

Phil’s 32 years of experience includes designing and processing public 
works projects. He has performed in the capacity of project manager 
on a wide variety of civil engineering projects involving transportation 
facilities, utility repairs and upgrades, and site work. He has been 
directly responsible for the preparation of grading plans, infrastructure 
improvement plans, specifications, traffic control/phasing plans, and 
construction administration for numerous complex civil engineering 
projects. His familiarity with the operations of major local agencies has 
helped to streamline the design and processing of many projects. In 
addition to having special technical emphasis in the areas of hydrology, 
hydraulics, site and transportation design, Phil’s capabilities are enhanced 
by his eye for detail and skills in organization, project planning, and written 
communication.

Project Experience
EAST VALLEY PARKWAY/VALLEY CENTER ROAD WIDENING
ESCONDIDO, CA 
Project manager for design of one half-mile widening of East Valley 
Parkway and Valley Center Road to prime arterial standards where it joined 
improvements previously constructed by the County. This $6.7M project 
eliminates a traffic bottleneck and features a bridge widening, traffic signal 
modifications, streetscape design, preparation of right of way documents 
and environmental services. The designers took special care during the 
geometric approval phase of the project to ensure that the improvements were no more than needed to 
accommodate future traffic projections, saving the City capital and maintenance funds that could be applied to 
other needs.

SOUTH SANTA FE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CA
Principal in charge for this project to widen South Santa Fe from a 2-lane to a 4-lane arterial roadway with a 
50 mph design speed. This involves the preparation of alignment studies, final plans, specifications, and cost 
estimates. Project involves overhead utility relocation, replacement of existing water distribution system and 
sewage conveyance system, and major storm drain facility design including two major creek crossings, design 
of approximately 1,500 linear feet of major concrete channel design and three box culvert crossings (single, 
triple and quintuple barrel).

BAYSHORE BIKEWAY PROJECT
SAN DIEGO, CA
Principal in charge for the Bayshore Bikeway, which makes a 26-mile loop around the San Diego Bay. A key 
element of this project was to coordination with each agency having jurisdiction along the proposed path. In 
addition, coordination involved SDG&E, the San Diego Unified Port District, railroad owners BNSF and MTS, and 
the United States Navy. Phil attended Monthly Project Development Team meetings, which were held to provide 
status and schedule updates to each agency.

EDUCATION
BS, Civil Engineering
San Diego State University

EXPERIENCE
32 years

CREDENTIALS
CA Professional Engineer
No. 40831
Qualified SWPPP Developer
Certificate CalEMA Safety 
Assessment Program Evaluator
No. 68105

CURRENT ASSIGNMENTS
Espola Road Bike Lanes - 20%
Quarry Road Bridge - 10%
Scott Road Widening - 30%

ASSIGNMENT AVAILABILITY
25%

TENURE WITH FIRM
11 years

Resumes

- Page 262 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 22

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

JAY FAHRION, PLS 
Surveying

Jay is a survey manager in NV5’s Palm Desert office with over 39 years of 
surveying and mapping experience in Northwest New Mexico and Southern 
California. He worked in the public sector for San Juan County Public Works 
in Aztec, New Mexico for eight years where his duties included right-of-way 
surveys and acquisitions, topographic surveys, and construction staking. 
His experience includes boundary surveys, ALTA surveys, topographic 
surveys, construction staking, preparing and processing record of surveys, 
corner records and parcel maps. His duties also include daily assignment 
of field and office work, managing field and office personnel, proposal 
preparation and client development. Jay has completed the rigorous 
American Congress on Surveying and Mapping course on various surveying 
specialties, as well as numerous other continuing education courses.

Project Experience
ST-70 - CALHOUN AND VAN BUREN STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
COACHELLA, CA
Survey manager for crews providing construction-staking services, 
topographic survey for the design and widening of streets, preparing plans 
and consulting with the City of Coachella. NV5 provided civil engineering and survey design services, which 
covers Calhoun Street and Van Buren Street.

PROJECT PHOENIX
TWENTYNINE PALMS, CA
Survey manager overseeing survey services for 11.2 acres of downtown Twentynine Palms that included the 
following tasks; aerial topographic survey which was flown by our UAV, supplemental topographic survey, 
boundary survey, location of existing utilities and preparation of a base map provided to the client.

AVENUE 54/VAN BUREN
COACHELLA, CA
Survey manager for an aerial survey of Avenue 54 from Harrison Street to Van Buren Street and Van Buren 
Street from Avenue 54 to Avenue 56. We provided street cross sections on Avenue 54, along with utility 
locations, and mapping of existing right-of-way on Avenue 54. Information was provided to the client for street 
design of Avenue 54, which will be done by NV5 staff.

AVENUE 50 BRIDGE AT COACHELLA VALLEY STORM CHANNEL
COACHELLA, CA
Survey manager for network control survey conducted to Caltrans standards along with aerial topography of 
the proposed site. NV5 staff provided a base map from record information along with network survey and aerial 
survey to the client. 

EDUCATION
BS, Civil Engineering, San Diego 
State University

EXPERIENCE
39 years

CREDENTIALS
CA Professional Land Surveyor, 
No. 8207

CURRENT ASSIGNMENTS
City of LaQuinta - 30%
City of Indio - 25%
City of Twentynine Palms - 25%

ASSIGNMENT AVAILABILITY
20%

TENURE WITH FIRM
28 years

Resumes

- Page 263 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 23

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

SCOTT VINTON, PE 
Civil Engineering Design

Scott is a licensed civil engineer in the state of California with 28 years 
of experience, including experience in program management, project 
management, design and construction management services. His expertise 
includes commercial/institutional, public works, land development, energy 
and transportation projects.

As the project manager of many land development projects in southern 
California, Scott has been responsible for all phases of development from 
entitlement through construction. His design and management experience 
extends from small 40 lot subdivisions, high-density condominium and 
apartment sites, 2,200-lot master planned communities, public works 
projects, electrical substation and undergrounding to freeway construction. 
He has also provided due diligence assistance for clients wishing to 
determine the feasibility of development.

Project Experience
AVENUE 54 IMPROVEMENTS
COACHELLA, CA
Project engineer providing construction support for one mile of street widening on Avenue 54 for the City 
of Coachella. His efforts included redesign of driveways, redesign of drainage and water facilities due to 
encountered underground obstructions and providing the surveyors additional information needed for the 
construction staking. All of these items needed to be accomplished in a short time frame to the contractor. 

RANCHO MIRAGE DOG PARK
RANCHO MIRAGE, CA
Project engineer working as a subconsultant to a landscape architect on a dog park for the City of Rancho 
Mirage. The project included finish grading design of a 3.7-acre dog park, sewer and water services, and public 
improvements fronting the park including street, sewer and water design.

AVENUE 48 WIDENING
COACHELLA, CA
The project included street improvements for the widening Avenue 48 in the Cities of Coachella and Indio to 
three lanes in each direction. Scott provided design engineering services for the street improvement plans, 
signing and striping and utility coordination, tying the new improvements into existing streets.

JAMACHA BOULEVARD IMPROVEMENTS
SAN DIEGO COUNTY, CA
Project engineer for design services for the County of San Diego for this ½-mile road-widening project. 
The project provides for the design of the widening of Jamacha Boulevard between Spring Glen Lane and 
Sweetwater Springs Boulevard in an unincorporated area of San Diego County. The two-lane road will be 
expanded to four lanes, including curb and gutter, sidewalk and parkways, bike lanes, a striped median, 
retaining wall and a water quality basin.

PAVEMENT REHABILITATION AND PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS
VISTA, CA
Scott provided civil design services for this project which included field pavement inspection, identifying 
distressed areas to be removed and recommending the appropriate pavement repair and pavement overlay for 
over 10 miles of roadway. He also performed inspection, construction survey, design, and as-built services for 
the replacement of approximately 58 pedestrian ramps that the City wanted to bring up to ADA standards.

EDUCATION
BS, Civil Engineering, San Diego 
State University

EXPERIENCE
28 years

CREDENTIALS
CA Professional Engineer,  
No. 54703

CURRENT ASSIGNMENTS
Southwestern College – 50%
SDG&E – 10%

ASSIGNMENT AVAILABILITY
40%

TENURE WITH FIRM
14 years

Resumes

- Page 264 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 24

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

EDDIE PABLOS 
Utility Consultant

Eddie has over 23 years of experience encompassing management of 
the design, construction, and technical aspects of electric, gas, and 
telecommunications systems serving large master planned communities, 
single family tracts, multi-family developments, and commercial 
developments within the Orange, Riverside, Imperial, San Bernardino, 
Ventura, and Los Angeles Counties. His technical expertise, customer 
service, and project management skills enable him to provide quality 
customer service to clients.

Project Experience
LA ENTRADA – AVENUE 50
COACHELLA, CA
Utility Relocation designer for planning, design and engineering services 
for a new road being developed from the I-10 freeway to Avenue 50 in 
Indio, CA. This development is associated with the La Entrada project and 
included a Dry Utility Composite Exhibit as well as an extensive coordination effort with Imperial Irrigation 
Districts transmission department.

SILVEROCK WAY BACKBONE
LA QUINTA, VA
Utility Relocation designer for planning, design and engineering services for a new underground electric 
distribution system, and the creation of the substructure exhibit for Imperial Irrigation District, Verizon, and 
Time Warner on SilverRock Way from Avenue 52 south through the project to Jefferson Street (approximately 
6030’feet). Coordination and management for the conversion of electric, telephone and cable television from 
overhead to underground

DOWNTOWN INDIO INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS
INDIO, CA
Utility Relocation designer for planning, design and engineering services for a new underground electric 
distribution system, and the creation of the substructure exhibit for Verizon and Time Warner. Coordination and 
management for the conversion of electric, telephone and cable television from overhead to underground. This 
work also includes the removal of the facilities from alley ways to the street frontage.

PGA WEST – THE SIGNATURE – TRACT 36538-1 AND 2
LA QUINTA, CA
Utility Relocation designer. Duties included management and coordination for Single Family Residential 
development; including the IID backbone bring up work order for street improvements on PGA Blvd. were 
coordinated with IID, Frontier Communications, Spectrum Communications, and Southern California 
Gas Company.

EDUCATION
MBA, University of Redlands
BS, International Business, 
United States International 
University

EXPERIENCE
23 years

CURRENT ASSIGNMENTS
Project Phoenix - 20%
Other Projects - 75%

ASSIGNMENT AVAILABILITY
5%

TENURE WITH FIRM
17 years

Resumes

- Page 265 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 25

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

RAY LOPEZ, RLA 
Landscape Architecture

Ray has over 30 years of experience in southern California desert 
communities providing landscape design and landscape construction 
administrative services to both private and governmental clients. His 
projects include a variety including commercial/industrial developments, 
landscape perimeters, street/highway medians, public agency facilities, 
public parks, golf resorts and golf club facilities, single-family residential 
and multi-family residential. He is registered as a “Desert Native Plant 
Expert” for the County of San Bernardino and the Town of Yucca Valley. 
His firm, RLA provides practical, cost effective and aesthetic landscape 
design solutions.

Project Experience
PROJECT PHOENIX
TWENTYNINE PALMS, CA
Landscape Architect provided construction documents for landscape and 
irrigation plans for the 11.2 acres of downtown Twentynine Palms. Conduct 
site survey of the existing amenities, landscape,buildings and hardscape. 
Provide assistance in the approval process with the client, city and water 
district.

DESERT WILLOW GOLF RESORT - PERIMETER PARKWAY
PALM DESERT, CA
Landscape Architect created construction documents for landscape, irrigation and hardscape plans for the 
approximately three miles of parkway around 36 holes of golf. Hardscape plans included a meander sidewalk 
and perimeter accented block wall. Services included site observation during the construction process. 
Provided assistance in the approval process with the client, city and water district.

JOE MANN PARK - PALM DESERT COUNTRY CLUB NEIGHBOR PARK
PALM DESERT, CA
Project Leader for the design and construction of a three-acre neighborhood park. Created a sound working 
relationship with the design team (civil engineer, architect and client). Created construction documents for 
shade structures, drinking fountains, shade structures, trash cans, benches,basketball court, sand volleyball 
court, fencing, etc. Created landscape and irrigation plans.

RANCHO MARIPOSA - AREA 27 - RETENTION BASIN AND PERIMETER LANDSCAPE
COACHELLA, CA
Provided a color rendering, landscape, irrigation, hardscape plans, details and specifications. Hardscape 
plans included sidewalk, benches and concrete mow strip for the compacted granite pathway. Conduction 
Observation and Final walk-thru services were provide for quality control.

BEAR CREEK CHANNEL BIKE PATH
LA QUINTA, CA
Prepared landscape and irrigation plans for 1.6-mile-long bike path. Conducted construction observation for 
quality control during the installation of the landscape.

EDUCATION
BS, Landscape Architecture, 
California Polytechnic State 
University, San Luis Obispo
AA, Landscape Architecture, 
College of the Desert

EXPERIENCE
30 years

CREDENTIALS
CA Registered Landscape 
Architect, No. 3474

CURRENT ASSIGNMENTS
Project Phoenix - 50%
Desert willow Perimeter 
Upgrade - 10%

ASSIGNMENT AVAILABILITY
40%

TENURE WITH FIRM
29 years

Resumes

- Page 266 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 26

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Addenda Acknowledgement

ADDENDUM TO REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

FOR THE GRAPEFRUIT BOULEVARD URBAN GREENING AND CONNECTIVITY 
PROJECT, CITY PROJECT NO. ST-123

ADDENDUM NUMBER 1 

Addendum Date: August 15, 2019

Purpose: This addendum supplements, amends, and takes precedence over the original request 
for proposal (RFP) and shall be taken into account when preparing bid proposals, and 
shall become part of the contract documents. Offerors shall review the Addendum 
work and requirements in detail and incorporate any effects the Addendum may have in 
their scope of services and cost proposal. 

Note: All requirements of the RFP documents remain unchanged except as cited herein. 

Item #1 – Responses to Questions:

1. Are there any conceptual drawings available for us to review? Response: No, only the 
power point that was attached to the RFP.

2. In regards to Scope of Work, section 3, sub-section l, it states that the project manager to 
meet with City on a set schedule. Can these meetings take place via phone conference? 
Response: Yes, when it’s appropriate.

3. Under this contract, is it the City’s intention to have the undergrounding of utilities? Will 
there also be the possibility of relocating utility boxes as well if in conflict? If relocating 
utility boxes is required, will the consultant need to coordinate with the local utilities or 
will that be done by others? Response: We are not planning to underground any 
utilities, but I’m sure that there will be conflicts and that will require coordination with 
utilities. 

4. Does the City have current street improvements plans that can be used for reference and 
early stage design work Response: No, we may have some record drawings on file but 
the first task would be survey and record research to establish a base plan.

- Page 267 -

Item 20.



City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Header | 27

City of Coachella | Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening and Connectivity

Addenda Acknowledgement

Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening And Connectivity Project, City Project No. ST-123 
Addendum Number 1 
August 15, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

5. On Page 4, Item 2a. There is a qualification requirement stating that indicates experience
in right of way acquisition. On Page 7 Item B, the scope of work states all work is within
the existing right- of – way. Please clarify this for us. Response: No right-of-way
acquisition is required.

6. Is the wayfinding signage shown in the RFP the intended design or will the consultant be
responsible to produce a new design? Response: No, the signage was just an example. If
they are the intended design, have similar style signs been installed in the City?
Response: No, the city does not have an established sign program or branding.

7. Does the City have a particular type of shade structures in mind and/or manufacturer?
Response: No, we are open to suggestions that are functional and within budget.

8. Is the intent to install decorative lighting or street lighting? Response: Safety lighting is
primary focus, only minimal decorative lighting.

9. Does the City have a structural section for the new pavement or will it be necessary to
have a geotechnical engineer provide a recommendation? Response: City will provide
minimal section requirements.

10. Is it possible to get a copy of the Grant for the project? Response: The Grant will be
provided to the selected firm.

11. Is the project still due on August 20 at 2:00 PM? Response: Yes.

Acknowledgement: Offerors must acknowledge receipt of this Addendum by signing in the space 
provided below.  All addenda shall be included in the appendices section of the 
Proposal. Failure to do so may result in rejection and disqualification of the 
Proposal.  

Authorized Signature: Date: 

Company: NV5, Inc.

August 19, 2019

- Page 268 -

Item 20.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/9/2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2019-50 Authorizing the City Manager  to  Submit and  

Execute a 2020-2021 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Entitlement Funding Application in the Amount of $395,000.00 and Hold a 

Public Hearing for the Proposed Activity: Bagdouma Park Basketball Courts 

Rehabilitation Project 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City of Coachella hold a public hearing to solicit citizen 

participation to ensure all interested persons are able to access, understand, and comment upon 

information related to the proposed use of 2020-2021 Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) funds. Staff also recommends that City Council adopt Resolution No. 2019-50 

authorizing the City Manager to submit and execute a 2020-2021 Community Development 

Block Grant Entitlement Funding Application in the amount of $395,000.00 for the proposed 

activity: Bagdouma Park Basketball Courts Rehabilitation Project. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City can use its allocation for any eligible CDBG-activity, including, but not limited to, 

housing rehabilitation, code enforcement, and infrastructure improvement needs, as long as the 

primary beneficiaries are low-to-moderate income households. The City’s annual allocation is 

based on a formula that includes population, poverty rate, overcrowding, and sub-standard 

housing. For fiscal year 2020-2021, the City of Coachella’s estimated allocation is $395,000.00 

for CDBG-related activities. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Through the 2020-2021 CDBG General Allocation, City Staff is proposing the submittal of 

a grant application for up to $395,000.00 for the following eligible activity: 

 

Bagdouma Park Basketball Courts Rehabilitation Project - $395,000.00 

The proposed activity is considered eligible for CDBG funding because it meets one or more of 

the following CDBG national objectives: 

 

- Page 269 -

Item 21.



 The public facility or improvement will be used for a purpose the benefits of which are 

available to all the residents in a particular area that is primarily residential, and at least 51% 

of those residents are L/M income persons. 

 

 Prevent or eliminate slums and blight; the public facilities and improvements are located in a 

designated slum or blighted area and are designed to address one or more conditions which 

contributed to the deterioration of the area 

 

The City is proposing to resurface existing outdoor basketball courts at Bagdouma Park, which is 

considered a public improvement project. The basketball courts have developed cracks and a 

worn surface from years of play and weathering. The project will also install lighting for the 

basketball courts and other much-needed improvements. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-50 Authorizing the City Manager to Submit and Execute a 2020- 

2021 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Funding Application in the 

Amount of $395,000.00 and Hold a Public Hearing for the Proposed Activity: Bagdouma 

Park Basketball Courts Rehabilitation Project 

 

2. Not Adopt Resolution No. 2019-50 Authorizing the City Manager to Submit and Execute a 

2020-2021 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Funding Application 

in the Amount of $395,000.00 and Hold a Public Hearing for the Proposed Activity: 

Bagdouma Park Basketball Courts Rehabilitation Project 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Once the application is approved, the County will send an agreement for signature and the 

County will issue a Letter to Incur Costs to the City of Coachella so that the City can receive 

reimbursement in the amount of $395,000.00 in CDBG entitlement funds for its proposed 

activity. All disbursements of CDBG funds will be made within thirty (30) days after the County 

has received the City’s reimbursement request including documentation supporting expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENT: 

1.   Resolution No. 2019-50 

 

- Page 270 -

Item 21.



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-50 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA, 

CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT AND EXECUTE 

A 2020-2021 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 

ENTITLEMENT FUNDING APPLICATION TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGENCY IN THE AMOUNT OF $395,000 FOR THE 

BAGDOUMA PARK BASKETBALL COURTS REHABILITATION PROJECT  

WHEREAS, the County or Riverside and City of Coachella executed a Cooperation 

Agreement, dated July 20, 2017, whereby the City elected to participate with the County, which 

has qualified as an “Urban County” for purposes of receiving Community Development Block 

Grant, and to assist and undertake essential community development and housing assistance 

activities pursuant to the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974; and, 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the CDBG grant application being submitted to the County 

of Riverside by the City of Coachella is to authorize the use of CDBG entitlement funds for 

fiscal year 2020-2021 in the estimated amount of $395,000.00 which reflects a proportional 

share of the County of Riverside’s entitlement allocation from the Department of Housing and 

Urban Development. The City’s annual allocation is based on a formula that includes population, 

poverty rate, overcrowding, and sub-standard housing; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council has published information regarding eligible activities 

under the Act and has conducted a duly noticed public hearing on October 9, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. 

in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California; and, 

WHEREAS, the notice of public hearing was posted and advertised pursuant to 

applicable federal, state, and local laws; and,  

WHEREAS, both oral and written testimony was presented to the City Council at the 

public hearing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella, as follows: 

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The City Council hereby finds and determines 

that the foregoing Recitals of this Resolution are true and correct and hereby incorporated into 

this Resolution as though fully set forth herein. 

Section 2. Conduct a Public Hearing and Adopt Resolution No. 2019-50 Authorizing 

the City Manager to Submit and Execute a 2020-2021 Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Entitlement Funding Application to the County of Riverside Economic Development 

Agency in the estimated amount of $395,000.00 for the Bagdouma Park Basketball Courts 

Rehabilitation Project. 

Section 3. The City of Coachella intends to use its fiscal year 2020-2021 CDBG 

allocation for the following eligible CDBG-activities where the primary beneficiaries are low-to-

moderate income households and activities prevent or eliminate slums and blight: Bagdouma 

Park Basketball Courts Rehabilitation Project. 

- Page 271 -

Item 21.



Section 4. That the City Manager is authorized to submit and execute the contractual 

and related documents to be prepared by the City of Coachella that are required for the 

implementation of projects set forth herein. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 9th day of October, 2019. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney 

  

- Page 272 -

Item 21.



 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-50 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 9th day of 

October, 2019, by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES:    

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:   

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC  

Deputy City Clerk 
 

- Page 273 -

Item 21.


	Top
	1. Ramona Rita Morales v. City of Coachella, et al.
	2. Study Session Minutes of September 25, 2019
	CouncilMinutes-09-25-2019 - Study Session

	3. Regular Meeting Minutes of September 25, 2019
	CouncilMinutes-09-25-2019

	4. Voucher Listing- FY2019/20 Expenditures as of October 9, 2019, $1,213,182.09.
	191009 Warrant Register

	5. Resolution No. 2019-51
	CC Staff Rpt - Reso 2019-51
	Reso No 2019-51

	6. Amendment No. 2 to Professional Service Agreement with Southern California Soils and Testing (SCST)
	Staff Report Amendment #2 to SCST PSA
	2nd Amend SCST
	1st Amend SCST
	SCST PSA

	7. Sponsorship Request for Date Harvest Festival Ferris Wheel
	Staff Report Date Harvest Festival Ferris Wheel Sponsorship v2
	Invoice - Coachella Ferris Wheel
	DHF Presentation sept 20191
	Window Poster1

	8. Authorize City Manager to execute a Library Facilities Use Agreement and Amendment with Desert Community College District.
	Agenda - COD Lease 10 9 19
	Exhibit A - COD Lease and Amendment 10 9 19

	9. Authorize award of a Professional Services Agreement to GM Business Interiors for furnishing the Senior Center facility in the amount not to exceed $50,000.00; allowing for non-substantive changes by the City Attorney.
	Agenda - GM Business Interiors PSA for Sr. Center 10 9 19
	Agreement - GM Business Interiors Sr Center 10 9 19

	10. Dillon Road Bridge Water Line Repair
	Staff Report Award of Project W-40
	W-40 Bid Register

	11. Approve a Community Based Grant to Angel View in the Amount of $1,000.00 to Support its Outreach Program for Children
	2019 - Staff Report - Angel View
	Grant App Packet - Angel View

	12. Resolution Approving PM 37670
	Staff Report Final Parcel Map 37670
	Parcel Map 37670 Resolution 
	pm 37670 sht 1
	pm 37670 sht 2
	pm 37670 sht 3

	13. Gas Tax Budget Adjustment
	Staff Report Gas Tax Budget Adjustment

	14. Resolution Miscellaneous Bargaining Unit MOU 2019-2021
	Staff Report - Teamsters Miscellaneous MOU
	Resolution No. 2019-52
	Miscellaneous Unit MOU 2019-2021

	15. PSA with KOA Corporation
	Staff Report PSA with KOA Corp. for PS&E
	Exhibits A, B & C
	PSA-KOA PS&E - ROW Professional Services

	16. ST-124 Traffic Calming Phase III
	ST-124 Staff Report
	ST-124 Contract
	ST-124 Bids

	17. SD-02 Avenue 50 Storm Drain
	SD-02 Avenue 50 Storm Drain Contract Award
	Contract_SD-02
	SD-02 Bids

	18. Award ATP Cycle 2 Project
	Staff Report to Award City Project ST-100
	ST-100 Contract
	ST-100 Bids

	19. Provide staff direction on request from Eventscape International, Inc.for a $25,000 sponsorship of the 2019 Run With Los Muertos Event.
	Agenda - Run With Los Muertos Sponsorship Request 10 9 19 III
	Exhibit A - Eventscape Invoice RWLM 2019 Run With Los Muertos Sponsorship

	20. Professional Service Agreement with NV5
	Staff Report PSA_NV5_ST-123t
	PSA_NV5_ST_123
	Grapefruit Blvd._City of Coachella

	21. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-50 Authorizing the City Manager  to  Submit and  Execute a 2020-2021 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Funding Application in the Amount of $395,000.00 and Hold a Public Hearing for the Proposed Activity: Bagdouma Park Basketball Courts Rehabilitation Project
	2019 - Staff Report - CDBG Grant
	Resolution 2019-50

	Bottom

